DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 272 724	CE 044 830
TITLE	Job Training Partnership Act and Farmers. Hearing before a Subcommittee of the Committee on Government Operations, House of Representatives, Ninety-Ninth Congress, First Session.
INSTITUTION	Congress of the U. S., Washington, D. C. House Committee on Government Operations.
PUB DATE	15 Nov 85
NOTE	137p.; Document contains small type.
PUB TYPE	Legal/Legislative/Regulatory Materials (090)
EDRS PRICE	MF01 Plus Postage. PC Not Available from EDRS.
DESCRIPTORS	Dislocated Workers; *Employment Programs; *Farmers; *Tederal Programs; Hearings; *Job Training; *Program Effectiveness; Program Improvement
IDENTIFIERS	Congress 99th; *Job Training Partnership Act 1982

ABSTRACT

The way in which the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) is or is not serving the agricultural community is the focus of these proceedings. This record contains presentations and/or written testimony given by senators and representatives, by the directors of JTPA service delivery areas, by a representative from the Job Service in Iowa, by several Federal administrators of the JTPA, and by several farmers and former farmers from Iowa. The speakers and papers make the point that JTPA assistance has been almost nonexistent in agriculture, although it is an area that badly needs help, with many farmers lising their farms and many more in danger of doing so. Suggestions for ways in which JTPA agencies could serve the farming community and how the law should be interpreted to facilitate such help are included in the testimony. (KC)

****	********	*******	******	******	******	*********	****
*	Reproductions	supplied by	EDRS are	the best	that can	n be made	*
*	-	from the	original	document.			*
****	****	******	********	* * * * * * * * * *	*****	****	****

JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT AND FARMERS

SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

NINETY-NINTH CONGRESS

FIRST SESSION

NOVEMBER 15, 1985

Printed for the use of the Committee on Government Operations





U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Office of Educational Research and Improvement EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC) Juis document has been reproduced as

This document has been reproduced as received from the person or organization originating it

Minor changes have been made to improve reproduction quality

 Points of view or opinions stated in this document do not necessarily represent official OERI position or policy

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE WASHINGTON : 1986

 $\mathbf{2}$



COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS

JACK BROOKS, Texas, Chairman

DON FUQUA, Florida JOHN CONYERS, JR., Michigan CARDISS COLLINS, Illinois GLENN ENGLISH, Oklahoma HENRY A. WAXMAN, California TED WEISS, New York MIKE SYNAR, Oklahoma STEPHEN L. NEAL, North Carolina DOUG BARNARD, JR., Georgia BARNEY FRANK, Massachusetts TOM LANTOS, California ROBERT E. WISE, JR., West Virginia BARBARA BOXER, California SANDER M. LEVIN, Mich.gan MAJOR R. OWENS, New York EDOLPHUS TOWNS, New York EDOLPHUS TOWNS, New York JOHN M. SPRATT, JR., South Carolina JOE KOLTER, Pennsylvania BEN ERDREICH, Alabama GERALD D. KLECZKA, Wisconsin ALBERT G. BUSTAMANTE, Texas MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, California FRANK HORTON, New York FRANK HORTON, New York THOMAS N. KINDNESS, Ohio ROBERT S. WALKER, Pennsylvania ALTRED A. (AL) McCANDLESS, California LARRY E. CRAIG, Idaho HOWARD C. NIELSON, Utah JIM SAXTON, New Jersey PATRICK L. SWINDALL, Georgia THOMAS D. (TOM) DELAY, Texas JOSEPH J. DroGUARDI, New York RICHARD K. ARMEY, Texas JIM LIGHTFOOT, Iowa JOHN R. MILLER, Washington BEAU BOULTER, Texas JOHN E. GROTBERG, Illinois

WILLIAM M. JONES, General Counsel JOHN E. MOORE, Staff Administrator STEPHEN M. DANIELS, Minority Staff Director and Counsel

EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE

BARNEY FRANK, Massachusetts, Chairman Ichigan HOWARD C. NIELSON, Utah w York JIM LIGHTFOOT, Iowa

SANDER M. LEVIN, Michigan MAJOR R. OWENS, New York TOM LANTOS, California MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, California

Ex Oracio

JACK BROOKS, Texas

FRANK HORTON, New York.

BEAU BOULTER, Texas

STUART E. WEISBERG, Staff Director and Counsel JUNE SAXTON, Clerk KEN SALAETS, Minority Professional Staff

3

 (\mathbf{I})



CONTENTS

Hearing held on November 15, 1985	Page 1
 Statement of: Bedell, Hon. Berkley, a Representative in Congress from the State of Iowa, as presented by Clayton Hodgson Broich, Larry, former farmer from Leon, IA Epperson, D. Eugene, director, JTPA Service Delivery Area Frank, Hon. Barney, a Representative in Congress from the State of Massachusetts, and chairman, Employment and Housing Subcommit- 	28 30 45
tee: Opening statement Goodvin, Max, Job the weed share cil Bluffs, IA Harkin, Hon, Tom, the state of Iowa, as	$\frac{1}{76}$
presented by Bonnic Knutson, William, former narmer from Omaha, NE Miskimins, Richard, Employment and Training Administration Regional	20 31
Office, Kansas City, KS Romero, Fred, Administrator, Office of Strategic Planning and Policy Development, Employment and Training Administration, U.S. Depart-	68
ment of Labor Smith, Jerry, director, JTPA Service Delivery Area 14	67 46
Smith, Philip C., director, Division for Human Resources Coordination, Iowa Office of Planning and Programming Woodward, Gary, director, JTPA Service Delivery Area	39 50
Grassley, Hon. Charles E., a Senator in Congress from the State of Iowa:	6–11
Prepared statement	2–13 2–27
Lightfoot, Hon. Jim, a Representative in Congress from the State of Iowa:	
Opening statement	4
Romero, Fred, Administrator, Office of Strategic Planning and Policy Development, Employment and Training Administration, U.S. Depart- ment of Labor:	
Breakdown of State carryovers of title III funds	-107 0-73
ment	7-49
Iowa Office of Planning and Programming: Submissions to additional questions of Mr. Nielson and Moduli Lightfoot	8-65

(111)



JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT AND FARMERS

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 1985

House of Representatives, Employment and Housing Subcommittee of the Committee on Government Operations,

Council Bluffs, IA.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m., at Iowa Western Community College, Council Bluffs, IA, Hon. Barney Frank (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Barney Frank, Howard C. Nielson, and Jim Lightfoot.

Also present: Stuart E. 'Veisberg, staff director and counsel; and Ken Salaets, minority professional staff, Committee on Government Operations.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN FRANK

Mr. FRANK. Good morning.

This is a hearing of the Subcommittee on Employment and Housing of the Government Operations Committee of the U.S. House of Representatives.

The House of Representatives divides jurisdiction among subjects essentially three ways. This committee, the Government Operations Committee of which we are a subcommittee, has what is known in Washington as oversight jurisdiction; that is, we do not have in this subcommittee the mandate to actually draft and report to the House legislation on this subject. We have a mandate, however, to supervise the operation of programs which have been enacted and funded by Congress.

This subcommittee has as its jurisdiction essentially the Departments of Labor and Heusing and Urban Development and related agencies.

The purpose of this hearing, therefore, is to examine the Job Training Partnership Act. We have had a series of hearings on this act which is one of the major operational programs of the D_{ε} partment of Labor. Our particular focus today is the extent to which that act is—or as we believe has been the case until very recently—is not serving the agricultural sector of our economy.

The purpose of the Job Training Partnership Act is to assist people in making transitions in an economy such as ours where there will always be areas that are growing, and obviously all of us hope that growth will be the predominant pattern. But there are

(1)



also inevitably transitions. There are areas that grow, there are areas that may stagnate, there are areas that shrink.

The Job Training Partnership Act as enacted by Congress recognizes that and recognizes an obligation on the part of the Federal Government to help those who have lost jobs through no fault of their own through the course of changing patterns of employment in the country.

It has unfortunately been seen almost exclusively until recently as affecting the nonagricultural sectors of the economy. It is very clear to anyone who is familiar with the agricultural situation that sadly there are changes going on in the agricultural area that are adversely affecting some very hard-working decent people who again find themselves, through no fault of their own perhaps, unable to continue in their chosen occupation.

The purpose of this hearing is to look at what the Job Training Partnership Act has been doing in this area and if, as most of us are inclined to believe, the answer is that it has not been doing enough, to look at what could be done to improve it administratively or through the actual drafting of legislation, if such would be needed.

While funding would not be within the jurisdiction of this subcommittee, on the other hand it has been our experience that when this subcommittee or others develop well thought-out, bipartisanly supported recommendations, we can sometimes succeed in changing the direction of the administration and it may well be that it is not necessarily legislative changes that are needed, although some may be needed, but a difference in emphasis administratively to be able to improve things. That will be what we will be doing pretty much.

We have not chosen this area wholly randomly. Mr. Lightfoot has been a very active member of the subcommittee and a constructive member of the subcommittee and is the one who brought the attention of this subcommittee to the problems that exist with regards to the Job Training Partnership Act in agriculture. So we are here at the suggestion of Mr. Lightfoot.

We thank him for helping us focus on this and he will be within a few minutes making his own statement.

I will now call on the ranking minority member, the senior Republican of the subcommittee who is also very much concerned through his own district with the plight of the agricultural sector of our economy, the gentleman from Utah, Mr. Nielson. Mr. NIELSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am very happy to be here. I have had a warm spot in my heart for Iowa since 1969 when our car burned up and the people of Grinnel, IA, and the fire department was very kind to us. It was at night, the Saturday night before Labor Day. Everything was closed. All we had left was a few things, so we went to the motel with a couple of bags of groceries and things for the baby who was young, about 6 months old at that time, and we were a motley-looking crew at that time. The Iowa people were very understanding and we appreciate that very much.

I am happy to be here in Congressman Lightfoot's district to hold this hearing. I have a rural background myself. I was raised on a farm. I have about a 48,000-square-mile district. It is large, about



like Jim's is, and has a lot of livestock, sheep, turkeys, and, of course, some grain products, not like Iowa, but quite a few, diversified agricultural products.

It is very important that the JTPA as successor to the old CETA organization work as a partnership, as implied in its title the Job Training Partnership Act. It has, Congressman Frank has said, been useful primarily for industrial areas to retrain people from the so-called smokestack industries such as steel and automobiles, those which have cut back on employment.

I think it is appropriate to look at it in terms of agriculture because many people are leaving the farms, not able to stay in agriculture because of declining prices and other factors over which they have no control.

I want to thank Jim, Congressman Lightfoot, for suggesting the hearing and hosting it here and I appreciate his staff picking me up at the airport and all the kind things they have done for us. That k you.

1

ing statement of Mr. Nielson follows:]



STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE HOWARD C. NIELSON

Employment and Housing Subcommittee Committee on Government Operations Council Bluffs, Iowa

MR. CHAIRMAN, I AM PLEASED THAT WE WERE ABLE TO TRAVEL HERE TO THE HOME DISTRICT AND GREAT STATE OF OUR DISTINGUISHED COLLEAGUE. JIM LIGHTFOOT, TO HOLD THIS HEARING TO EXAMINE SOME OF THE PROBLEMS THE STATES HAVE ENCOUNTERED IN ADMINISTERING THE JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIF ACT TO MEET THE NEEDS OF FARMERS. THE COLD WEATHER REMINDS ME OF MY OWN STATE OF UTAH, AND WHEN YOU ADD THAT TO THE FINE HOSPITALITY PROVIDED BY THE PEOPLE OF COUNCIL BLUFFS, I CAN'T HELP BUT FEEL RIGHT AT HOME.

I A. \odot FEEL RIGHT AT HOME WITH THIS ISSUE, FOR AS YOU KNOW, MY DISTRICT IS PREDOMINANTLY RURAL- I AM FAMILIAR WITH THE PROBLEMS THAT FACE IOWA FARMERS, BECAUSE THESE ARE SOME OF THE SAME PROBLEMS THAT CONFRONT MANY OF MY OWN CONSTITUENTS. IN DDITION, HAVING BEEN RAISED ON A FARM MYSELF, I AM PERSONALLY AQUAINTED WITH THE HARDSHIPS AND HAZARDS THAT COME WITH MAKING A LIVING OFF THE LAND.

Though we are actually the guests this time around, I would like to welcome our witnesses this morning, and say that I am looking forwari to a frank and informative discussion on this subject.



Mr. FRANK. The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Iowa. Mr. LightFoot. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to ask that the record be kept open so that any tional statements to be submitted might also be entered into record.

We have a statement from Congressman Bedell and Ser Harkin, and one from Des Moines Area Community follege also a statement from Senator Grossley. Would like to those statements in the reasonable of the statements of the reasonable of the statements of the stateme

Mr. FRANK. We will joint ones from Des Moines Area Connity College and Senator Grassley in the record.

Mr. Bedell and Senator Harkin have representatives who present their statements.

If there is no objection to that procedure, we will put those in record

[The statements follow:]

.

GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

6

Sub-Committee on Employment & Housing

Chairperson - The Honorable Barney Frank, Massachusetts Member - The Honorable Howard Nielsen, Utah Member - The Honorable Jim Ross Lightfoot, Iowa

> Presented at Iowa Western Community College Council Bluffs, Iowa November 15, 1985

Prepared by Des Moines Area Community College

Ann Schodde, Vice President, Development Daryl VanderWilt, Director, Grants & Contracts Don Kerr, Economic Development Group



Des Moines Area Community College is a state-supported community college serving 11 counties in central and western Iowa. The College district contains approximately 20 percent of the state's population and serves metropolitan, urban, and rural areas. To ensure service and opportunity, the College has developed facilities in urban Ankeny, a community of 16,000; Des Moines, a city of 250,000; Boone, a rural community of 13,000; and Carroll--a rural community of 10,000 residents some 90 miles from Des Moines Area Community College's Ankeny administrative center.

Des Moines Area Community College has completed an assessment of need for rural assistance in Iowa and has developed the following prognosis regarding Iowa's farm crisis.

- 1. Iowa will lose 12,400 farms.
- Iowa will have 24,800 dislocated farmers and farm families seeking new jobs.
- The loss of these farms and farm families will result in a loss of 992 rural businesses.
- 4. This will result in a loss of 24,800 rural "town" jobs.
- 5. This will create a rural unemployment loss of 49,000 people in need of jobs, retraining, or relocation.
- The cost of one year of retraining and relocating those individuals will be in excess of \$1.25 million.



These statistics are chilling. All available resources are desperately needed to address this sudden and severe economic downture: to help people adjust to emerging economic realities.

However, current regulations and guidelines established for the JTPA program do not allow most of our rural population access to JTPA programs and services. Regulations greatly limit farmer participation due to the establishment of unrealistic income guidelines. These guidelines ignore the fact that current income checks are made payable both to a bank or another lending agency and to the farmer. Thus, income from a sale of goods goes to pay off existing notes, mortgages, etc., and, therefore, does not actually provide a net income to the farmer or the farm population. Current regulations would have a farmer declare bankruptev before becoming eligible for JTPA programs and services. This unfair situation must be changed. The Region X11 Council of Government's JTPA Director in Carroll, Iowa, also concurs with this assessment.

Des Moines Area Community College's research indicates that the three most irouhled counties in Area XI are Audubon, Guthrie, and Carroll, along with adjacent Greene County.

Thus, our new program entitled FARM/CAP (Career Assessment Program) represents a new initiative for helping area farmers, agricultural-related workers, and spouses.

Various Des Moines Area Community College staff members have established an ongoing relationship with an area farm support group, the Greenbrier Area Farm Support Group, centered north of Bagley, Iowa, in Guthrie County. Staff members have participated in Sunday evening meetings, listened carefully, and have offered to assist in ways the group would consider helpful. In this



8

spirit, the staff has read with Pastor Art Hill, Greenbrier United Methodist Church, in developing a response sheet to further determine through members' needs. A separate document entitled "Career Assessments Programmed Vield be made available — the committee as part of the record.

The Program is designed to consist participants in clarifying and then acting on life/career option in the coupled through outreach activities, personal and farm finantial conservation farmer-lender mediation, Life/Career workshops, and job referral and placement services.

Career and Financial Assessment

Outreach activity will be initiated by a FARM/CAP staff member through a response sheet administered during the first meeting of a support group. Individuals will have an opportunity to indicate whether or not they are clear about th ir career goals and whether they need a farm financial assessment.

The FARM/CAP staff member will distribute a form to those desiring a farm financial assessment with explanation regarding its complet'on. A date to visit the family on their farm site will be established.

A Program Farm Financial Advisor will visit the farm family and, through a sensitive, non-directive approach, involve family members in an analysis of financial data. A computer printout will be generated and given the family that details key financial problem areas. Program participants will always have ultimate responsibility for final decision making.

The main purpose of the analysis is to help the farmer answer the question, "Is farming an option?" If it is, new approaches to financial planning and management will surely result in better operation. Too, farmer-lender

ERIC FUIL TEXT FROM AND AND FRIC 13

mediation services will be made available. If farming is deemed ont an option, the FARM/CAP Career Development Workshop will be recommended as a starting place.

The heart of FARM/CAP will be one-week (half-day) life/career planning workshops. Workshop sessions will be organized to help participants assess their individual strengths, interests, values, transferrable work skills, and career/job options. Currently, nine FARM/CAP workshops are being established throughout Area XI from December 1985 - April 1986. These workshops will be Interspersed with one-wack (four day) Job Search Assistance sessions geared toward developing interviewing skills and resumes. This activity will be sponsored in enoperation with Job Service of Iowa.

A primary concern is that program goals be met, in part, through utilizing available community/area resources, such as those offered by Job Service of lowa and ISU Extension Offices, and .y avoiding a duplication of services. This cooperation, we think, conserves valuable time and financial resources. Furthermore, FARM/CAP has been designed to be "transported" to other area scttings and personnel. We think collaboration with various area agencies and groups is important when designing a wide array of options for program participants.

Greenbrier area farm leaders have pulled twenty-five farm neighbors together in a warm support group. Every Sunday evening at 7:30 p.m. they meet at a centralized location in a farmer's large machine shed. They come from rural Scranton, Rippey, Bagley, Jefferson, Guthrie Center, and Jamaica.

1929; just a short time before the big fall. They are hanging on, wishing to stay on the farm, but not knowing if they should sell out now before they



10

Group members labor under news that this particular time is similar to that of

"lose it all". Some already have. This terrible uncertainty is their secret nemesis. Yet their meetings are positive and beneficial as issues are discussed with options generated for consideration. However, questions always remain as does personal decision-making.

There is used for more community farm support groups. Group leadership members have good communication skills but they need assistance in referral techniques, peer counseling helping skills, group processes, information regarding how to keep their group focused on constructive issues, and how to spot serious human problems. The PARM/CAP Program will host two major conferences dealing with support group leadership.

Both individuals and groups need immediate assistance. At this time, however, JTPA Title IIA funding is essentially nonexistent for farmers. And this is tragic.

To help farmers, Des Moines Area Community College highly recommends that sub-committee and full committee members review and rewrite JTPA Title IIA eligibility guidelines for greater flexibility to assist that portion of our work force that has contributed so greatly to the development of our great nation, the American farmer, agricultural related worker and spouse.

Thank you.





STATEMENT BY DEVELOR OF THIS F. ORDESDAY AND THE DEFENSION TO THE SUBCEMENTATE ON PERIODMENT AND BOUSING OF THE BODE OF COMMUTTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS, ON THE BOLE OF TO THE TAILOG PARTNERSHIP ACT IN SERVING FARMERS AND SCREEPINGEAL COMMUNICIES.

Congressman Lightfoot, Mr. Chairman, Congressman Nielson, I would like to begin my statement by commending you for holding this hearing to examine the role of the Job Training Partnership Act in serving farmers and agricultural communities.

Speaking as a farmer, as well as a farm state Senator, 1 firmy believe that our first priority should be to hep farmers in business. There is more at stake in farming than just "making a living"; farming is a way of life. Perever, we must also face up to the sad fact that for some farming is no longer a visble option. Where that is the case, we need to examine those programs a the federal and state levels that can offer arritance to farmers in making the difficult transition to a new way of life. The Job Training Partnership Act, which provides job training, placement assistance, and other services to help persons who have been displaced by economic change or who need assistance in developing marketable skills. is an important part of our efforts to assist persons who have heen adversely affected by the crisis in the farm economy.

Iowa was the first state to allow farmers to participate in the Job Training Partnership Act under fille 111, which serves displaced workers. This action was taken by Governor Branstad in Jaly of 1984, nine months before the Department of Labor officially declared that farmers could be eligible under Title Ill. Governor Branstad and the Iowa Office of Planning and Programming should be commended for taking the initiative to begin using the displaced worker program to serve farmers who have lost their farms due to economic conditions. In the current program year, I believe that somewhere in the neighborhood of 250 farmers have been assisted by the Job Training Partnership Act in Iowa. In addition to assistance under the regular program, the Iowa Office of Planning and Programming has recently received a \$500,000 grant to develop a program tailored specifically for farmers. The Office of Planning and Programming hopes to serve an additional 380 to 400 farmers in that program.

Iowa and some surrounding states -- Minnesota, Nebraska, and Kansas -- have been very active in trying to make the Job Training Partnership Act work for farmers. I think their efforts have been laudable, but there have been problems along the way.

One early problem was that it was unclear whether faimers were even eligible under the displaced worker program. Although the



16

BEST COPY AVAILABLE

Department of labor has cleared up that question, states are only just beginning to gain experience in serving factors in the displaced worker program.

Outreach is one ongoing problem that has been indentified by states that have experience in working with displaced 'armers' In addition to the newness of Job Training Partnership Act services for displaced or financially troubled farmers, they may be reluctant to admit they are having problems and ask for assistance. States such as Iowa, with experience in serving farmers, have discovered that an aggressive outreach program is needed.

Eligibility rules present another problem for displaced farmers. In order to be eligible, a farmer must, for all intents and purposes, be off the farm before he can receive assistance under Title III. Because he has been self employed, he is not eligible for unemployment insurance income while he is in training. He is thus faced with the problem of providing for himself and his family while he is training for a new job.

A third problem is that some services, such as farm management and certain types of counseling, have not been as table through the Job Training Partnership Act. Another problem, which was touched on by Congressman 'ightfoot in his opening statement, is the need to improve coordination at all levels.

lowa and other midwestern states have been trying to solve these problems by tailoring programs to meet the needs of farmers though the use of discretionary money administered by the Secretary of Labor. The lowa program, for example, will include a farm counselor and offer a full array of training and counseling services, coordinated through existing dislocated worker training programs.

I think that one helpful approach to improving the Job Training Partnership Act in its service to farmers and rural communities will be to regard programs currently being set up in Iowa, Minnesota, and Nebraska using discretionary money from the Secretary of Labor as pilot programs. These programs will provide valuable experience and provide guidance for policymakers in improving the Job Training Partnership Act.

I am also looking forward to examining the testimony of today's witnesses for guidance.

That concludes my prepared remarks.



Mr. FRANK. Since there appears to be no objection, we will keep the record open for a few days to receive other testimony. If anyone here hears something today that you think requires amplification and you want to get additional material in, you can submit it to us, and it will become part of the record. That will give you a chance to react and help us restrain the people who say, "By the way, can I say something?"

So we will take any additional comments you have. You will have at least a week to get those to us.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to welcome you and Congressman Nielson to Iowa. I am glad you agreed to come to Iowa to discuss the role of the JTPA as it affects this area and dislocated farmers. I hope we will have a thorough and frank discussion with the panelists on ways we can better accommodate farmers under the Job Training Partnership Act.

As most of you know, farm States are facing tough times, and the challenges to preserve the family farm are great. It is alarming to see what is happening to our farming communities, to watch our small towns and cities dry up, and to see our family farms under stress. I think we must do whatever we can to preserve these family farms and to ensure that farmers once again can make a profit in agriculture.

We must provide them with assistance so that they can weather the economic storm. Unfortunately, some farmers have had no choice but to leave farming. For them, we must establish a smooth transition from the farm to another career. And, of course, that is why we are here today.

For many of these farmers, this is the only thing they have ever done. They have worked the land for years and while enjoying some good years in agriculture, they have also lived through some bad years. But they kept on going. Now, some of them have had to stop. After farming for 10, 15, maybe even 20 years, they have had to think about entering into a new occupation.

Many people aren't aware that the skills farmers possess can be transferred into another career. Farmers are managers, economists, accountants, and marketers. These are skills which they need to draw upon everyday to keep their farm operation in business. They review the political climate, watch the commodity markets, know when to buy and sell, analyze all these factors and make decisions.

As a matter of routine, farmers are their own engineer, mechanic, and agronomist—services which people in the nonfarm sector pay dearly for on a regular basis. It is clear, farmers are self-sufficient, hard-working people, and have a great deal to offer to the work force. It should be our goal to ensure that farmers are given the opportunity to apply these skills off the farm.

The Job Training Partnership Act, the major Federal job retraining program, has been good for dislocated factory or heavy industry workers, but has not been as effectively applied for farmers in the same situation. Admittedly, hundreds of farmers have been helped through this program, but the rules have been stretched to accommodate them.



Presently, State and local agencies are doing a tremendous job at serving the farm communities. However, greater assistance is necessary if we are to meet the growing need for these types of services. Local agencies are frustrated because the financial resources to help the farmers are limited; the guidelines are too sketchy or too restrictive; and the types of services or training which the farmer or his family requires are unavailable or they are not available.

When Congress developed the Job Training Partnership Act in 1982, it was geared to retrain factory workers, not farmers. In 1985, we need it to retrain the dislocated farmer. Although JTPA, especially title III, the dislocated worker program, allows for a great deal of State discretion in adopting a program to fit the characteristics of the State, the Federal Government should be more attuned to the particular problems of the farmers and the farming communities.

For instance, greater technical guidance by the Department of Labor is necessary if we are to help dislocated farmers. Rather than policing the States on how they are administering the JTPA Program, the Department of Labor should use its expertise and its resources to help farm States cope with the problems of retraining farmers. The Department of Labor needs to share its knowledge with the S⁺ates.

Second, more title III discretionary money should be targeted directly to agriculture communities. The current allocation formula unfairly distributes funding to farm States because of the formula's inability to measure farm unemployment. Therefore, in order to compensate for this and to cover the higher costs associated with serving farmers, more of the Secretary of Labor's discretionary money under the title III program needs to be distributed to rural areas.

Third, a coordinated, nonduplicative approach of serving farmers and their families has to be developed at the local and State levels. Skill assessment, job training, family counseling, and stress management are all services which farm families undergoing a change require. State agriculture and labor agencies, and community agencies have to work together to provide the necessary services to farm families. In addition, farm States need to continue to build a network among the States to share information on how each State is serving rural communities.

We have a lot of issues to discuss today, and I am looking forward to hearing the panelists' testimony. I also have many questions which I would like to ask. Although there are many positive things occurring in the communities to assist farmers and their families, I hope that today's hearing will indicate how we can better help more farmers through the Job Training Partnership Act.

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for bringing this hearing to Iowa. As diverse as the locations the three of us represent are, and it may also be true of our political philosophies, there is a common thread between the three of us which is that we care about people. You certainly have taken the lead in that area by bringing us here today. We appreciate that.

[The opening statement of Mr. Lightfoot follows:]



HOUSE GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS COMMITTEE'S SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING

FIELD HEARING IN COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA OPENING REMARKS OF REPRESENTATIVE JIM LIGHTFOOT NOVEMBER 15, 1985

Mr. Chairman, Congressman Nielson, I welcome you to Council Bluffs, Iowa, and I am glad you agreed to come to my district to discuss the role of the Job Training Partnership Act in serving dislocated farmers. I hope we will have a thorough and frank discussion with the panelists on ways we can better accommodate farmers under the Job Training Partnership Act.

Farm states are facing tough times, and the challenges to preserve the family farm are great. It is alarming to see what is happening to our farming communities, to watch our small towns and cities dry up, and to see our family farms under stress. We must do whatever we can to preserve these family farms and to ensure that farmers once again can make a profit in agriculture. We must provide them with assistance so that they can weather the economic storm. Unfortunately, some farmers have had no choice but to leave farming. For them, we must establish a smooth transition from the farm to another career. That's why we are here today.

20



For many of these farmers, this is the only thing they have ever done. They have worked the land for years and while enjoying some good years in agriculture, they have also lived through some bad years. But they kept on going. Now, some of them have had to stop. After farming for 10, 15, maybe 20 years, they have had to think about entering into a new occupation.

Many people aren't aware the skills farmers possess can be transferred to another career. Farmers are managers, economists, accountants, and marketers. These are skills which they need to draw upon everyday to keep their farm operation in business. They review the pr litical climate, watch the commodity markets, know when to buy and sell, analyze all these factors and make decisions.

As a matter of routine, farmers are their own engineer, mechanic, and agronomist -- services which people in the non-farm sector pay dearly for on a regular basis. Its clear, farmers are selfsufficient, hard-working people, and have a great deal to offer to the work force. It should be our goal to ensure that farmers are given the opportunity to apply these skills off the farm.



17

The Job Training Partnership Act, the major federal job retraining program, has been good for dislocated factory or heavy industry worker, but has not been as effectively applied for farmers in the same situation. Admittedly, hundreds of farmers have been helped through this program. But, the rules have been stretched to accommodate them.

Presently, state and local agencies are doing a tremendous job at serving the farm communities. However, greater assistance is necessary if we are to meet the growing need for these types of services. Local agencies are frustrated because the financial resources to help the farmers are limited; the guidelines are too sketchy or too restrictive; and the types of services or training which the farmer or his family requires are unavailable or not allowed.

When Congress developed the Job Training Partnership Act in 1982, it was geared to retrain factory workers, not farmers. In 1985, we need it to retrain dislocated farmers. Although JTPA, especially Title III, the Dislocated Worker Program, allows for a great deal of state discretion in adopting a program to fit the characteristics of the state, the federal government should be more attuned to the particular problems of the farmers and the farming community.

22



For instance, greater technical guidance by the Department of Labor is necessary if we are to help dislocated farmers. Rather than policing the states on how they are administering the JTPA program, the Department of Labor should use its expertise and its resources to help farm states cope with the problems of retraining farmers. The Department of Labor needs to share its knowledge with the states.

Second, more Title III discretionary money should be targeted directly to agriculture communities. The current allocation formula unfairly distributes funding to farm states because of the formula's inability to measure farm unemployment. Therefore, in order to compensate for this and to cover the higher costs associated with serving farmers, more of the Secretary of Labor's discretionary money under the Title III program needs to be distributed to rural areas.

Third, a coordinated, non-duplicative approach of serving farmers and their families has to be developed at the local and state levels. Skill assessment, job training, family counseling, and stress management are all services which farm families undergoing a change require. State agriculture and labor agencies, and community agencies have to work together to provide the necessary services to farm families. In addition, farm states need to continue to build a network among the states to share information on how each state is serving rural communities.

23



We have a lot of issues to discuss today, and I am looking forward to hearing the panelists' testimony. I also have many questions which I would like to ask. Although there are many positive things occurring in the communities to assist farmers and their families, I hope that today's hearing will indicate how we can better help more farmers through the Job Training Partnership Act.

Once again, thank you for coming today.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you, and I appreciate that.

We will call our first panel of witnesses, representatives of two of our colleagues in Congress from Iowa, two who have particularly labored hard to educate me about agriculture. If they have failed it is not their fault, but they have worked very hard.

We have Bonnie Simons representing our former colleague, now in the Senate, Senator Harkin; and Clayton Hodgson, representing Mr. Bedell, who was responsible last year for my first extensive education about Iowa farming because Mr. Bedell was my host for about a 2¹/₂-day visit to farms in Iowa and he was the first to begin to focus for me on this and this is a natural evolution for me.

So I ask Ms. Simons and Mr. Hodgson to come forward and make statements on behalf of our colleagues who are both very, very strong advocates of justice to the farmer.

Ms. Simons.

STATEMENT OF HON. TOM HARKIN, A SENATOR IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF IOWA, AS PRESENTED BY BONNIE SIMONS

Ms. SIMONS. I would like to thank Congressman Barney Frank, chairman of the Subcommittee on Employment and Housing of the Government Operations Committee and Congressman Lightfoot of the Fifth District for scheduling this hearing.

Senator Harkin wishes he could be here and feels the topic is extremely important especially in light of Iowa's economic state.

At this time, I would like to ask that a statement by Senator Harkin be placed in the record and also that I might briefly go through the main points of the Senator's remarks.

Mr. FRANK. Without objection, the Senator's statement will be incorporated in full and you may proceed.

Ms. SIMONS. The points I wish to make are as follows: The Job Training Partnership Act is a good program which was not originally set up to deal with farmers. Therefore, farmers trying to participate are facing difficulties which must be corrected. These include, No. 1, the problems farmers face with eligibility require-



ments. As title III of JTPA now reads, a farmer must be foreclosed or have received a notice before they can participate.

Senator Harkin feels that reforms are needed in the eligibility requirements which would allow farmers and their families to participate in retraining programs before they are completely devastated.

In his testimony, Senator Harkin outlines three suggestions for reform.

One, the first thing we must do is base the farmer's eligibility on negative cash-flow, rather than notice of foreclosure.

Two, that a local lender can recommend to JTPA officials a farmer's need to begin looking elsewhere for financial stability.

Three, if the farmer's loans are conditional and do not allow for living expenses, the farmer be deemed eligible.

Point two is the need for long-term retraining efforts which teach the dislocated workers and farmers skills, not simply the ability to write a résumé.

Three, the need to do away with disincentives. Farmers should be encouraged to participate without the fear of losing other benefits.

Four, the need for a continued coordinated effort between States, the Federal Government, and participants to continue the commitment to the program.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Harkin follows:]



TOM HARKIN

.

Hnited States Senate WASHINGTON. DC 20510

STATEMENT OF SENATOR TOM HARKIN

APPROPRIATIONS SNALL BUSINESS

(202) 224-3254 TTY (202) 225-1804 COMMITTES AGRICULTURE

November 14, 1985

Mr. Chairman:

I am pleased that the Employment and Housing Subcemmittee of the House Government Operations Committee is holding this hearing today, in Iowa, to focus on a very important issue, the Job Training Partnership Act and farmers. This is a very timely issue; with family farmers losing their farms daily, we must provide a safety-net.

Many people wonder what farmers can do once they have lost their farms. Let me tell you that farmers are some of the most versatile, skilled workers of our nation. Farmers are mechanics, construction workers, pricklayers and carpenters all-in-onc.

But, farmers still need an organized mechanism to allow them to re-learn these skills and the ability to translate them in the world off the farm.

BACKGROUND

Throughout their history, federal job-creating programs have had the often conflicting goals of making permanent improvements in the economic backbone of the country, while immediately helping people who need jobs.



A well-known job-creation program was the Works Progress Administration (WPA), which was set up in 1935. My father was a participant in this program during the Depression. Participants worked on 600,000 miles of highways, 125,000 public buildings and 8,000 parks. All told, eight million workers received help. WPA not only provided the income these people desperately needed, but it allowed them to maintain their self-respect and dignity. I : member my father taking the kids out on Sundays to show us the work he had been doing, the buildings he had built.

Nevertheless, the WPA program had its problems. Via accomplished only half of the goals I spoke of earlier. Although WPA provided for immediate jobs, it did not make permanent improvements in the economic backbone of the country.

THE JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT

After a half centum of job creation programs, public works programs, and employment and training programs, in 1982 Congress enacted the Job Training Partnership Act. The Act created a major new job training system for economically disadvantaged and dislocated workers, operated by States and local governments in conjunction with private business. This law also authorized training programs for specific target groups such as Native Americans, veterans, and migrants and seasonal farmworkers.



Now, the needs of another group must be addressed -- our family farmers. The original JTPA was not geared toward retraining farmers. They now face several obstacles to perticipation in job training programs.

FARMERS AND JTPA

It is difficult for farmers to become eligible for the program until after they have been foreclosed on. As you know, farmers fall under Title III of JTPA -- employment and training assistance for dislocated workers. Title III provides training to persons who are out of work because of "any permanent closure of a plant or facility". In other words, farmers cannot participate in JTPA with the hope of saving their farms because by the time they are eligible, they have lost their farms.

The eligibility requirements must be changed:

 The first thing we must do is base the farmer's eligibility on negative cash flow, rather than notice of foreclosure. In this way, we could catch those farmers before they have nothing.

2. When a local lender recommends that the farmer needs to begin looking other places for financial support because that lender can no longer do business with the farmer, this should be considered when determining eligibility.



 $\mathbf{28}$

3. If a situation exists where the farmer is receiving conditional loans with no funding available for living expenses, this too should be examined when determining eligibility.

These three suggestions do not represent the only ways to deal with this problem, but werely point out possibilities. However, I do believe the need to address the eligibility requirements is crucial.

Even before eligibility is a concern, farmers must know about the program opportunities and feel compelled to participate. As we all know, Iowans are proud people who do not like to ask for assistance. However, the re-training programs are set up to be used by farmers. Farmers should know these resources exist and feel comfortable using them.

After a farmer does find out about the program, decides to participate and is found to be eligible, the program must give the dislocated worker something valuable. The Labor Department believes that dislocated workers in Title III programs are generally more interested in job search assistance than in lengthy retraining programs. However, I believe farmers and other dislocated workers want to have the option to learn a skill, not simply taught to write a resume, only to run around looking for jobs that they are not qualified for. I believe we must offer more. Congress intended the Job Training Partnership





Act to train youths and unemployed and dislocated workers skills so they can re-join the workforce.

In fact, this year the states did not spend all the money they were given under Title III of JTPA. The main reason for this is that they provided less expensive services. For the 1985 program year, Congress appropriated \$222.5 million. The Senate Appropriations Committee, of which I am a member, suggested a funding level of \$100 million for Title III. However, both House and Senate Appropriations Committee reports state that they expect carry-over balances in the program to maintain activities at their current operation level. Until December 13, the program is funded by a continuing resolution.

As a member of the Appropriations Committee, I wrote a letter to the Chairman of the Labor, HHS Subcommittee, Senator Weicker, and the Ranking Democrat, Senator Proxmire, asking that funding levels for JTPA remain at least at current services levels. In addition, I asked for report language which directs the Secretary of Labor -- when allocating discretionary funds -- to give special attention to programs that would retrain workers in rural areas and give farmers, their spouses, and other agriculture-related workers skills which would allow them to reenter the labor force.

Title III of JTPA has the resources, but they need to be used more



efficiently. One of the first changes needed is to allow dislocated workers, especially farmers, to participate in re-training programs before they have lost everything. Then, the program must be re-tailored to provide for long-term improvements in the economic infra-structure of Iowa. We must use the Job Training Partnership Act to re-train our farmers, to teach them skills which would allow them a chance to work for an extended period of time, at a meaningful job. That is what Congress intended, the best long-term approach for farmers and for the economic stability of Iowa.

Finally, we must not penalize farmers, or others, for participating in job training programs. As it stands now, farmers must choose whether to feed their families, or lose their food stamps by participating in the Job Training Partnership Act.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, I believe there are three immediate needs for farmers and re-training. First, we must reform eligibility requirements so our farmers do not have to face complete devastation before they -- or their families -- are able to find alternative means of support. Second, we must give them real re-training possibilities. This needs to be two-tiered, we must provide quick, short-term training to develop the worker, the community and Iowa. Finally, we must support the need for re-training programs. Together, Congress, the states and the dislocated workers must work to rebuild our nation, particularly the rural areas which have been devastated by our agriculture economy.



27

Mr. FRANK. Mr. Hodgson.

STATEMENT OF HON. BERKLEY BEDELL. A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF IOWA, AS PRESENTED BY **CLAYTON HODGSON**

Mr. Hodgson. I am Clayton Hodgson. The statement I read is Mr. Bedell's statement:

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for allowing me to have my statement read. I am sorry that a prior commitment prevents me from attending, and I want you to know I appreciate this opportunity to present some of my concerns in regard to the dislocated farmer. I commend you for this examination of how the Job Training Partnership Act can better serve the needs of our dislocated farmers.

Here in the Midwest, we are coming to view the seriousness of the agriculture economy as a normal way of life—we face it each and every day. It will get worse, not better. This past year the JTPA Title III dislocated worker programs were a godsend to our dislocated farmer seeking a new way of life. Unfortunately, this job is just beginning. With this coming winter, we are going to be overrun with farmers who are awaiting the completion of their last burvest. We have to be ready to assist them.

I have checked with some of the Service Delivery Areas in the Sixth Congressional District and I find them anticipating the needs and willing to tackle this challenge. However, past experience points out several weak areas.

Funding is a major problem, of course. Appropriations for JTPA Title III programs passed the House of Representatives on October 2nd with a \$121 million re-duction for fiscal year 1986. It is anticipated that the 1985 level of enrollments will be maintained due to the carryover of a large amount of unspent funds from fiscal year 1985. The Department of Labor has testified that this carryover is the result of JTPA finding that the average cost of retraining a worker under this program is turning out to be lower than originally anticipated. However, we are also finding that the dislocated farmer's needs are far different from the dislocated worker from industry.

There are several reasons why our farmers need more service before they are ready to enter the job market. First, there is the severe emotional impact not only of facing unemployment, but in many cases of leaving land which has been in their family for generations. Most of our farmers have worked the land all of their lives and have no identifiable skills for other walks of life, and it takes longer to identify their additional talents and skills and retrain them. It is also a problem of attitude adjustment: from being their own boss to learning basic principles of employee-employer relationships. They have no verifiable record of employment and are finding tough competitors in experienced workers from industry. Finally, JTPA is finding that the bulk of these farmers are in the 50-to-60-year age group, the most difficult age for both retraining and rehiring.

need is immediate. They have no severance pay. They cannot draw unemployment. They must obtain immediate employment or seek public assistance. It is quite ironic that our food producers are now relying on food stamps. JTPA admirably met the tests of serving the needs of the dislocated farmer this

past year. We can already project the number will increase. We have learned that the needs of this applicant requires greater time and special assistance.

And we come back to the harsh reality that the funds are cut. We are in a period where we must be fiscally responsible, and theref r there is little hope of additional funding. Indeed, we can only hope we do not h, ve to sustain further cuts. Therefore, we must make each dollar count and see that the dislocated farmer gets a fair advantage. I strongly support this reexamination of JTPA Title III programs to make doubly sure that the farmer is counted. Thank you again, Mr. Chairman, for allowing me to voice my support for your

hearing, and for our farmers, here today.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you. I appreciate both of our colleagues asking that they be represented here. It is useful to know that if legislation is needed Senator Harkin and Mr. Bedell will be able to work together.



Unlike dislocated workers from industry, when our farmers lose their land, their

The other point I want to underline, as Mr. Hodgson read on behalf of Mr. Bedell, is that in the JTPA there is no provision for living expenses. There is no stipend.

As you point out, industrial workers, service industry workers, are much more likely to have unemployment compensation. A farmer who has not been given a chance to get into that system, that is a problem to be looked at because you have a family to feed and basic payments to make. Training is useful, but if there is no basic income support, the training isn't necessarily going to do you much good. We do have to look at that. Questions?

Mr. NIELSON. I would ask one question of the gentleman from Congressman Bedell's office. Do you believe the same principles apply to trade adjustment assistance? Should there be training readjustment assistance as well as JTPA?

Mr. HODGSON. I am not sure I understand the question fully, but I think that——

Mr. NIELSON. Let me rephrase it. Typically if an industry such as a steel plant cuts back on employment, if they can show that that is trade-related, they have the Trade Readjustment Act, and workers can receive training under that program. It is a little more direct, does give a stipend, covers a shorter period of time, and they are paid throughout that 18-month period a subsistence allowance along with it. It is intended primarily for industries adversely affected by imports. But agriculture can also be affected by trade.

So I wonder if you feel we should try to address that issue as well.

Mr. Hopgson. I really can't address that question. I just don't know.

Mr. FRANK. The gentleman makes a good point. If you would yield to me for a second.

Mr. NIELSON. Yes.

Mr. FRANK. Trade adjustment is triggered, of course, if you lose your job because imports increase to the United States. In agriculture, the problem is often that exports are undercut by the same unfair competition and if that is the case we should treat a subsidy that leads to decreased American exports the same as a subsidy that leads to increased imports. That is a point we ought to be looking into.

Mr. NIELSON. We just had that extended another 45 days, I think. I think it will be extended. It needs to be phased out for budgetary reasons over a period of time but it has been very help-ful to the smokestack industries. Frankly, agriculture has been just as hard hit as the steel and copper industries.

But that may be one way to fill in with JTPA and I will ask the same question of the JTPA people to see if there could be a wedding of these two programs to help out on some of the problems you mentioned.

Mr. FRANK. I thank you both very much for joining us and for your interest.

Our next panel consist of two former farmers and I apologize in advance if I mispronounce your names. I will pronounce them the way we do in Massachusetts: Mr. Larry Broich and Mr. William Knutson.

56-292 0 - 86 - 2



Have I mispronounced one name that is unrecognizable or did we miss someone for some other reason?

Mr. BROICH. You did real well.

Mr. FRANK. Is Mr. Knutson here?

Perhaps he was held up, but if he joins us later, we will hear him.

Mr. Broich.

STATEMENT OF LARRY BROICH, FORMER FARMER FROM LEON, IA

Mr. BROICH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, for allowing me to express my opinion on JTPA.

I recently attended Creston College this fall, or last winter, and I went through the JTFA Program. I have went through the whole gamut of fighting bankruptcy and going into different jobs. I am still presently farming and I might consider semifarming this next year, but getting a job off the farm is the primary goal I have.

My JTPA class consisted of 11 people. They were all displaced agricultural personnel. One person discontinued the class after about 3 days and frankly they still have quite a few problems down there now. Our class started and after a week we all thought maybe this was just another program to ease somebody's conscience, but we had a psychologist come in and talk to us. They explained what the program was going to try and do for us, but it was our responsibility to make it work.

After that, the change in the class was unbelievable. The instructors, the whole thing started to gel. People found out what their personalities were, what their abilities were and how they could use these abilities someplace else. They learned how to write their own résumés, conduct job interviews, and be able to control them. The class was a plus for us right from the start.

I recently called all my classmates this last week and talked to them all, or most of them anyway. A couple were unavailable because of jobs. One family were college-educated people that were close to getting their college degree, but started farming. I talked to the boy the other night and he said, "I didn't believe I could go back to school," but he has. He is going down to Maryville now and his wife is going to Creston. He had 12 hours to complete his education. It is a family farm operation.

He had nothing but praise for the JTPA Program.

 $\mathbf{34}$

The others all have jobs, some of the jobs are not what they really want, but they have the confidence that they will find the job they want. The confidence is the whole key.

From despair we have had so many things—we were afraid to make decisions anymore. We thought, "Heck, everything we did was wrong the last few years." We found out it wasn't all our fault and still maintain it wasn't.

The importance of the program for us is giving us a chance to find out what we can do. In my case I was lucky enough that I will be able to probably live on the farm. I think there is a lot more that could be done. People found, their confidence back, like all these people I have talked to. They say, "Hey, I am going to make it." Before that, they didn't really know.



I think your guidelines are a little wrong. You people wait until we are clear down and out and it would be a lot better if we could get a transition-type deal where maybe we could run it on a debtto-asset ratio. If you were in danger of going under in a few years or even a year, you could be qualified to go into this program.

A little bit on the farm credit. I have to throw this in. I think it should be left to go. That is the wrong thing probably for a farmer to say, if the debts are way over the top of the heads, and it is just like a skyscraper, you can only build it so high and it is going to fall. This is going to happen regardless, but have a program like JTPA in there to try to kind of cushion the blow and then have a program where the Government takes over or something that these people can go back on the farm, maybe give them seven acres of their homestead. This is the biggest concern of all the farmers is the homestead.

Then after 5 years if they can buy it back from the Government or something, fine, it will work, fellas, it will work. Fifty percent of the people who went through the JTPA Program probably would go into some other field because the heart is out of a lot of them. There is just no doubt about that. I think they would probably go to a different field of service and do well.

That is about all I have to say. I thank you very much for allowing me to come and express my opinions to you.

I do believe the JTPA Program is very, very important. I think that more people should be allowed to go into it. The guidelines mainly should be raised a little bit so if you are forced out of the farming business at least you got a place to go. So many think this is the end of the world and frankly it is not. Like some say, it is a privilege to farm. I guess it probably is that.

But I think with this type of program maybe some could commute. It is not a big deal anymore. You can get on a plane in Chicago in the morning and if you work there, or Kentucky or wherever, or New York, maybe and leave the family back on the farm, we don't need more empty farm steads out here. We have taxes to pay and schools to support. Your businesses also will go down otherwise.

I guess I could go on and on, but I am going to give back the floor to you. If there are any questions or if I can do anything for you people, I would be glad to answer.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you.

We will hear from Mr. Knutson and then ask questions of both of you.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM KNU'I SON, FORMER FARMER FROM OMAHA, NE

Mr. KNUTSON. I am Bill Knutson and I live in Dunlap, IA. I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak.

I farmed for 23 years and gave it up. I found out about JTPA and I_{---}

Mr. NIELSON. We are having difficulty hearing you.

Mr. FRANK. Let me set up that microphone a little better.

Mr. KNUTSON. Can you hear me now?

Mr. NIELSON. Good.



Mr. KNUTSON. I owned my farm for 23 years and I would give up because of the old story. Anyway, I——

Mr. NIELSON. Can you heat him in the back?

Mr. FRANK. Move your paper so you can look at it and get the mike up there at the same time. That will do it.

Mr. KNUTSON. All right.

Everyone wants to hear me, I guess.

Anyway, we had to give up the farming and I didn't have very good luck at finding jobs. Some weren't hiring anymore or whatever or not enough money.

So I looked into the paper and then they agreed, JTPA agreed to help me out and I enrolled in the Universal Technical School here in Omaha, and I took up refrigeration. I am about to graduate from there and I have all kinds of opportunities now, I mean, even some with big people, Montgomery Wards. I might have to relocate, but it is there for me.

There are places here in Omaha and so that is really all I can say is what it has done for me and I hope it can be passed on to some of the others that will follow me in this particular situation.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Knutson follows:]



November 14, 1985 TO: Congress of the United States House of Representatives Employment and Housing Subcommittee of the Committee on Government Operations FROM: William D. Knutson

RE: The Job Training Partnership Act and Farmers

My name is William D. Knutson and I live in Dunlap, Iowa. I want to thank you very much for the opportunity to speak about JTPA and the Farmer. Up to a year and a half ago I was a farmer and had been for 23 years, basically all of my life. Farming gave me many good things, especially the means to give my children the education I never had. I have put two girls through nursing school, and a boy through the University of Nebraska, and another boy is currently attending Nebraska University. Even when times got rough starting 4 years ago I still managed to provide for my family.

I never dreamed I would loose my farm and my lifetime of hard work along with it. At 48 years of age I found myself back at square one. Job hunting yielded as much as my fields did during a drougat. After 6 months of looking I realized I had nothing to offer of any value.

I had always had an interest in refrigeration, air conditioning and heating but had no formal training. At the advice of a friend I contacted Universal Technical Institute in Omaha to look at getting the proper education. The school appeared to be exactly what I needed and was very highly recommended. I decided that this was what I wanted.

So, what does JTPA have to do with all of this? Without the assistance of JTPA I would be still pounding the pavement looking for a job. JTPA has assisted tremendously with my educational costs so I can continue to meet my day-to-day obligations while attending school. At 48 I find myself with a promising future ahead of me thanks to the fine people at U.T.I. and JTPA. I will soon be graduating and I have opportunities you would not believe ahead of me. I am looking forw rd to repaying, through my taxes, what JTPA has given me.



. .



What a difference a year makes.

I only have two suggestions to improve JTPA. The first is to better inform the public of its existance. I found out about JTPA through a small article in the newspaper. To me it should be front page news.

The second suggestion is that a heavy emphasis be put on retraining farmers using schools like U.T.I. The training at these schools, in my opinion, is best suited for people like me who need training but cannot spend two or three years getting it. I know several farmers in situations similar to mine that could benefit from the combination of JTPA and these private vocational schools.

In closing, I want to thank you very much for listening to me and I hope that this will in some way help those who follow me.

Mr. FRANK. Mr. Lightfoot, would you like to start with questions?

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Larry, the first question is for you. You have been through the whole gamut, as you said, and I can detect, I think, a bit of confidence in your voice and your attitude which is commendable under the circumstances that you have been through.

My perception is that a lot of people who are involved in agriculture, and it has been their lifestyle, this is one of the big problems from the very beginning, that you just feel like you are not worth anything, that you don't have anything to sell.

Is that a correct perception or not?

Mr. BROICH. Oh, yes, the whole class was that way. One of the ladies, she was a farm wife, she was really backward, I mean, as far as being able to think she could do things. She just thought, "Well, I am a cook and that is it." Now she is keeping medical records at the hospital, that is what she started out with; and now she is a receptionist and she is a perfect receptionist. We could all see it right away.

At the end of 9 weeks this program had people sit right up in the middle of class and tell you exactly what is wrong with you, what bothers you and what is the matter with this person, and the guy says, "Thanks a lot for helping me out," it is a whole different deal.

You are dealing with very proud people here. Just to get them to

go to the class is going to be tough. Mr. LIGHTFOOT. That was what I wanted to get to. The basic problem as I see it is to get farmers to come in the first place and say, "I do need some help."

How do we do that? How do we get the word out?

38

Mr. BROICH. I think through public meetings and maybe have somebody like myself talk to them. If you haven't been through it-you can have all the psychology degrees in the world and know everything, but if you haven't been through this thing, it is something to deal with, and, men, we have a problem coming up that



you won't believe. This thing is going to snowball and it is going to be unbelievable.

We can see it coming. We have said it for years and it is there. We were locked into high-interest rates. We couldn't get cut and we are done. The debt gets so high, you might as well face the fact. It is there, we won't get rid of it.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. You mentioned guidelines a couple of times in your statement. If the guidelines were different and you could have maybe been involved in this type of program before you got down financially as far as you did, would that have been an advantage, and if so, how do we need to change the guidelines so that you can qualify earlier?

Mr. BROICH. In my case, it really was. I knew a year ago. My bankruptcy was last spring, but I knew a year in advance this was going to happen. I am a facts-and-figures person, I guess. I found this out at school in the JTPA Program.

I could see the handwriting on the wall and I knew I had to be ready. So that is probably answering your question; a year.

These people that are left on the farms are not stupid. They are pretty sharp people. They watch what they are doing.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. How would you suggest that the guidelines be changed so that using your own situation you could have gotten into the program earlier, for example?

Mr. BROICH. The main fact will be to get the guys to come, I would say the lenders, if a man is in danger and it is easy to see if your debt-to-asset ratio, supposedly the magical figure is 2 to 1, if they get to 3 to 1 or something like that, or use the suggestions of a lender that this man might be in trouble. What if you spend \$1,000 on the person and help him out? Maybe before he gets so far down, he might go to town and get a job.

It is pride. It is a farmer, and, well, FHA's guidelines up to a few years ago were that you had to be a full-time farmer before you could even get help. So you take it in that perspective, give this man a shot before he is down.

When you are clear down and they have the gavel up to sell your stuff off, it is too late.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Which, if you could get into the program sooner, would alleviate some problems that Mr. Nielson and Mr. Frank mentioned earlier that you wouldn't need that stipend because you still have some income from the farm and you could go from there.

It is my understanding that the guidelines today are that if you worked an hour a week or if you are maybe looking after your neighbor's cattle, you are considered employed so you don't qualify as unemployed. That doesn't seem fair to me.

Mr. BROICH. Well, it is a nitpicking rule, is the way I would call it. You are going to see more. I think if you could get these people into a transition program, that would be the thing. You can't just go out—you can, but you don't. You can't go out and tell a person, "Hey, your lifestyle, the way you lived it, is over: fine."

"Hey, your lifestyle, the way you lived it, is over; fine." But if you tell him that, "Look, we might have to, we are going to have to do something different, this can't go on, but go into this program and come back and talk to me," you know, I think you will probably have to tell a person he will have to go into it. But we didn't know. I read it in the paper, about the JTPA Program. I



am one for education anyhow. I will try anything to get a little education, and that is why I went.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. From an ad you saw in the paper?

Mr. BROICH. From the ad I saw in the paper. Ginny Powers, she said come in and see, and she explained it and I said heck, it has got to be of some help, so it was a help to me.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I really don't know how to ask this. But how big of a factor is the pride, believing in individuality and so on that the farmers possess? It seems like at this point it may be a stumbling block; they are such proud people, they will not come forward to these programs.

Is that a big stumbling block? How should this program be sold to them so they don't perceive it as a handout or whatever it is that goes against that thing inside that says I am going to do this myself?

Mr. BROICH. First of all, I would change the name of the program. Dislocated worker is not—does not fit the farmer. Make it a farm program. Seems like the farmers are always taking a cut off of something else, even our own Government program where we get our money from our Government programs, ASCS office and all, we are in with the Food Stamp Program, you know. We shouldn't be.

It should be a separate deal. FHA is a Farmers' Home Administration, but it finances how many thousands of homes in the cities? Our people in FHA are swamped with the farm program, but they have also got the program of the worker in the city buying him a house. Here is this poor old boy behind the FHA desk, with a farm program here, and then we have a city worker program here and it isn't the same.

There is a whole different gamut of guidelines to follow from a farmer to a city worker.

It is probably unfair to the city worker. He sees the combines, the house, and he says I am living in a little apartment and here he lives there, but they don't understand it. There are people right in Leon, IA, and Creston, IA, saying hey, you deserve everything you got. We might deserve something, but we didn't deserve it all.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I agree.

There is an obvious difference between you fellas, you represent two differentiations. Bill, you have been on the farm basically for a large portion of your life. Now you find that you are making this transition.

Did you share somewhat the same mental problems and anguish that Larry went through?

Mr. KNUTSON. Exactly the same thing. It is very hard, especially when you get turned down when you apply for all these jobs. And I was in deep. There was no other thing to do but to give it up, you know.

Your debt gets so far ahead of you you cannot be helped.

This program worked real good for me because all I could ever do was get a part-time job and go to school and there was a little help and my wife worked some, so we got along good.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Gentlemen, thank you very much for your testimonv.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

37

Mr. FRANK. Mr. Nielson.

Mr. NIELSON. Mr. Broich said he learned about JTPA in the paper. How did you learn about it?

Mr. KNUTSON. From the newspaper. Just a little article.

Mr. NIELSON. You saw it in the newspaper as well.

Mr. KNUTSON. Yes.

Mr. NIELSON. How could we better promote it so other people could learn about it and so on? Could we do a public service announcement over the radio to you? Would that be helpful?

Mr. KNUTSON. Yes, I think that would help. I believe the technical schools should, you know, they offer other kinds of plans of assistance. They ought to have that to mention, too. But special notice to the farmers, yes, and to lenders, also.

Mr. NIELSON. Congressman Bedell mentioned we should trigger it earlier; in other words, not wait until the foreclosure notice is there but instead, wait only until there are negative cash-flow balances; or critical debt-to-asset ratios, as you mentioned.

Do you think that is a good approach? Mr. BROICH. That is the only approach. There are too many people now on the farm hoping it will go away. The Farm Credit System is sitting there hoping this problem will go away.

It is not going to go away.

My advice to anybody is to attack the problem, don't sit back and just sit there and wait for things to happen. With this program they have got a means to attack the problem.

Mr. NIELSON. When you first went into JTPA to find out about the program in response to this ad, they were very helpful to you, I understand.

Mr. BROICH. Yes.

Mr. NIELSON. How could they expand their services and make them a little more easily available and how could they improve the services? Do you have suggestions for them to either improve their approach or to disseminate the information better?

Can you offer suggestions on that?

Mr. BROICH. I think just the times are going to dictate a different approach. When things were relatively calm, we were on the brink, we were the first ones, but by getting people through the program they are going to be able to help themselves now.

You know, you call a family farm coalition meeting and r.y gosh, there will be hundreds of people there. Well, they should have a meeting like that and explain the program to them, what it will do for them, or what it is supposed to do.

Nothing will do anything for anybody if they don't make up in their mind that they have a problem and you know, some people will-we are not going to reach some. But the ones we reach it will help them very much.

Mr. NIELSON. How many farmers have taken advantage of JTPA, at least in this section of Iowa now? You mentioned 11, that was the first group.

Mr. BROICH. Yes.

Mr. NIELSON. How are things going now, are there more there? Mr. BROICH. You mean needing the program?

Mr. NIELSON. Yes, are there more in the college at Creston?



Mr. BROICH. There hasn't been another program, as I understand. But as far as need for the program, you bet, there are people calling me to come to talk to church groups and this kind of thing, because they knew I went through it. Everybody kind of watched. I got questioned on the street, what do you do there? We said, "Well, if you get a chance go to the program and it don't cost you anything to go."

That is the best deal, because everybody is broke. They don't have any money.

Mr. NIELSON. What are you doing now?

Mr. BROICH. I am currently farming which I probably would keep doing on a small scale, but I have a job with a new glass company in Lamoni and frankly, they have been waiting a month for me to try and get the crops out. I went in to talk to them the other day and they say, hey, no problem; when you get done come on in. They are very understanding.

I think we have a lot of sympathy. Maybe through all this mess, people are trying to help the family farm.

Mr. NIELSON. There is a real partnership between the company and the training.

Mr. BROICH. Yes, definitely.

Mr. NIELSON. What are you doing now, Mr. Knutson?

Mr. KNUTSON. I pick up temporary work.

Mr. NIELSON. You pick up temporary work while you go to technical college?

Mr. KNUTSON. Yes. I am there most of all in the days. Of course my wife works.

Mr. NIELSON. What area are you looking at, what area of employment do you want to head for?

Mr. KNUTSON. Refrigeration.

Mr. NIELSON. Refrigeration, I see.

Mr. KNUTSON. Heating, of course, and air-conditioning.

Mr. NIELSON. I commend you both for coming forward. I have no further questions at this time.

Mr. FRANK. Just a couple for me.

Mr. Knutson, you indicated you thought at the end of your course things looked good for you, there were prospects, retailers and others had been interested. When you complete the course you will be able to get full-time work in the area you are working for?

Mr. KNUTSON. Absolutely. I should have brought a letter, one from Montgomery Wards, I could have showed it to you.

Mr. FRANK. I would just say it is an argument in favor of expansion of the program, because as Mr. Broich said, a lot of people were skeptical at first. The Government doesn't always have a reputation for doing things well.

But the fact is we must get the word out. Sometimes Government programs can be useful.

I think it is importent for you to have that sense and also as you show the success you gentlemen and others are having, we can expect more applicants for the program. We better be ready for it. That is probably what bothers me because I have to tell you now, if things go the way they look like they are going, this program will be cut next year as are almost all programs. I think this is an argu-



ment for us trying to be discriminating when we cut the budget and cut some things, but not necessarily everything.

My sense is because this has been a successful program to some extent, other people will want to go into it.

Mr. Broich, you are out speaking about it. My guess is next time they have the class, they will have more people applying than they can handle. You both mentioned pride as a factor, American farmers are the victims of their success, not of failures. We are not talking about people who are lousy farmers, we are talking about people who are good farmers and are subject to circumstances beyond their control. It is important to build people's confidence. If we get a situation where people like you take advantage of the program, find employment, and we begin to build up people's confidence and they apply to the program and they are turned down, it would seem to me we would be making a big mistake. We would hope to have an adequate level of funding so people stimulated to join this program by your successes can be taken care of.

I thank ou both very much for testifying. I know it is not easy when you have been the victim of adverse circumstances to come and share them, but by sharing them you have helped a lot of those people and you have gone through the program and it is working well for both of you.

I appreciate your willingness to come and share your experiences so other men and women will find it easier. It is a very nice thing you have done. Thank you.

Next we will have Mr. Philip Smith, director, Division for Human Resources Coordination, Iowa Office of Planning and Programming, accompanied by three local service delivery area directors, D. Eugene Epperson, Jerry Smith, and Gary Woodward.

We will move quickly here, so we want Mr. Smith, Mr. Epperson, Jerry Smith, and Mr. Woodward.

What we will do is hear all your statements, and then questions will come from us after you finish. That way we avoid duplicative questions and you can all comment.

Let's start with Philip Smith, director, Division for Human Resources Coordination, Iowa Office of Planning and Programming.

STATEMENT OF PHILIP C. SMITH, DIRECTOR, DIVISION FOR HUMAN RESOURCES COORDINATION, IOWA OFFICE OF PLAN-NING AND PROGRAMMING

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Lightfoot, Mr. Nielson. Welcome to Iowa.

As indicated in the introduction, I am director of the human resources division within the Office for Planning and Programming. In that capacity, I serve as the State director for the JTPA Act and therefore am quite involved in many of the activities we are discussing today.

I am pleased to be here this morning to discuss with you how the programs funded through JTPA have been or can be of assistance to farmers. As you are aware, Iowa, along with several other States, is undergoing some radical changes in the agricultural sector of our economy. High interest rates, the overvaluation of the dollar and low farm prices have had a major impact upon our econ-



omy, our farms, and the families and communities depending upon farm income.

While the intent of this hearing is not directed at the farm economy per se, it is important to understand the severity of the problem in order to appreciate the task ahead of those who are being asked to retrain farmers for new occupations. If I may, I would like to give you a brief overview of Iowa's farm economy.

The national farm crisis is often typified by using Iowa as the example. Nationally 12 percent of the farms are technically insolvent and on the verge of bankruptcy. The U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA] estimates a 30-percent decrease in net farm income in 1985. Although no figures are available for 1984 or 1985, Iowa net farm income was \$17,680 in 1981, \$7,376 in 1982, and a negative \$1,891 in 1983. Coupled with continued decreasing land values, low prices, and high interest rates, the situation gets worse and Iowa farmers are being forced to liquidate.

A January 1985 Farm Journal poll indicated 42 percent of Iowa farmers face debt trouble and half of them are at "high risk." In January 1985, the Iowa Legislature, Senate Concurrent Resolution 4, declared an economic emergency and during the session launched legislation in response to the crisis. The Governor, along with financial institutions and rural agencies and organizations, initiated special programs to help farmers cope with the failures.

Bankruptcy rates for Iowa farmers continue to rise. According to a report ci the Director of Administrative Filings of Bankruptcy, bankruptcy filings for the year ending June 1983 were 2,413 and for the year ending June 1984—2,744. This does not include farm foreclosures. Also indicative of the crisis is the number of bank closings. In 1983, there were no closings, in 1984 there were 2, and already in 1985 there have been 11. According to a Federal Reserve study:

During the period from mid-1983 to mid-1984, the ratio of delinquent loans-to-capital assets in Iowa banks rose 7 percent to 32 percent—the greatest increase of any state.

It is projected that bankruptcy rates will increase from the historic 3 percent to 18 percent in the next year. The Federal Reserve reports that Iowa was the highest State in the region in reporting declining repayment rates, monthly renewals and extensions of loans. Nationally, the levels of new charge-offs of loans in the first half of 1984 approach 0.7 percent of farm loans outstanding. And Iowa exceeds the national average with 0.9 percent.

These conditions are amplified by the fact that Iowa showed a drastic reduction in farm land value. Between 1983 and 1984, land decreased in value by \$334 per acre, or 19.8 percent. Since 1981, land prices decreased 37 percent, returning the price to the 1976 level. Inventories on all livestock are down and the Iowa Livestock & Reporting Services reported in August that cattle inventories are at the lowest since 1931.

A recent poll conducted by Iowa State University, the Iowa Department of Agriculture, and the Iowa Crop & Livestock Reports Service in March 1935, indicated that 11 percent of Iowa farm operators have a debt-to-asset ratio of over 70 percent.



An additional 21 percent have a debt-to-asset ratio of 40 to 70 percent. Iowa's proportion of farmers that have an estimated debt-to-asset ratio of 40 percent or above has steadily increased over the previous years. Iowa banks reported in February this year that 18 percent of the farm loans had significant problems in the repayment of loans.

Agriculture and financial economists believe farmers with a debt-to-asset ratio over 70 percent in the current economy are insolvent and have little hope for survival. Those over 40 percent are at "high risk."

solvent and have little nope for survival. Those over to percent are at "high risk." The poll also indicated that the farmers surveyed experienced a significant loss in net worth—\$114,000 or a 24.8-percent decrease since 1984. Assets declined 18 percent and debts increased by 3.2 percent, but non-real-estate debt rose 13.2 percent. In 1984, only 5 percent of the sample had debts greater than 70 percent of their assets. By 1985, 11 percent of the sample operators will have fallen into this category.

Iowa also continues to feel the effects of adverse weather conditions. The 1983 drought had an estimated \$608 million loss in economic activity. According to the study, "Impact of 1983 Drought in Iowa," Daniel Otto, June 1, 1984, the \$608 million represents job losses equivalent to an estimated 9,933 employees. The multiplier of 1.91 implies that for each 10 jobs lost in the agriculture sector, an additional 19 jobs are lost in the nonagriculture sector of Iowa's economy. Current drought conditions in parts of the State indicate additional job and economic losses.

Economists and financial experts point out that this continued erosion of the farm base will have a disastrous effect on the rural communities. For example, Iowa State University points out that suppliers of feed, seed, fertilizers, and other farm units are highly vulnerable to losses from accounts receivable. They point out that losses of 5 percent of sales would put 50 percent of that group out of business. So while we are focusing on the farms per se, we also have to consider the needs of agribusinesses and those dependent on farmers as consumers.

Unlike most other dislocated workers, farmers do not have unemployment insurance coverage to allow for financial assistance during the transition period in seeking new employment. Farm families seek a variety of methods to hold on to the farm. In a March 1985 rural farm poll conducted by the Cooperative Extension Service, 28 percent of the 1,900 farm families polled indicated they sold possessions or cashed in insurance policies, 27 percent postponed medical care and 22 percent took off-farm employment.

Eighteen percent reported purchasing more items on credit and 13 percent reported they had let their life insurance lapse. Ten percent reported they were unable to pay property taxes.

What this means for Iowa is a number of things. One, during this coming year it is expected that we can lose as many as 12,500 farms. That translates into 24,800 dislocated farmers and farm family members who will seek new employment.

The loss of these farms means a loss of 992 rural businesses. This will mean a loss of 24,800 rural "town" jobs. That will create a rural unemployment loss of 49,000 people in need of jobs, retraining or relocating.



The cost for 1 year of retraining and relocating these people will cost in excess of \$50 million.

The State in short, has been swept by the rampant change in the nature of the economy over the last 2 to 3 years, something we are not accustomed to in this State, and something we are having difficulty in finding the response that will be right.

Turning to JTPA, we recognize that JTPA is not a "farm program," nor was it necessarily designed to serve farmers, an increasing number of farmers, farm organizations, and community groups are looking toward this program for assistance.

Specifically, interested parties are looking for help in defining new career goals and options, counseling, job search assistance, retraining, and relocation. Perhaps one of the reasons the program is popular is that it is one of the few Federal programs that has any flexibility in it, the flexibility needed to reach this diverse population group.

In response to this situation, we were asked by Governor Branstad in April of 1984 to seek new ways of helping farmers via JTPA. We then rewrote the definitions of a dislocated worker, so that self-employed individuals who were being foreclosed upon, unable to secure credit, or had filed a bankruptcy petition were eligible for the program. We were the first State in the Nation to go out and declare farmers eligible and since then, several States have copied that lead.

Using this title III definition, and the enrollment criteria for title IIA of JTPA, we have been able to serve approximately 318 farmers since July 1, 1984. We have done this through our network of 16 dislocated worker centers, our 16 title IIA grant recipients, and 2 small discretionary projects funded with title III carryover funds directed at farmers.

Our efforts to date, while moderately successful, need to be intensified as we face the major problem awaiting us with respect to the large number of agriculture-related dislocations. This is $wh_{\mathcal{T}}$ we were pleased to receive a \$500,000 title III discretion grant from the Secretary of Labor to retrain dislocated farmers. This grant will enable us to serve about 385 farmers in a 28 county area, beginning December 1, 1985.

Additionally, we are looking now at targeting a portion of the 8 percent funds provided through section 123 of JTPA for State education and coordination grants toward farmers. We feel this section of the law will enable us to focus on three areas of training vitally important to the State.

First, through the coordination provisions of section 123, we feel we can undertake the development of a statewide program designed to help farmers who are likely to remain in farming upgrade their manageria! skills. Farmers today and in the future will require intense and professional management techniques. JTPA should be a part of this process.

Second, there needs to be a greater coordination of the resources available to assist dislocated farmers make the transition from farming to some other form of employment. JTPA, with its network of private industry councils, administrative entities and educational institutions, should play a greater role in this area. We



are currently exploring potential actions the State can take to encourage this coordination and targeting of resources.

Right now many people and many organizations in the State want to get involved and do have things to offer, but there does not seem to be a point of leadership and we are now attempting to mobilize that at this time, and JTPA will play a major role in that.

Finally, under this same section, we are studying ways to target some of the money to serve farmers and other agribusinesses. Section 123(c)(1) of the act allows the Governor to use 25 percent of these resources on noneconomically disadvantaged participants requiring special assistance. Certainly many farmers will fall into this category.

As you have anticipated, there are problems in attempting to serve farmers via the JTPA employment and training system. From my perspective, I believe the major areas include: One, difficulties in the identification of farmers who are eligible

One, difficulties in the identification of farmers who are eligible and are likely to benefit through such a program. When a plant closes, there is much publicity about it and peer group support from the affected workers is a rallying point. No such system exists for farmers residing in rural areas. They often are reluctant to even talk about their problems, let alone seek Government assistance.

There is significant signs that there are major family stresses in many of these rural communities and families. Reported instances of family violence and divorce rates and things like this are showing that this has had a major impact.

Many of these things go unreported and are hard to tabulate, but there are many anecdotal stories.

The second area is inability to intervene quickly enough. This was mentioned earlier. To help farmers make the transition less painful. While production workers can be enrolled in a title III activity once given a notice of layoff, even though that might be 6 to 12 months in the future, there is no easy way to enroll farmers before they are forced off their farms. Faster intervention can help many people prepare for new careers and still allow them to farm and support their families.

We get phone calls from people who want it but are not ready to leave farming. I think it is a must that we have to be able to intervene quicker than we can now, especially since JTPA does not have the means to provide allowances. There needs to be a form of income support for farmers.

The unemployed production worker who recently received a layoff notice may be able to draw unemployment benefits in this time. That is essential to support family obligations he or she may have.

In the farm situation they don't have that to draw upon. They have also lost all their resources or they are tied up in litigation. So we have a tremendous income need that we have to meet and that is a barrier to the program.

The third area is the difficulty in determining the elibility of farmers under both title IIA and title III. Income records and expense reports are very complicated for farm operators which makes it a frustratiung and time consuming process to determine eligibility.





And finally, four, the lack of JTPA funds to support a major, statewide retraining effort targeted toward dislocated agricultural workers. The JTPA system has been criticized on the national level for not spending its title III funds. This is not true in Iowa. For the 21-month period beginning October 1, 1983, and ending June 30, 1985, Iowa has spent 90.1 percent of the funds contracted. This could have been 100 percent, but we have committed over \$1 billion annually in State appropriated money to meet the match requirements because of our strong support for this type of program. To make the figures look better, we could have spent all our Fed-

To make the figures look better, we could have spent all our Federal funds first before tapping the State money. My point in bringing this up is to state clearly for the record that Iowa has used the money appropriated by Congress. This is not the time to cut money from this important effort. To make the figures look better we could have shown that all Federal moneys were spent and consequently we saved State money, but we elected not to do that.

My point is that this is the major rationale given in the Appropriations Committee in Congress for cutting the money. I want to make clear that that is not the case in Iowa. I would encourage you not to penalize States like Iowa, Nebraska, or other smaller States, because some of the larger ones have failed to spend the money that has been appropriated to them and allocated to them. There needs to be that kind of flexibility and discretion within the form used currently by the Department of Labor.

In closing, I would like to just offer a few suggestions for deliberation by this committee. First, in order to successfully serve this population, States and their local counterparts will have to develop more effective outreach systems if they hope to reach those in need. At the same time, they will need to be able to intervene earlier with their services, and to do a better job of coordinating activities with other related groups and programs.

Second, I believe JTPA elibility guidelines need to be liberalized to cut down on the amount of time and energy it takes to qualify someone for the program.

Third, Congress and the Department of Labor should target a major portion of the discretionary title III dollars to the agricultural sector of the economy. If new training programs are being considered, targeting these efforts toward farmers should be made a priority. At a minimum, it should be clear that farmers are indeed eligible, and enrollment restrictions should be minimized.

Finally, I would suggest that the Secretary of Labor appoint a task force to specifically look at JTPA and its ability to serve displaced agricultural workers. This is not a midwestern problem. It is a national problem of growing concern to States from Maine to California. The Department of Labor should take the lead in clarifying ways and methods for JTPA to serve farmers and those dependent upon farming.

This agency should be encouraged to liberally interpret the statute to help States overcome some of the barriers in reaching those most in need. Under the new leadership of Secretary Brock and upon the urgency of Congress, we have high hopes of the Department's sensitivity to our Nation's agricultural economy, and the hundreds of thousands of individuals and families faced with unemployment because of it.



JTPA can and should be and will be important in the process of helping people through this difficult transitional period in their lives.

I thank you very much for the opportunity to share my thoughts with you this morning. I appreciate your interest in this subject, and I would be glad to assist in whatever way I can.

Thank you very much.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you, Mr. Smith.

Before we go to questions, we will hear from Mr. Epperson.

STATEMENT OF D. EUGENE EPPERSON, DIRECTOR, JTPA SERVICE DELIVERY AREA

Mr. EPPERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for allowing me to testify this morning. I will be rather brief and hopefully to the point.

Providing employment and training assistance to farmers in our eight-county area is a very difficult and frustrating task. Their employment and training needs are similar to those who have lost their jobs and must change occupations. However, their individual situations are vastly different than those who lose their jobs through plant closings or layoffs whereby you have a definite date of unemployment.

Some of the differences are as follows: One, they all live in the country and are not easily accessible—no public transportation; two, most are private business people who are employers—not employees; three, many have diversified farming operations; four, some have options such as reducing operations, selling land, livestock or equipment; five a few will stay living on the farm seeking jobs in town or with other farmers; six, others will leave the farm but not the rural community; seven, many will not accept general assistance or food stamps, and; eight, very few actually wish to leave farming.

We have found a very small need for training other than on-thejob training with private industry. Farmers tell us "we need immediate income to provide for our families." Only those who relocate or wish to change careers complotely are willing to accept institutional or job-seeking training and they need funds to support them while in training.

A number of farmers do not qualify for IIA funding because they or their wives have taken employment in town and that income is viewed separately from the farming operation. More farmers would be eligible if all of their income were compared against all of their losses. Title III funds are the primary source of dollars used to assist the farmers, and the more than 1,000 residents of our service delivery area who have lost their jobs due to permanent reductions and plant closings since July 1, 1984. This year's budget is woefully inadequate to fulfill these needs, while next year's budget is anticipated to be less than one-half of this year's appropriation. Specific funding with minimal restrictions on supportive services would appear to be the optimal solution to meeting farmers' needs in the area of employment and training through JTPA.

Thank you.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you. Mr. Jerry Smith.



STATEMENT OF JERRY SMITH, DIRECTOR, JTPA SERVICE DELIVERY AREA 14

Mr. JERRY SMITH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Service delivery area 14 of Iowa's JTPA Program is one of the most rural service delivery area's in the Nation, serving seven counties in southwestern Iowa. Efforts are currently being made to utilize title III of JTPA to assist the dislocated farmer population.

The problems in the farming community are well documented. Service delivery area 14 has experienced the effects of three bank closings in the past 18 months, accompanied with significant loss of income being generated the past 2 years. Estimates vary, with predictions of 10 percent to 20 percent of the farmers in our service delivery area becoming displaced.

Two areas of concern I wish to address today include: One, the definition of "dislocated farmer" at best is a vague status which is extremely difficult to classify. Where the farmer can be in several stages of liquidation, the question of when he in fact becomes eligible for service arises constantly. My suggestion is, by working through the Iowa State administrative entity and the Department of Labor, the definition be expanded to serve individuals who selfdeclare their status as dislocated farmers who are coeking transition to other employment.

Two, with an understanding of the lack of Federal resources available, I would cite the concern of funding considerations under JTPA. Of particular concern are substantial real cuts in title III and IIB which in our SDA directly affect programming capabilities at a time when demand for services are increasing. This is especially true in rural areas in general, which prevents farmers who become dislocated, from being counted in unemployment statistics, thus, not reflecting the need of area funding by formula.

My service area has unemployment rates that range in the area of 4 to 5 percent, very marginal. Yet we are seeing a lot of farmers who because they are not qualified for unemployment also are not qualified for unemployment statistics.

When it gets to the Federal funding formula, coming down from title III or title II, frankly our funding is somewhat marginal.

In summary, I don't think JTPA can be the solution to the farm problem. I don't think throwing additional dollars into the problem is enough. We have people working hard bringing light industry into our area doing a lot of economic development efforts. I think what we are looking at in our area is once that industry arrives and it is coming in, assisting farmers like Mr. Broich to make that transition is critical.

One of our assets is we have some excellent people. I think Mr. Broich is testimony to that.

Hopefully with some minor adjustments we can make the program work in our area. Thank you for this opportunity.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Jerry Smith follows:]





215 North Els CRESTON IC/XIA 50801

Testimony presented by: Jerry Smith, ITPA Service Delivery Area 14 Director, 215 North Elm, Creston, Iowa - "The Job Training Partnership Act and Serving Dislocated Farmers".

Service Delivery Area 14 of Iowa's JTPA Program is one of the most rural Service Delivery Area's in the nation, serving seven counties in Southwestern Iowa. Efforts are currently being made to utilize Title III of JTPA to assist the Dislocated Farmer Population.

The problems in the farming community are well documented. Service Delivery Area 14 has experienced the effects of three bank closings in the past 18 months, accompanied with significant loss of income being generated the past 2 years. (See Attachmen A). Estimates vary, with predictions of 10% to 20% of the farmers in our Service Delivery Area becoming displaced.

Two areas of concern I wish to address today include:

(1) The definition of "Dislocated Farmer" at best is a vague status which is extremely difficult to classify. Where the farmer can be in several stages of liquidation, the question of when he in fact becomes eligible for service arises constantly. My suggestion is, by working through the Iowa State Administrative Entity and the Department of Labor, the definition be expanded



5í

to serve individuals who self-declare their status as dislocated farmers who are seeking transition to other employment.

48

(2) With an understanding of the lack of Federal resources available, I would cite the concern of funding considerations under JTPA. Of particular concern are substantial real cuts in Title III and IIB which in our SDA directly effect programming capabilities at a time when demand for services are increasing. This is especially true in rural areas where, in general, prevents farmers who become dislocated, from being counted in unemployment statistics. thus, not reflecting the need of area funding by formula.

In summary, JTPA cannot and should not be considered a solution to the farm problem. It should also be recognized that additional dollars by itself v.ll not solve the problem. What must be done is a local effort to bring jobs into the area with economic development followed by utilization of JTPA funding to assist the dislocated farmer population into a more diversified labor force. This is the partnership required to make JTPA a truly successful program.



Attachment A Creston News Advertiser, Fall 1985

DPI says Ringgold County hardest-hit by economic times

This area of the state, particularly Runggold County, is hardest hit by the tough economic times according to statistics gathered by the Iowa Department of Public Instruction.

The study said about 15 percent of Iowa's population-432,795 people-are below the poverty level, based on 1983 tax data furnished by the Iowa Department of Revenue. In comparison, 29 percent of Ringgold County's population is below the poverty line, and 28 percent of Taylor County residuats are in the poverty calle very.

The area of Adair, Adams, The area of Adair, Adams, Clarke,Decatur, Montgomery, Ringgold, Taylor and Union counties as a whole lists an overall poverty percentice of 22, the worst section in the state, Northenstern and northwestern counties are close behind, with 21 percent. The best economic conditions seem to be in central lowa, with only about 12 percent of the population below the poverty level.

Criteria for determining poverty levels are provided by the U.S. Department of Labor and based on income level and family size. For example, for a family of eight, the criterion would be an appual income of \$17,850 or below.

The DPI uses poverty level statistics in distributing federal funds for vocational education programs. More than half of the federal vocational education funds coming into a state must be allocated to economically depressed areas.

The counties with the lowest percentage of their population classified as low income were Story (8 percent), Johnson (9 percent), Polk (10 percent) and Scott (10 percent). All are urban counties, containing the citics of Ames, Iowa City, Des Moines and Davenport, respectively.



Mr. FRANK. Thank you, Mr. Smith. Mr. Woodward.

STATEMENT OF GARY WOODWARD, DIRECTOR, JTPA SERVICE **DELIVERY AREA**

50

Mr. WOODWARD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Job Training Partnership Act Program legislation as cur-rently written does not lend itself easily to serving farmers in dis-treas. The other of lower in the attempt to interpret Department of Labor regulations, has determined that a farmer must be declared bankrupt, foreclosed upon or not able to receive a line of credit in order to be eligible for the Title III Dislocated Worker Program of the Job Training Partnership Act.

The title IIA eligibility guidelines are based on the last 6 months income and expenses. With some regularity, the last 6 month's financial picture is not reflective of the circumstances for the entire year. There can be a skewing of either income or expenses to excess.

If the farm economy sector is to be served, legislative change is needed to allow eligibility requirements to be more reflective of the entire financial picture.

Suggestions for change are as follows: One, title IIA eligibility requirements should be based on the last 12 months financial information instead of the last 6 months for self-employed applicants.

Two, the Department of Labor should standardize eligibility requirements for title III applicants who have been self-employed. This is necessary because the State of Iowa has had to make a decision on eligibility criteria without assistance from the Department of Labor. Historically, Iowa takes the more conservative approach in these situations. The effect has been to make title III practically useless to assist farmers and other self-employed individuals to obtain retraining.

There is another problem facing program operators who deal with farmers seeking services from the Job Training Partnership Act. Most applicants from the farm sector that we see are not seeking training or retraining for new jobs. They are trying to find employment in order to establish a cash-flow that will enable them to continue farming. This does not easily align with program constraints that operators must conform to.

The dilemma for the Congress and policymakers is to decide if they want the Job Training Partnership Act to be a primary vehicle to assist the farm sector.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you, gentlemen.

I have some phone calls that I have to make back to Washington, and I will ask Mr. Nielson to preside for a while but I just want to express my thanks to all of you for coming forward.

My leaving is not an indication that I am not interested, your testimony is very useful and we will be addressing these things that you have testified to.

Mr. NIELSON [presiding]. I congratulate you on your testimony and I will call on Congressman Lightfoot for questions, and I have a few after he is finished.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

First of all, this question is to you, Mr. Epperson, but maybe the rest of you want to jump in on it because you are out on the front line seeing this every day and working on it.

If I am hearing what I think I am hearing, one of the problems is definition of how people fit into the program, which is what one of the farmers said earlier.

If you were given a Big Chief tablet and a lead pencil and were allowed to sit down and write the definitions, what kind of definitions would you write that would allow an equitable way for getting people into the program?

I throw that out to all of you.

Mr. EPPERSON. I personally think Gary spoke for all of us concerning the counting of 1 year's income in determining eligibility. That certainly would make more people qualify throughout the year. Also when you take and separate farm income it caused them to become ineligible. You know, there are many farmers today who have already taken jobs in town.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Right.

Mr. EPPERSON. They have seen this coming. Their wives have taken jobs. They have taken jobs in town and are using the dollars to pay off the farm debt, yet they cannot count the income as total family income. They cannot offset losses with this income so they become ineligible under the biggest pot of money available and that is title II funds.

Mr. WOODWARD. An example of what happened 2 days ago in our office and how that affects people, we had a farmer come in wanting to know about the services, we talked with him. Last spring more than 6 months ago, which is our income determination guideline for title III, he bought his fertilizer and seed and paid for it, and the same morning that he came to town to see us, before he came to us he stopped and sold his beans-real poor planning. The guy wasn't aware, but had he been able to come and see us-when I would say to him you should have come to see us first, he said I don't have a choice, the beans have to go.

But the income received from the beans just blew him out of the water as far as any sort of eligibility for JTPA.

So expenses of more than 6 months ago have nothing to do with income at this point.

So the yearly picture is the guy is going to show a loss but the 6 month picture is he is way over the guidelines.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Is a year long enough? Should it be 2 years?

Mr. WOODWARD. Should be maybe, yes. Mr. LIGHTFOOT. The question that was addressed by the two gentlemen that preceded you gentlemen, they both responded to a newspaper ad to find out what services were available in the program. Do you have any ideas or thoughts on how we can do a better job of getting the word out that there is something available?

Again I address it to all three of you.

Mr. Epperson. The approach we have taken, and the gentleman is here in the room, is to hire a staff person, dislocated farmer staff person as we call him, if you will. That individual is charged with the responsibility of contacting every lending agency in our eightcounty area, all the bankers, et cetera, and identifying JTPA as a



source of referral that the bankers can make when they won't extend credit, foreclose, or naturally see that it is fairly obvious these folks are not going to make it.

Then that contact can serve as a referral back to JTPA. We think that is one good way to do it.

Otherwise I cannot speak for the other gentlemen but we have used ads, we worked through every organization that comes in contact with farmers and I just don't know how else we would spread the word any better actually.

Mr. JERRY SMITH. I would say we need to do a better job in marketing for this population. Traditionally I was involved with the CETA Program basically for its entire duration. Most of the structurally unemployed people are fairly familiar with services that are being provided, JTPA or CETA. This is a new population for us to work with. They are not aware that we exist in many cases and I think we have to do a much better job of marketing, whether it is through the newspapers, radio, contacting any institutions, and basically people that are coming in contact with farmers as they realize the situation as it is.

Mr. WOODWARD. We also work closely with the extension office throughout the State, locally, and in conjunction with them in community colleges and in our program we have offered career alternatives to farming workshops three times in the last 12 months.

Now, we have had four people show up at those workshops. I don't know if it is not enough advertising. I don't know if it is the problem that was mentioned about pride, that sort of thing.

I am not sure what or why we have not gotten more. I think we have made efforts but apparently not well enough yet, anyway.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. This is more an observation than a question. My sense of it is that I think it is pretty obvious we are dealing with a different type of people than the hourly wage earner who is accustomed, as has been pointed out, to the various benefits and this sort of thing, and that with a paycheck coming in, it is more certain, and you know when it will be cut off.

But here you are dealing with basically an independent business person who doesn't really look to those types of assistance.

One area that has established support groups, Mr. Woodward, is in your area. It is the Des Moines Area Community College, and looking through the testimony, they feel they can qualify people. But one other group, a mental health clinic, established support groups but they are discouraging farmers from going to JTPA, because they feel they won't qualify.

If we have that support in the private sector, it would seem maybe there is some way to join hands with those people and make the programs work together. Any ideas along that line?

Mr. JERRY SMITH. In our area, Congressman, we are starting to make progress in those types of areas and in getting back to some of the economic development efforts that are done locally.

We are starting to do some such things as labor surveys and attempting to find out just how many or what population we have available to work within our areas

available to work within our areas We have received a VISTA grant and we will have eight VISTA's in our area. They are basically local VISTA's which will help us do outreach and identification and so on of individuals.



There are several support groups out there. We are just needing to coordinate the services a little better.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Am I correct in what you are telling us then that, No. 1, identity is the big problem, who needs the service and who is available for it and defining just who they are so they can qualify.

Mr. EPPERSON. I think that is accurate.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. That is what you are facing in the field.

Mr. EPPERSON. Yes, that is accurate.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. The surrounding States have developed programs, Kansas has one, Nebraska has Farmers in Transition, I think they call it that and Minnesota now apparently has taken the lead in getting people into the program to make it work.

I know several of you mentioned money as being a problem and we certainly recognize that. But on the other side of the coin, I think it is important we get the most bang for the buck, and since there is a great degree of flexibility, such as in this particular program—I guess, Mr. Smith, I will direct this to you since you are the leader of the group here—why shouldn't Iowa take the bit in their mouths and run with it and be out right in front? Why has Minnesota moved out ahead of us apparently?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Well, I am not sure I would agree that Minnesota necessarily moved out ahead of us. They were able to secure a million-dollar title III discretionary grant last year which has allowed them to reach a population, especially in the southern part of the State. We did not have access to that. We did apply for funds, but did not receive any last year.

In dealing with the dislocated worker program, there is not a shortage of people eligible for the program. As I indicated in my testimony, we might have as many as 50,000 people that potentially could be eligible just because of the farm economy.

We also have a company, Rath's Packing in Waterloo, that closed and left 1,500 unemployed, John Deere let off another 480 production workers, Firestone in Des Moines is laying 500 people off—all these jobs are agriculture related. There is no shortage for trying to find participants with whom to work.

One of the first responses to your question is that in dealing with the program throughout the State, I think each one of the dislocated worker centers—all three of these gentlemen can affirm or deny this—have to make a list of priorities. They have plenty of people to enroll.

What we have not done in the State, and I think we need to do this, is to target on farmers because we know that will be a heavily impacted area for the next year. That is why we are looking at certain provisions under JTPA to do that now.

We expect that we will be doing that now. There is plenty of flexibility there. I don't think that is the fault of the law.

I think the critical problem is the lack of adequate money. We can talk about markets and we can talk about outreach and intake and so on, but when you get an area like Creston with a budget of \$50,000 to run a 12-month program, all those options don't mean a thing to them unless they have some money to do that. That is generally our problem.



I guess what scares us is that we will lose maybe up to a million dollars of our title III money simply because of the cut next year. We feel it is grossly unfair to the State. The reason given was that States did not spend the money. When you look individually at States, you will find that this is not necessarily true for the rural States.

From what I understand, California didn't spend any of its title III money in the first 9 months. So we are getting penaliz because of that. I think that is the adjustment that definitely has to be made somewhere along the line.

I think we have to take a more aggressive leadership role at the State level. We are trying to move into that. We have seen the figures. I gave you some of them.

We know what is going to happen in the next 2 years in this State. We have to start using whatever we can. Even though they might be inadequate, there are good provisions there and we need to use them.

A' the same time we need to keep the Congress informed.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. You mentioned Rath's and John Deere and some other layoffs, how does the Governor decide where he targets JTPA money? Does he target more toward the plant closings than he does to farmers?

What is the scenario behind making the decision of what funds you do have available and where they are targeted?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Generally, what we have done with the program under title III is to use the formula based in the law to distribute the money equitably to each of the 16 areas of the State.

tribute the money equitably to each of the 16 areas of the State. We have delegated the authority to each one of the private industry councils that oversee the dislocated worker program to decide what priorities they will have in using that money.

We have not taken any of the formula title III money and designated it for any particular company or group. What we have done is to use unspent carryover money from the previous year, for special projects. We did that for two farm projects last year, one in Creston, one in Sioux City. We are doing it this year for small projects, such as Ruth's, John Deere, and Firestone.

As far as the discretionary money from the Secretary of Labor is concerned, we have prepared and submitted applications based upon information available to us. That is where we received the \$500,000 grant this year. We opened the possibility to each of the service delivery areas to submit a grant application for funding from that source.

We had five applications which came in this year. They were submitted to the Secretary and turned down. We intend to rework them and resubmit them later.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I intend to ask the Labor witness about the title III money to see if we can get more targeted for the farm communities.

Now back to my question on Minnesota, I guess my perception is that where they may have stepped ahead of us is they have expanded their definition of who is eligible to come into the program.

Is there any movement along that line in Iowa? Will we expand the definition so that——

Mr. Philip Smith. Yes.



Mr. LIGHTFOOT. The State of Minnesota got by with it, so to speak. It got through DOL.

Is the State of Iowa behind something similar?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. We will rework the definition and, as I say, we were the first to use it. Other States copied our exact definition. That was a conservative definition.

We had to find something in the law that let us have a point of termination from farming. The law doesn't deal with the self-employed person.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Right.

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. So that a farmer doesn't get a layoff notice or, a notice of a plant closing. So we had to find something along that line. That is where we came up with that definition.

We think there are ways that we can more liberally interpret that and we will do that. But at the same time we will ask the DOL to help us with that process because they are not on the front line like these people are.

Yet, they sometimes in the past—that is not necessarily true now—but in the past they have had the luxury to come in ε in second-guess every decision being made and they can declare someone ineligible, disallow costs and create a tremendous liability for those involved in that process. We are afraid of that.

But I think under the partnership, if the new Secretary of Labor can start taking a leadership position, and there are lots of encouraging signs that he will do this, and quit trying to undo the employment and training system as some predecessors have, then I think we can start working candidly in a partnership like this law envisions to solve some of these problems.

But repeatedly in the past, we have asked questions and never got answers. You have heard all this before and I don't need to go into that here, but I am encouraged by the signs I have seen in the last 6 months. I really feel we will be able to move forward in this area.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Has the DOL questioned you on what you have done sc far?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. No, they have not.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Do you view that as a good sign?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Yes, we do. Yes. But we also know that having had some experience with CETA and knowing we are still dealing with disallowed costs under that system and that we are in the process of litigation on that now, we can't always believe everything we hear. That is the tone I think the DOL has to work closely with the States on.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I think you were alluding to it a moment ago. There was criticism that the Department of Labor has been more of a policing agency than an administrative agency in the past, and under Secretary Brock there appears to be a move to go in just the opposite direction, which I think is a very positive sign.

Time always becomes a problem in anything we get into on this. Do you feel there is a way or is there a good enough working relationship between your agency and the Department of Labor that, say, you come up with an expanded definition of who can qualify and so on, and in order to cut a lot of redtape and move this definition forward rapidly maybe a telephone conference, or a quick get-



together with somebody in the Department of Labor to see if this thing will fly to get it going because this all appears to be something that is bearing down on us.

One of our two farm witnesses said, and at least my perception of this whole situation is that you consider pride and all the other factors, a lot of farm people including businessmen and bankers didn't admit we had a problem out here until it got to the point you couldn't ignore it any further.

If we would have admitted it earlier, we may have been able to have softened it, maybe not avoided it, but we could have softened it. But now we reach a critical point where something will have to happen quickly.

Do you feel there is an avenue with Labor where we can make it work?

We are dealing in a brandnew ball game in my opinion. It is a different set of people, different set of circumstances, and frankly, very few people understand it.

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. You are exactly right, yes.

I do think that we can get a quick response from the Department of Labor on this. I am more optimistic than I was 6 months ago, but to do that we will need assistance. Someone has to give someone out there a message that this is a top priority. I don't care if it is formal or informal, but we want them to answer some questions occasionally. If we are wrong, tell us, and we will try something else.

But what is frustrating is when they don't say we are wrong or right. So what they do is let some auditor 3 years from now make that decision for us, and that is not good.

In my testimony I indicated that it would be encouraging if the DOL could put together a task force V/e have all been through that before. We have been task forced to death. But a working group working closely with the Assistant Secretary for Employment and Training, to look at this problem now will be very helpful to those States faced with this problem over the next 3 to 5 years.

The DOL could really take a leadership role by working with the States, focusing on program options, and on what research and development efforts can be done in such areas as outreach and early intervention.

How do we do that, though? How can we help the Jerry Smiths and Gary Woodwards out there, frustrated because they put on work shops and nobody comes? Yet we know hundreds of people are eligible.

If we could focus on that and get help from the Department of Labor, I think it would do a world of good. I believe the atmosphere is right and the DOL should certainly be interested.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. We are more than willing to work with you on it. I think one of the problems is communication. We are going to have to improve communications between Congress and the Iowa Department of Planning and Programming, the Department of Labor and other States.

For lack of a better definition, maybe we can get some of the bureaucracy out of it and get down to people-to-people contact and sit down and work things out more quickly.



One last question. Are you planning to apply for any more discretionary money?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Yes, we are. We will be applying for at least \$900,000 more probably within the next 3 weeks.

We will focus those applications on the three plants I mentioned: Rath's, John Deere, and Firestone. And we have not yet found out why our applications were turned down previously, but we are working with DOL and we will find that out and resubmit it.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, gentlemen.

Mr. NIELSON. Thank you.

I have a list of nine questions, but I don't have the time to go into them. Would you submit answers to these for the record?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Yes. Mr. NIELSON. They include some questions by Congressman Lightfoot. For example, it asks, what title III money do you have unused in the State of Iowa?

A question like, does the Governor intend to give what money he has discretion over to the plant layoffs rather than agriculture? How closely does he work with other Midwest States for suggestions and cooperation?

What can you do with the carryover you have this year? Is there a discrepancy from your figures that you cite and the Department of Labor's figures?

Of course, there are other questions about how closely you work with the Department of Labor.

I will submit them for the record and let you answer them and save the time of the grop here.

[Submissions to additional questions of Mr. Neilson and Mr. Lightfoot follow:]





QUESTIONS FOR PHIL SMITH

- Question: I've noticed that the State of Minesota has expanded its definition to include those farmers who are in the process of losing their main source of income. Does the Governor plan to expand this definition-because right now I'm told that many farmers can't qualify.
- Answer: Yes. The State of Iowa will revise its eligibility guidelines for Title III applicants who are self-employed. A copy of the new definition, which takes effect December 2, 1985 is attached.
- Question: Of the Title III money that the Governor controls, how does he decide where it goes? Does he have a tendency to give it to plant closing or layoff, rather than to a highly dispersed labor force, such as farmers?
- Answer: All of the new federal Title III allocation, plus approximately one million dollars in state appropriated funds, is distributed by formula to Iowa's 16 dislocated worker centers. This money is awarded with the directive that the local dislocated worker plan include provisions for targeting some of the money to services for dislocated farmers. Carry over funds from the previous year are used to fund specific plant closing or layoff projects or special efforts for farmers. These funds are awarded on a competitive basis to the dislocated worker centers.



Question: Of all the farmers who could use your help, approximately what percentage are you able to help? Why are some farmers slipping through the cracks? How might we make sure that they don't?

Answer: A very rough estimate of the potential number of farmers eligible for services through the program would be in the range of six to eight thousand during the 1986 calendar year. To date, we have been able to enroll about 320. Another 385 are planned for enrollment in the new program being financed by the \$500,000 grant from the Secretary of Labor (Title III Discretionary). This is a significant effort, but falls short of the projected need. Many farmers are not being served because of the lack of adequate program dollars and the difficulty in reaching farmers who might qualify. Many farmers do not want to talk about retraining. They want to stay in farming. Most of them become interested only after it is clear that they need to find another source of employment.

> Two things will help in this area. First, we need to improve our outreach efforts and secondly we need to intervene quicker with our counseling services. Unfortunately, we simply can not afford to offer either of these services to the extent they are needed. But, some definite progress has been made over the past year. Resources are better coordinated, the general public is more aware of the need, and networks of service organizations are being developed.



Question: Do you see a need for a temporary mini-JTPA to serve only farmers? How would it be structured? What would be some of its provisions?

- Answer: Yes. I believe the Secretary of Labor has the authority under Section 301(c) of Title III to reserve funds for this purpose and target them towards dislocated farmers and related agri-businesses. These funds could be administered through this national employment and training system by having the Secretary of Labor award grant funds to impacted States. States in turn could then either run the money through their already established Title III programs, or they could set up a series of special projects. In Iowa, we would integrate the program into our on-going efforts, dedicate some staff to serve only farmers, and emphasize outreach and counseling services as well as job search assistance and retraining. One of the most important components would be to help farmers rebuild their self confidence.
- Question: How closely do you work with other Midwestern states on this issue? How closely do you work with other state agencies, such as the Iowa Department of Agriculture?
- Answer: We are in regular communication. In our four state region (Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska and Iowa), State JTPA staff meet quarterly to discuss various issues and to meet with regional DOL staff. In addition, we communicate frequently by telephone. Occasionally, staff will visit another state to pick up ideas and discuss problems. In this particular region, we drafted a policy statement for the 13 State Midwestern Governors' Conference asking DOL to target some Title III resources to agri-business. This was adopted by the Governors' this fall and forwarded to the Department of Labor. A copy of Governor Carlin's letter to Secretary Brock is attached.

64



- Question: Will the State of Iowa have a large carry-over at the end of this program year? Do these figures conflict with the Department of Labor's figures? If so, why the discrepancy?
- Answer: No. Our unspent carry-over money from Title III for the PY '84 period (July 1, 1984 - June 30, 1985) was \$190,986, which is less than 10% of the total amount available to Iowa. The GAO estimated our carry-over as \$818,000, so there is a significant conflict. The DOL does not close out grants annually, and uses estimated reports. Therefore their figures are often inaccurate. Unfortunately, this misleads Congress and penalized states such as Iowa.
- Question: Can you tell us how a reduction in Title III money will affect the State's ability to serve farmers? How does the State plan to deal with this cutback? Do you plan to scale back your services?
- Answer: The planned cut of \$122 million in Title III funds will mean a loss of about \$ one million to Iowa. If this is not adjusted by Congress, or the DOL through the use of the Secretary's reserve account, the State will serve 1,000 - 1,200 fewer clients next year. In addition, the quality of services will drop. More emphasis will be placed upon pre-employment training and job search assistance than on retraining.

We do intend to target about \$275,000 of our Title IIA Section 123, (State Education Coordination and Grants) funds to farmer assistance projects. Other than this, we simply will not have the resources to target formula money to farmers. Although farmers will be eligible for the services, they will be in competition with other unemployed workers for JTPA assistance. Some will be enrolled. Many more will not be served.

65



Question: How closely do you work with the Departrent of Labor and the local JTPA offices?

Answer: On program compliance issues, we work closely with the Department of Labor. On matters of program design or policy development, there is very little interaction. The Department of Labor has taken a "hands off" approach to this area. This has allowed States greater freedom which is good. However, DOL still must be an active partner in the process of providing leadership, and advocacy for the JTPA programs, and in helping states respond to the demands placed upon them.

With respect to local JTPA offices, we have continuous contacts with them in such areas ranging from financial reporting to staff development and training. Our staff meets with SD_P directors on a monthly basis.

Question: Should the Title IIA eligibility requirements be changed?

Answer: Yes. If Title III funds are reduced, then states should have the option of serving more dislocated workers under Title IIA.



Iowa Definition of Dislocated Worker

<u>Dislocated (Displaced) Worker</u> ~ Any individual who is residing at an address within the State of Iowa at the time of application <u>and</u>:

.

- (a) is terminated or laid-off, is eligible for or has exhausted entitlement to unemployment compensation, and is unlikely to return to the individual's previous industry or occupation; or;
- (b) is in receipt of a notice of termination or lay-off from employment, will be entitled to unemployment compensation at the time of lay-off or termination, and is unlikely to return to the individual's previous industry or occupation; or
- time of lay-off or termination, and is unlikely to return to the individual's previous industry or occupation; or
 (c) is terminated, or who has received a notice of termination of employment, as a result of any permanent closure of a plant or facility; or
- (d) is long-term unemployed and has limited opportunities for employment or re-employment in the same or a similar occupation in the area in which such individuals reside, including any older individual who may have substantial barriers to employment by reason of age.

Once an individual has been terminated or laid-off from a job, that person is considered to be a dislocated worker from that job until such time as he or she works full-time for eleven (11) consecutive weeks for one employer. For purposes of this definition, full-time is considered to be forty (40) hours per week. If the person is subsequently laid-off or terminated from the second job, that person may be a dislocated worker from that second job. A redetermination of eligibility as a displocated worker from that second job would be necessary.

In the case of a self-employed individual, "terminated, or has received a notice of termination" means <u>probable</u> permanent business dissolution as evidenced by the individual's written declaration and proof of: foreclosure; bankruptcy; filing of bankruptcy; no profit shown during the last twelve months; or inability to secure capital necessary to continue the business operation. Farmers are to be considered self-employed individuals.

:

STATE OF KANSAS

64

Ne.

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR State Capitol Topeka 66612-1590

John Carlin Governor

November 18, 1985

The Honorable William Brock Secretary of Labor United States Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

Deat Secretary Brock:

Unemployment is a national problem that requires the cooperation of the state and national governments to solve. Of particular concern to the midwestern states is unemployment stemming from the agricultural crisis. The jobless victims of this crisis include workers who build farm implements, employees of local seed dealers and production farmers. Unfortunately, not all of the jobs lost because of the farm crisis can be identified as such. The numbers and scope of the problem are staggering. The states of the midwest need special assistance in dealing with the agricultural unemployment issue.

It is estimated that between 12 and 18 percent of our nation's farms will be forced out of business over the next three years because of financial difficulties. The magnitude of this problem can be clearly demonatrated. The debt-to-asset ratio is the most straightfurward indicator of the sevele financial stress currently suffered by farmers as a group. Most experts agree that farms with debt-to-asset ratios over 40 percent are vulnerable to the effects of financial stress. The current national debt-to-asset ratio for all farmers is about 32 percent. The problem is most critical in the central region of the United States where the average ratio is more than 38 debt-to-asset ratio for farmers in the midwest are suffering the hardest. The average debt-to-asset ratio for farmers in the central region of the country between the ages of 45 and 54 is 44.128 percent, for farmers between 35 and 44, it is 56.800 percent; and for farmers under 35, it is 55.100 percent. These younger farmers are facing the most serious economic trouble and, because of their ages, are also the most appropriate candidates for retraining.

In the nation as a whole, over 30 percent of all farmers face a debt-to-asset ratio of over 40 percent. Farmers in this category hold over 60 percent of total farm debt. Due to the high debt concentration in the agricultural sector, 7 to 17 percent of all farm operations will have to be liquidated to service the current outstanding debt. Assuming that some corrective action is taken and debt losses amount to only



\$2n-\$25 billion, betwee: 175,000 and 275,000 jobs will be lost throughout the nation's economy. This further translates into a reduction in the gross national product of \$8.5-\$13.7 billion by 1989. These statistics were generated by a study jointly prepared by <u>Parm Journal</u>, Food and Agricultural Policy Research Institute (FAPRI) at Iowa State University, FAPRI at University of Missouri and Wharton Econometrics.

Although we hope these gloomy predictions will not become reality, it is clear that the farm crisis is significantly contributing to our unemployment problem. We, as Governors of the Midwestern Governors' Conference, request that you designate \$11 million or 20 percent of the JTPA Title III Dislocated Worker Punds reserved by the becretary to be used by states who design special programs to deal with persona dislocated due to the farm crisis. Given your approval of this request, we Governors of the midwestern states who are a party to this request would proceed on an individual basis to develop individual state proposals to submit for your funding approval from the designated portion of this discretionary fund.

Recause of the nature of unemployment statistics, self-employed displaced farmers are not counted as part of the unemployed. Since regular JTPA monies are allocated on the basis of unemployment statistics, hyricultural bas distates do not receive adequate funds to address the needs of this pool of unemployed Americans, while at the same time attempting to serve the increasing numbers of these dislocated due to industrial layoffs.

Many Midwestern states are currently targeting Title III formula funds and state appropriations for dislocated farmers. Those efforts have certainly helped, but the need is greater than the resources presently available. These designated funds that we are requesting would more equitably balance the resources provided those states where a significant portion of the unemployment problem is not reflected by unemployment statistics.

President Reagan has expressed his commitment to Assisting our farmers who are losing their farms. The JTPA program is specifically designed to allow states to deal with problems that uniquely affect them: and, as we understand it, the discretionary fund was created to enable the Secretary to target resources to critical areas of need. The designation of a apecific portion of the fund for midwestern farmers appears appropriate and necessary.

States are addressing the agricultural unemployment problems in new and creative ways. The problem, of course, is the lack of funds to deliver the aervices. The Governors of the Midwestern Conference unanimously support the designation of a portion of these discretionary funds as a way for states and the federal government to cooperatively addreas this issue of national concern.

On behalf of all of the Governors of the Midwestern Governors' Conference, I urge your careful and prompt consideration of this request.

NOV 26 1985

Aer e DEN CARLIN Gover nor

JC:meo

AND PROGRAMMING



Mr. NIELSON. We need to know where you are coming from. I understand that Iowa has been on the cutting edge with this program. I encourage you to stay in the forefront and any inference that Minnesota got ahead of you because they got \$1 million and you only got \$500,000, don't let that stop you.

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Well, we are just getting prepared for the Iowa-Minnesota football game.

Mr. NIELSON. I see. I have an interesting game in my home community, BYU. They are playing the Air Force Academy tomorrow. It should be a good game.

Let me ask the JTPA administrators, how many farmers come to you for help at JTPA? Can you give me a number, say in the last 6 months?

Mr. WOODWARD. I think it is—people that actually meet the definition?

Mr. NIELSON. No. No, those that apply.

Mr. Woodward. OK. I would say-

Mr. NIELSON. Fifty probably?

Mr. WOODWARD. Fifty.

Mr. NIELSON. Mr. Smith.

Mr. JERRY SMITH. In the past 6 months, we have not had a lot. Last spring when Mr. Broich entered our program at Creston, we received approximately 170 inquiries.

Mr. NIELSON. 170.

Mr. EPPERSON. Farmers who come to us are only a handful, half a dozen.

Mr. NIELSON. Of those who do come, what percentage can you help of those who meet the requirements, 50 percent, 20?

Mr. WOODWARD. Ten percent.

Mr. EPPERSON. The ones who come to us, basically 100 percent. They basically made their decision so we can serve them. Those who have not made the decision are the problem.

Mr. NIELSON. Mr. Woodward made the suggestion that you use the 1-year expense picture to get a better picture, since over the last year or 6 months, farmers may have had a good 6 months and very bad last 6 months.

You mentioned the case where the last 6 months are good, but the whole year is bad. It could be the other way around.

Shouldn't there be a way to look at the total year and the last 6 months and consider both so that if you qualify under either one, you would then qualify for JTPA? Would that be a fairer measure?

Mr. FRANK. The court reporter is not going to get the head nods. Mr. JERRY SMITH. Oh, OK. I would say that an either/or situation would be very valuable.

Mr. NIELSON. I can see a case where you get a good 6-month period but over a year, it is pretty bad.

There was a suggestion made earlier about allowing farmers to start being eligible when the debt-to-asset ratio becomes dangerous. How do you feel about that?

Mr. WOODWARD. I am not sure how that would work. Mr. Epperson knows more about that than I, or at what point you reach, 40, 45 or whatever, are you finished, and is there any way you can get out of that. I don't know that really.



Mr. NIELSON. You mentioned you help about 10 percent, Mr. Woodward. What do you do with those you can't help?

Mr. WOODWARD. The 10 percent I talked about were the 10 percent eligible.

Mr. NIELSON. What do you do with the 90 percent? What suggestions do you have?

Mr. WOODWARD. If they have not been to the extension service, one would-they have a program called Assist at Iowa State Extension Service, and so referrals to other agencies are made.

Mr. NIELSON. Have any of you discussed the idea of changing the program with Phil Smith or the Governor's office on a program level?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes.

Mr. JERRY SMITH. I would say that we, the office-they have been working very closely with us during the past 6 months especially, as we have identified problems and they are trying to respond to the problems, yes.

Mr. NIELSON. Are you ever able to offer training services to the spouse of the farmer?

Mr. Epperson. You bet. Mr. NIELSON. You have worked with the program.

Mr. EPPERSON. We have served more wives than farmers.

Mr. WOODWARD. That is true with us, too.

Mr. NIELSON. What is the criteria for the spouse? Could they come in on their own even, to get training for a job just to supplement the farm income in general, she could get a-

Mr. WOODWARD. Criteria is for the family, not the individual.

Mr. NIELSON. So it is a family, and not an individual thing.

I have a lot of other questions, but I will return the time to the chairman, and I appreciate the opportunity.

We in the minority don't usually preside, but when we do, it is only a moment or two. I came to this Congress and had been the majority leader of the Utah House, and also speaker and I loved to wield that gavel.

Mr. FRANK [presiding]. Well, I have no further questions.

I appreciate your being here.

Our final witness is Mr. Fred Romero, Administrator, Office of Strategic Planning and Policy Development, Employment and Training Administration, U.S. Department of Labor.

STATEMENT OF FRED ROMERO, ADMINISTRATOR, OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOY-MENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Mr. ROMERO. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. FRANK. We appreciate your joining us.

We think it is relevant for both members of the legislative branch and the executive branch to be from time to time in other parts of the country than Washington. We realize you agree with us on that, and we appreciate your attending.

Please proceed.

Mr. ROMERO. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee.

I will highlight the prepared text that I have, and with your pernussion, submit the full text.

mission, submit the full text. Deputy Assistant Secretary Roberts Jones recently testified before your subcommittee and described the types of programs we have which are available to assist displaced workers in general. The programs he mentioned included unemployment compensation, the employment service and of course the Job Training Partnership Act, specifically title III of JTPA. It is the latter program that is the focus of today's hearing.

The title III JTPA Dislocated Worker Program is State operated and addresses the reemployment needs of all categories of dislocated workers. Dislocated workers are provided training, job search, and relocation assistance and other supportive services. Under title III, 75 percent of the Federal funds are allocated to the States on a formula basis. States design and operate their own programs to respond to the individual needs and labor market within their States.

The remaining 25 percent of the title III funds is distributed by the Secretary of Labor to States with critical unemployment problems and large pockets of worker dislocation. States submit proposals to the Department of Labor for these funds, and we review them and approve or disapprove them. In determining which proposals to fund, we consider the severity of need, the availability of title III formula funds to address the problem, and the availability of other resources. In addition, we look at the soundness and specificity of the retraining and other services that are designed to lead to new jobs for these workers.

In short, we look for the strategy for positive adjustment of these impacted workers and farmers.

It has been mentioned here that when JTPA was enacted in 1982, a target group of dislocated farmers in need of services was not envisioned. Therefore, the act and the legislative history are silent on whether dislocated farm workers and those displaced from related agricultural industries are to be included under title III dislocated worker programs.

Despite the absence of specific language to include farmers, discretionary projects to assist farmers have been funded from the earliest days of the title III program. However, while some States, and Iowa is among them, were interpreting JTPA so that those displaced from farms were eligible for participation in title III programs, other States were unclear as to whether they had the authority to make this critical decision.

As a result of numerous inquiries we have been receiving on the matter and congressional interest to have dislocated workers on farms and the agricultural economy included under the broad definition of dislocated workers under JTPA, the Employment and Training Administration issued a notice clarifying that dislocated farmers could indeed be served under title III.

We have furnished to the subcommittee a list of all proposals received and projects funded since the inception of JTPA that relate to farmers. I note that Iowa, and Mr. Smith has so indicated, recently received \$500,000 for a proposal which they submitted to the Secretary for funding out of the national reserve fund.

Mr. Chairman, I assure you that we are sensitive and concerned about the plight of displaced farmers and others dislocated in the

agriculture economy, as a part of the larger dislocated worker problem.

I am particularly interested in hearing ideas and suggestions of those who will testify and have test fied, and as a matter of fact, I have learned a lot at this hearing ready.

I will be glad to answer or attempt to answer any questions you may have.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you very much, Mr. Romero. We appreciate it.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Romero follows:]



STATEMENT OF FRED E. ROMERO ADMINISTRATOR, OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT OF LABOR BEFORE THE EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE HOUSE GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

70

November 15, 1985

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

I appreciate the opportunity to be here in Council Bluffs with you this morning to discuss the ways in which farmers are being assisted under the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA).

This country now has more than 3 million farmers. They are the vital first step in the chain of the American agricultural system, which currently comprises nearly 20 percent of the Nation's gross national product. In recent years, many farmers and others in the agriculture system have encountered difficult times, with some farmers losing their farms and their employees being laid off and forced to look for other types of jobs.

Others are more qualified than I to discuss the causes of and long-term cures for this situation. The Department of Labor does administer programs which can provide immediate help to some of those who have lost their jobs or source of income in the agricultural sector.

Deputy Assistant Secretary Roberts T. Jones recently testified before your Subcommittee, and described the types of programs we have which are available to assist displaced workers in general. These include unemployment compensation, the employment service, and the Dislocated Worker Program authorized under Title III of JTPA. It is the latter program that is the focus of today's hearing.

The Title III JTPA Dislocated Worker Program is State operated and addresses the reemployment needs of all categories of dislocated workers. Dislocated workers are provided training, job search and relocation assistance and other supportive services. Under Title III, 75 percent of the Federal funds are allocated to the States on a formula basis. States design and operate their own programs to respond to the individual needs and labor market within their States.

Iowa has received \$1.7 million for the Program Year which ends in June, 1986. The State is providing an equal amount of matching funds. My colleague from the State of Iowa can address how those funds are being utilized.

The remaining 25 percent of the Title III funds is distributed by the Secretary of Labor to States with critical unemployment problems and large pockets of worker dislocation. States submit proposals to the Department of Labor for these funds.



In determining which proposals to fund, we consider the severity of need, the availability of Title III formula funds to address the problem, and the availability of other resources. In addition, we look at the soundness and specificity of the retraining and other services that are designed to lead to new jobs for these workers.

When JTPA was enacted in 1982, a target group of dislocated farmers in need of services was not envisioned. Therefore, the Act and the legislative history are silent on whether dislocated farm workers and those displaced from related agricultural industries are to be included under Title III dislocated worker programs. As indicated in the material submitted to the Subcommittee, discretionary projects to assist farmers have been funded from the earliest days of the Title III program. However, while some States, Iowa among them, were interpreting JTPA so that those displaced from farms were eligible to participate in Title III programs, other States were unclear as to whether they had the authority to make this decision. As a result of the numerous inquiries we have been receiving on this matter, and congressional interest expressing a desire to have workers dislocated from farms and the agricultural economy included under the broad definition of "dislocated workers" in JTPA, the Employment and Training Administration

76



(ETA) on April 26, 1985 issued a notice clarifying that dislocated farmers could indeed be served under Title III.

We have furnished to the Subcommittee a list of all proposals received and projects funded since the inception of JTPA that relate to farmers. I note that Iowa has recently received \$500,000 from the Secretary's national reserve fund to provide training and employment services to dislocated farmers and their families forced out of farming due to foreclosure, bankruptcy, or inability to raise capital. We are continuing to consider new proposals as we receive them from the States.

Mr. Chairman, I assure you that we are sensitive to and concerned about the plight of displaced farmers, and others dislocated in the agriculture economy, as a part of the larger dislocated worker problem. I am particularly interested in hearing the ideas and suggestions of those who will testify at this hearing on how JTPA is being and can be better utilized to serve this segment of the dislocated worker population.

I will be glad to answer any questions you may have.



Mr. FRANK. We will open the questioning with Mr. Lightfoot.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Romero, reflecting back to the testimony we have had, you mentioned you picked up some ideas from what you had heard. Is the Department of Labor in a position to move quickly on some of these ideas you heard today, or are we going to get tied up in a big, long, drawn-out process?

Where are you coming from in that particular aspect?

Mr. ROMERO. One of the particular ideas I heard from Mr. Phil Smith was, I think, quite in order and it would help to elevate the discussion on the plight of farmers, dislocated farmers. That would be to create this group and discuss the problems and the way JTPA can deal with the problem. I think that is the proper step to take.

I think the Assistant Secretary would be happy to meet with this group and discuss the problems and ways to solve them.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Would you be conducive to bringing USDA in because they have expertise in this area as well?

Mr. ROMERO. I think it would be most appropriate, yes.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. In terms of money, we heard that mentioned several times, the Senate and House both passed bills for a \$122 million reduction in title III. How could that be helpful to farmers if there are not enough dollars in the program to serve the eligible population now? What can we do to change that situation?

Mr. ROMERO. Well, let me review for you what our figures show with respect to the availability of funds for program year 1985, which is July 1 this year through June 30, 1986.

We had at the beginning of the 1984 program year a total of \$343 million in the system. \$185 million of this was carried from program year 1984, brought in; and then a total of \$222.5 million was added to that that gave us approximately \$407 million for program year 1985.

In addition, as I surveyed the distributions and expenditure rates, and so on down the line, I looked at how many States would expend their allotments for the program year and how much they would have available for the succeeding program year.

If our calculations are correct, 52 out of the total 57 States and trust territories would have in excess of 20 percent—if spending continues at the rate they are spending now—would have an excess of 20 percent of the funds to carry forward to the next program year.

Five States are spending the dollars, and would run short actually. Iowa—I hate to disagree with my colleague, but our records show at the moment Iowa has about \$2.5 million unexpended. This is in addition to the \$500,000 awarded just recently.

Iowa is not included among those five States, and I could be wrong on that.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. If I understand correctly, the Secretary has the ability to reallocate title III funds. Do you think he would be willing to shift some of these into the agriculture areas?

Mr. ROMERO. Unfortunately, he does not have the ability to reallocate the title III funds. He has the ability to fund out of the national discretionary account in responding to proposals submitted by the States.

 $\mathbf{78}$

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. We understand the regulations differently. It indicates here:

The Secretary may reallocate title III allotments if the Secretary determines the State will be unable to obligate the amount within 1 year of the allotment.

Our information may be incorrect.

One other area that I think we may need some improvement is again from earlier testimony. It appears when something is turned down, the possibility of not getting a timely answer as to the rejection of the proposal is a very real problem. Do you have any suggestions about how we can improve that process?

Mr. ROMERO. I would apologize for the Department if they are not receiving a timely response on rejections. It is our intent, not only to review each decision on a proposal submitted, but to do so within 60 days of submittal.

To my knowledge, the average response rate now is around 45 to 46, 47 days. If they have not received notice, I am prepared to deal with it.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Regarding my questions about reallocating money among States, the staff has handed me the statute:

The Secretary is authorized to reallocate any amount of any allotment to a State to the extent the Secretary determines the State will not be able to obligate such amount within one year of allotment.

So according to this, apparently he does have the authority

I guess I won't belabor that point, but is some of the problem identifying where we need to go with the money? I think it has been pointed out here that relying on unemployment statistics is inaccurate as far as trying to determine the situation with dislocated farmers.

The last thing we want to do is have you burden us with another regulation, but it seems we have a problem of determining the allocation of money because we don't have an accurate method of determining who needs it.

Is that a valid assessment?

Mr. ROMERO. It looks like we have an allocation formula problem. As far as farmers are concerned, that is. The labor force is oriented such that all three factors in the formula relate to unemployment measures. The question of when the farmer is unemployed is obviously a major one because that is the whole issue of defining if a farmer is eligible, part of it lies in when he becomes unemployed.

So it is possible that the current population survey is not picking up accurate statistics on the farmers' situation because they don't declare themselves available for work—excuse me—they do declare themselves available for work in the sense they are already employed. So they are not counted as unemployed even though they are hurting.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I notice the Job Service people are here and I am sure they can quickly tell us where we stand as far as traditionaltype workers.

Mr. FRANK. Why don't we bring them forward, if you wish.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Would any of you folks like to add to this?



STATEMENT OF MAX GOODVIN, JOB SERVICE, COUNCIL BLUFFS, IA

Mr. GOODVIN. I work for Job Service in this area.

Mr. FRANK. Why don't you come forward. We have a very good court reporter over here if you would just come forward so we can all hear you.

Thank you for coming forward. Please identify yourself.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD MISKIMINS, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAIN-ING ADMINISTRATION REGIONAL OFFICE, KANSAS CITY, KS

Mr. MISKIMINS. I am Richard Miskimins from the ETA regional office in Kansas City.

Mr. GOODVIN. I am Max Goodvin. I work for Job Service here in Council Bluffs.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I guess you know what the situation is and where we are coming from. Can you go to your files and determine exactly who has left a job and is looking for a job now? It appears, I guess to reiterate the problem with the allocation, the problem is in coming up with a way to determine how many people are out there that will need help. You work with this on a day-to-day basis. What suggestions do you have? Are farmers coming in to see you?

Mr. GOODVIN. Yes, we are having more farmers coming in all the time. You know, a year ago we started seeing an increase, or maybe 2 years ago, and the months slip by and each month brings more in.

I have to agree with the gentleman here, I think we are going to have a lot more in the year to come the way it looks.

Mr. FRANK. Let the record show that he was indicating Mr. Broich.

Mr. GOODVIN. Yes, the gentleman that said there would be more. The last period of time I can recall in the eight counties in southwest Iowa, I think our labor force is about 90,000, and we had over 20,000 individuals complete applications for work in our offices in those 8 counties during that 12-month period which indicates that there are an awful lot of people out there who maybe are not totally unemployed but are seeking either a second job or an additional job. I think most of the farm population we see who come in are still on the farm and trying to find a job to supplement their income.

Mr. FRANK. If the gentleman will yield; from the statistical standpoint, we mentioned some of those seeking jobs would be spouses of farmers. If they had not previously been in the labor force, they would not be counted unemployed. Is that part of the problem?

If you had people who had applied, say, wives of farmers who were not previously working or had not been for sometime, they would not show up in the unemployment statistics, am I correct, if they had never been employ ϵ ??

Mr. GOODVIN. I don't think I can answer that.

Mr. MISKIMINS. You are correct.

Mr. FRANK. They would not show up. That is one way you could have a paradox of a low unemployment figure and a lot of people



looking for work because spouses who had not previously looked for jobs don't show up in the figures.

Mr. MISKIMINS. That is right.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I think that is a valid point.

Carrying that one step further, with the situation that we are moving into, would that not be a logical source to look for some of these people? If someone comes in, as the chairman suggested, who has not had a job in the past, a paycheck-type job, put it that way, that that individual—then we can carry that one step further and advise that particular situation and work that into the formula possibly, as we were talking with Dr. Romero and determine how many people are out there. Perhaps you folks can even advertise on that.

Mr. GOODVIN. We have a lot of statistics. I don't know if we would have just what we need, but we do like I said, have a large portion of our labor force out there that are putting in applications for work, far more than what the unemployment rate—well, the unemployment rate in our area, I think last year, was about 8 percent, 7.8 or 8 percent in this corner of the State and 7.8 percent of our total labor force is not 20,000 people. That is approximate.

That falls far short of the 20,000 that came in to see us, but what that says is there are a lot of people out there that are maybe underemployed or still on the farm seeking other second jobs or a different job, a better paying job.

ferent job, a better paying job. Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I guess where I am coming from, you know, I walked into this job off the street and I am not used to long bureaucratic delays. I like to see things happen, but we are trying to find a point where we could rapidly start to identify these people and it appears on the surface at least that you folks are in a position to do that.

Mr. GOODVIN. We see a lot of that. We are one of the first places they come because we have been there a long time and they know about us.

Mr. NIELSON. Will the gentleman yield?

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Sure.

Mr. NIELSON. Do you refer these people to JTPA?

Mr. GOODVIN. Yes, we do.

Mr. NIELSON. Do you attempt to determine whether they are eligible before you refer them?

Mr. GOODVIN. No, not really. If they appear to be—we don't get down and determine the income levels and so on. If they appear that they are—if there is any possibility at all, we refer them to JTPA.

Mr. NIELSON. Do you think you should screen them so that they don't get discouraged twice?

Mr. GOODVIN. Well, we are in a situation where those 20,000-plus people, there is just not enough time in a lot of cases.

Mr. NIELSON. Are you worried about the merger of JTPA with ETA to take care of Job Services through that merged program?

Mr. GOODVIN. Not really.

Mr. NIELSON. OK.

Mr. FRANK. If the gentleman will yield, to coattail on that, Mr. Nielson made a very good point about discouraging people too



often. I hope at least you warn people that they may not be eligible because people coming to your office are told no and then they go to JTPA and being told no a second time. That is devastating. I hope at the least you say, "I don't know if you are eligible," and prepare them for whatever may happen.

We ran into this with Mr. Broich and Mr. Knutson mentioned it, the problem of discouragement. Psychological debilitation is a problem and you don't want to add to that obviously in any way.

I think it's your time.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. No, that's fine. Go ahead. You are making good points.

Mr. NIELSON. I would like to ask the gentleman from the Labor Department, Dr. Romero, I don't know if you have been here the whole day or not, but there was discussion of how the law could be changed. It was originally set up to deal with smokestack industries primarily and now there is a suggestion that Iowa and other States are using it for agricultural workers, and you have indicated after studies that that is appropriate.

What have you done to encourage other agricultural States to follow Iowa's lead? Are you actually-----

Mr. ROMERO. Other than seeking clarification, initial clarification on whether or not dislocated persons should be accommodated——

Mr. NIELSON. You issued the clarification after they brought it to your attention. Have you brought that clarification to the attention of other people in the agriculture sector?

Mr. ROMERO. No, sir.

Mr. NIELSON. Why not?

Mr. ROMERO. Because the act allows a lot of flexibility in terms of establishing practices——

Mr. NIELSON. Bring the mike up close, if you would, Mr. Romero.

Mr. ROMERO. For identifying substantial groups of eligible folks, it allows that discretion to the States. Those procedures are structured around three groups of people, those receiving unemployment insurance or those who exhausted their unemployment, and those terminated from plants and those long-term unemployed who are unlikely to return to their industry or occupation.

It is around that one that these folks have structured a definition for dislocated farmers.

Mr. NIELSON. I understand that, but what role do you think JTPA should have in regard to farmers? Should it be the primary tool to help farmers?

Mr. ROMERO. I think it should be, yes, indeed, and it is now.

Mr. NIELSON. Does there have to be legislative changes to give priority to the farmers in this area where they were not considered initially?

Mr. ROMERO. I think that the legislation that exists now on the books is flexible enough to accommodate these farmers.

Mr. NIELSON. It would be adequate provided it was well enough understood. Most people think of JTPA as industry targeted, like for downtown Cleveland or a steel plant somewhere, and they don't think of it as being applicable to a farmer in Iowa. Why don't we rewrite the legislation or at least put out guidelines so people know its useful for any misplaced or displaced worker?



Mr. ROMERO. I would prefer the suggestion Mr. Smith has presented to you folks and that is that a task group could be formed to give visibility to the problem, and to me that is a good way of marketing the program to the needy farmers.

Mr. NIELSON. What about the suggestion earlier that most displaced workers have some kind of unemployment compensation for 18 months or that they have some financial help while in retraining. whereas the farmer has to wait until he is bankrupt before he qualifies? What can be done to alleviate that?

We have to give him a chance to get training rather than take any old job to put bread on the table. We want to train him for better work.

Mr. ROMERO. That aspect of it would require new legislation to deal with that problem.

Mr. NIELSON. Do you think there would be a possibility of merging the Trade Adjustment Act, TAA, into the JTPA for that purpose?

I know that is a sticky question.

Mr. ROMERO. The President has already stated a position with respect to the Trade Adjustment Act.

Mr. NIELSON. We will change his mind.

Mr. FRANK. The administration just announced both continuation of the trade adjustment assistance——

Mr. NIELSON. I was able to get it through the Ways and Means last year, and I will try again, but I think the President is wrong on that issue. I think he will be overridden if he tries to change that.

Mr. FRANK. I think so, too.

Mr. NIELSON. So policies aside, do you think it is appropriate to provide readjustment assistance for these people because of the fact that they have no financial means in that situation?

Mr. ROMERO. I'm sorry. Congressman, I can't comment on that. Mr. Nielson. You would rather not.

Mr. ROMERO. I would rather not.

Mr. NIELSON. We have asked the DOL for a breakdown of State carryovers of title III funds, we have not yet received that. We asked for it several days ago. It was due Tuesday of this week. It has not arrived. Will you get that to us?

Mr. ROMERO. Yes, sir; I will.

Mr. NIELSON. As soon as possible. There seems to be a discrepancy between Iowa's records and your records of how much title III funds were left over.

[The information requested follows:]



OHADTENILY STATHS REPORTS ONDERAIS AVALIASES (PART 1) JTPA-DISLOCATED WOHRENS FY REPORT OFFICE 7-D1-W4 THRONGH 6-B0-H3 TITLE SIC-COMBINED

-

	ORLIGATIONAL Autrority	KXPF.HQ1TURKR	N OF HNLIG	TRAINENG Expendituner	1 OF Total Expend	SIIPPORT EXPENDITURES	N OF TUTAN Capend	ADAIN Bipenditures	1 OF Total Expend
CHMNECTICHT	1,651,906	1,448,327	N5,3	1,106,771	78.6	74,3NJ	3.4	226,173	14,1
NATHE	1,480,467	568,8AL	28,7	412,147	76,0	44,747	7.8	¥2,447	14.3
NABSACHUSKITS .	6,393,613	2,228,239	34,9	1-241,1/5	56.6	473,640	21.)	493,415	22.1
NEN HAMPSHIJNE	1,050,000	331,352)(,s '	742,204	7),1	76,955	4,1	62,141	18,8
RHONE ISLAND	£,*:2,596	864,848	57,2	661,424	74,5	10,190	1.1	193,224	15.4
AFINONT	281,550	212,954	75,6	195,218	41,7	1,817	.1	15,919	7,5
REGIONAL TUTAL OF	17,168,940	5,614,592	13,6),844,416	67,4	677,237	12.)	1,023,374	18,2
NEN JEHREY	9,452,477	4,177,665	44,2 ₁	2,574,411	61,7	107,213	2,1	1, 342,041	35.7
NKN AUHK	22,649,319	6,998,014	30,9	5,592,592	79,9	505,243	7.2	90p.181	17.9
PURTU RICA	5,499,579	2,532,469	42,9	(+7)1,551	61,5	320,878	12.7	478,039	18,4
VINCEN 186.4NDS	385,146	78,475	25,7	45,151	57,5	10,294	11,1	23,024	29,]
REGIONAL TITAL 92	JR, 106,721	13,702,625	36,0	4,444,707	12,2	943,633	6,1	2,843,285	21.0
OFIANANE (4) INDICATUS MISSING DATA.	141,527	178,519		143,120		61	.0		27.9

80

HEPHNE HOL DER-YILL

• '.

OUARTERLY STATUS REPORTE PRODUCAD ANALYSIS (PART 1) JTPA-DISLOCATED VORKEUS FY REZAG GRANTS 7-DI-44 THROUGH 6-BO-H5 TIFLE LIE-CONDINED

	DBLIGATIONAG Authority	EXPENDITUR/S	N NF NHLEG	TRAINING EXPENDETURES	N OF Total Expend	SUPPORT Ripriolitures '	N OF TOTAL Expend	ADHEN EXPENDITURES	1 OF Tù741. E4PENN
OTST. OF CRL.	1,197,459	588 ₀ 046	(9,1	924,917	47,4	6,246	1,1	55,861	•,5
H1976240	5,401,141	2,920,779	54,1	7, 292, 111	78 . 5	276,009	1,1	402,352	13,4
ренчауцианта	21,733,528	6,174,567	32,1	6,010,174	46,1	181,671	2,6	746,514	10.)
VIRGINIA	4,110,830	2,450,907	61,5	1,821,788	68,7	346,820	0.0	492,299	18,7
NEAT VIRGINIA	3,902,439	1,412,548	11.2,	1,326,770	74.5	303,800	14.1	251,448	13,4
REGIOALI, MITAL 03	16,708,913	15,214,380	41.4	17,129,415	79,6	1,044,715	7 . n	2,034,250	11,4
atiamama	4,538,242	4,670,862	14,7	2,894,014	61,9	1,037,402	72,7	742,476	15,9
FLÉRINA	4,757,69A	. 1, 3 68,871	15,1.4	1,161,271	100,0	ŋ	•0	n	•fi
GFURGIA	5,014,446	2,246,094	44,7	1,851,246	12,5	£2,976	5 . #	124,817	14,7
PRN LUCKY	5.925,301	1,371,404	23,1	1,091,509	79,6	40,481	3.0	739,414	17.5
Mississipr <u>i</u>	2,454,428	\$,156,702	A1.2	1,616,137	78,6	¥1,891	3.4	378,474	17.6
RABTH CANILINA	e 197,635	5,710,275	N],9	4,751,711	A),}	215,283	4,1	720,761	12.6
SUITH CANNENA (*) INDICATES STANING DATA.	5,550,81¥	3,024,613	54,5	1,489,742	42,5	629,475	20.8	505,344	14,7



QUARTEOLY STATUS REPORTS PROGRAM ANALYSIS (PART 1) JTPA-DISUDCATED WURKERS FY BJ/04 GRANTS 7-01-84 THANDUCH 6-10-85 TITLE ILL-COMMENCE

	ORLIGATIONAL AUTHORITY	EXFENDITURES	V ∩F	TRAIMING	V OF	SUPPLIFT	¥ (IF	LINK FM	1. OF
	NU CRUNY CI		NHTTE	FXPENDETURES	TOTAL, - Expend	RIPENUITINES	TOTAL Exilizio	ADHEN EXPENDITURES	N OF TOTAL FEFEND
TENNESSER.	7,770,157	2,151,893	27, 7	1,171,824	42.3	74,866	1.2	357,203	16.6
REGIONAL THTAI, GO	52,019,120	22,902,712	43.8	17,415,634	76.4	2,117,874	٧.3	3,224,214	14,4
16.14018	19,194,562	11,766,354	61,)	8,808,824	74,9	556,671	4.1	2,480,464	20,4
INDIAMA	12,489,731	6,304,251	48,9	5,375,048	N\$.)	49,765	l.fi	M29,43H	1),2
	25,378,489	14,132,854	s5.7	10,247,687	72,5	427,450	1,1	1, 162, 617	24,5
41NNESOTA	5,475,563	2,762,569	16,2	2,174,680	78,9	270,012	9,8	312,817	11.3
outo	23,070,307	10,194,850	47.7	1,432,687	77,9	176,704	٩,٥	8,385,459	13,6
#ISCINCTO	6,594,513	5,003,813	75.8	4,208,476	84.1	147,726	3,0	647,631	12,9
REGIONAL TITAL 05	8) AB3 E4F	84 144 714				9)44 <i>(</i>			
	93,893,565	50,164,716	53,4	18,747,402	77.2	2,378,488	4,7	1,038,426	t a ,0
ARKANSAS	3,180,114	1,255,157	39,5	1,041,478	93,2	3n,436	2,4	(RU,24)	14,4
Linitartavia	4,960,023	1,824,712	16,9	1,5#1,127	N6.5	57,452	2,9	194,133	10,4
ura arxitu	2,421,121	757,614	M.I	477,#14	62,4	110,271	15,6	[AK,454	22 . n
nstannua (+1 unicates atostic data.	2,040,744	1,095,672	54 . H	856,349	78,2	75,427	6,9	[n],31]	14.9
				86					

82

.



DUARTERNY STATUS REPORTE PONGHAM ANALYSIS (PANT 1) JTPA-DISLOCATED NORKENS FY 03/A4 GUANTS 7-01-84 TUROUGH 6-30-85 TITLE LII-COMMUNED

ſ	INTEGATIONAL AUTHORITY	URPENDETUNES	1 AF	THATNING	A OF	SUPPORT) or	1 19 M I M	
			10616	FXPENDITURES	TOTAL Expensio	EXPENDITURES	TOTAL Expend	ADNIN ERPENDITURES	N OF Tutal Expend
,						ŧ.			
TEINS	16,015,584	A,218,654	51.3	5,371,277	65,2	1,#44,222	72,4	1,023,155	12.4
REGIONAL TOTAL 06									
	24,610,031	13,1~6,714	46+1	9, 328, 155	70,0	2,121,308	16.1	1,727,351	15,1
[n##	2,564,245	1,707,114	ñ6.A	1, 151, 695	74,2	93,580	5,5	261,429	15.)
KANSAS	2,892,075	1,083,912	37,4	#41,715	77,8	55,645	٩,١	184,552	17,8
#153nii#1	1,696,939	3,002,004	H1+2+	2,706,937	90,1	5P,456	1.9	716,ATA	7,9
NEMRASKA	443, 309	875,117	92 . N	763,125	A7, 1	7#,1N2	1.2	13,290	7,5
PECIUNAL TOTAL OF	'n								
	10,096,56N	6,664,157	66,0	5,665,482	\$5,0	235,783	1.5	746,387	11.5
CULOPANO	J, 070, 422	622,117	20,3	392, 372	6.1	61,914	10.0	167,831	27,0
NIMTAVA	1,674,676	917,2RU	54,A	712,152	10,9	40,028	H.7	45,100	20,4
NGNTH DARHTY	304,862	217,873	71,5	177,500	.	3,145	1,5	37,178	17.1
SUDTI DAKOTA	370,91N	240,497	61,8	230,778	96.0	612	J	9,107) . #
UTAH	6,560,125	1,353,488	20.6	1,056,730	78.1	136,891	10,0	161,867	
NYAMENG (+) ENDECATES MERUENG DATA.	903,46A	112,002	46.4	122,948	16.6	5,104	J,6	[],948	9,1

87

83

•

OUAHIFREZ STATUS HEPORTI PHOGPAR ANALYSIS (PART I) JIPA-DISLOCATED MORKERS FY RJ/R4 GRANTS 7-01-H4 TERONGH 6-30-85 TITLE III-CONDINED

.

- 1

	OILLEGAT LINAL ANTHON LEY	EXFENDETURES	N OF DPLIG	THAINING FAPENDITUREB	N OF Total Expend	SIIPPONT Expenditures	N OF TOTAL Expend	ADMIN Expenditures	V OF TOTAL EXPEND
RECEINAL TOTAL HA	12,294,463	3,443,257	28.4	2,722,480	77.9		ŧ,2	485,038	13,9
AH 1 ZIVHA	1,433,554	7,964,344	75.1	2,273,208	76.7	151,650	5.1	539,400	19.2
CALIFORNIA	14,296,141	15,221,142	۰, 41,4	11,504,758	76,1	613,864	4.0	3,024,520	19,9
114=422	526,758	303,823	57.7	269,249	11,6	1,309	۱,	33,265	10,9
• NEVADA	1,208,237	65W,6NA	54,5	604,060	91.7	9,201	1,4	45,267	6,9
• Antil, Samija	37,090	â	. fi	0	,0	0	•0	O	.0
fillan	624,692	A	•0	0	•0	¢.	,0	0	•0
* + R A A	15,764	0	•1	0	.0	ņ	•0	Û	.0
• TRUST TERR,	163,974	đ	, 0 ⁴	0	•0	â	۰,	O	,0
NEGJIMAN TOPAN 119	4N, A02, 475	19,149,921	46,9	14,731,275	76,9	776,114	4,1	3,642,532	17,0
A I. A SK A	1,061,075	284,286	26,8	256,689	. 40,3	3,000	1,1	24,597	0,7
EDANO	1,514,049	760,261	50.2	599,157	78,8	37,444	5,0	123,260	16,2
ORFGUI (*) INDICATES MISSING DATA	6,115,291 •	3,526,248	51.5	3,207,341 883	92.1	9,177	.)	269,750	7.6



REPORT NOT OSP-VILL

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORTE PRIGRAM ANALYSES (PART 1) JTPA-DESLOCATED WORKERS FE REFACE GRAMES 7-DE-ME TURINGE 6-30-85 FETUR EEF-COMDENED

н I

	OHUIGATIUNAU Anthority	EXPENDITURES .	N OF UBLIC	THATNING EXPENDITURES	N OF TOTAL EXPEND	SHPPORT Expenditures	N OF TOTAL Expend	ADNEN Elpendetungs	N OF Total Expend
NASILINGTON	8,376,960	4, 322, 446	51.6	1,199,515	1,1	243,284	5,6	979,627	22,7
PECIONAL TIITAL, 10	17,746,475	#,893,261	50,0	7,202,722	41, 9	293,305	3,1	1,197,234	15,7
NATIONAL TOTAL	343,467,491 DATA.	158,965,430	46.3	121,770,75R	76,6	10,904,198	6,4	26,282,474	16,5

٠

.

14

85



QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT: PROGRAM ANALYSIS JTPA-DISLOCATED VORKERS FY83/04 GRANTS 7-01-84 THROUGH 6-30-P5 TITLE III-COMBINED

	TOTAL SERVED	COST PER Served	TOTAL TERMS	COST PER TERMENATEONS	CURRENT ENROLLHENT	TOTAL Expenditures
CT	639	1,679	649	2,170	190	1,408,327
34	576	988	415	1,371	161	560,001
MA	3,984	559	3,013	740	971	2,220,230
NH	412	804	315	1,952	97	331,352
M	462	1,872	439	1,970	23	864,848
VT	170	1,253	121	1,760	49	212,954
REGIÓN	AL TOTAL 01 6,443	871	4,952	1,134	1,491	5,614,592
LN	9,358	446	4,845	861	4,513	1,173,665
NY	1,911	1,513	801	1,737	1,180	6,998,016
PH	700	3,613	497	5,096	20]	2,532,460
VI +	()	1,825	19	4,130	24	78,476
HEGION	AL TIITAL 02 12,002	1,141	÷	2,237	5,920	13,782,625
ŊĘ	112	257	, 154	501	410	198,539
0Č (+} 1N	685 HECATES MESSENG	858 0474, Phi	685 SVIALS PERIAR PATS P	858 199977997999	٥	508,044
		. *	(j()			



· .



OUARTERLY STATUS REPORTI PROGRAM AMALYSIS JTPA-DISUNCATED VORKERS FYAJ/04 GRANTS 7-01-04 THROUGH L-30-05 TITLE III-CONMINED

	TOTAL SERVED	COST PER Served	TOTAL TERMS	CABT PER TERNINATIONS	CURRENT ENHOLL#ENT	TOTA EXPENDITI
ND	3,730	783	2,787	1,042	943	2,920,71
PA	8,767	796	4,269	1,635	4,491	6,978,5(
¥A	7,082	374	5,860	452	1,222	2,450,90
PA.	1,249	1,413	656	2,870,	613	1,8#2,5(
REGION	AL TOTAL 03 22,305	682	14,611	1,042	7,694	15,219,31
AL	3.001	1,556	2,064	2,263	437	4,670,86
FL	2,04"	720	1,174	1,251	167	1,468,87
GN	975	2,304	664	3,303	311	2,246,01
KY	2,039	403	1,152	1,190	1,647	1,371,40
N5	2,908	742	2,128	1,01)	780	2,156,70
MC	\$,675	658	3,776	1,512	4,899	5,710,27
δC	5,425	519	3,115	971	2,710	3,024,61
TH	2,275	947	1,422	1,535	85)	2,153,89
	AL TUPAL 04 20,539	749	15,495 110 - 110 - 114 - 114 - 114	1,472	13,044	22,802,71

87

•



QUARTERLY STAYUS REPORTS PROGRAM AMALYSIS JIPA-DISLOCATED WORKERS FYB)/84 GRAMTS 7-DI-04 THROUGH 6-30-85 TITLE SIL-COMBINED

,789 ,753 ,480	798 •13	7,051 5,412	1,669	• 7,738	11,766,359
	•13	5,412			
,490			1,165	2,341	6,304,251
	1,647	5,407	2,5::	3,073	18,132,854
,768	579	3,460	798	, 1,308	2,762,569
,52)	145	7,820	1,304	3,70)	10,194,850
,452	918	1,530	1,418	1,922	\$,003,833
L 05 ,765	953	32,680	1,535	20,085	50,164,716
,859	323	1,972	636	1,887	1,255,157
653	2,902	471	3,885	182	1,429,712
582	1,302	327	2,317	255	757,614
,386	795	941	1,164	445	1,095,677
,420	1,203	4,257	1,935	2,163	8,238,654
L 06 1,904	1,021	7,96%	1,654	4,932	13,176,814
,230 1135TH	529 G DATA, PHPY	2,421 Inus preton 0414 4	705 KIINSTETITEN	809	1,707,114
, 9 1	04 10	01 1,021	00 1,021 7,968 10 529 2,421 1335THG DATA, PHYVIOUS PERIOD 0474 9	00 1,021 7,968 1,654 10 529 2,421 705 1335THG DATA, PREVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED	ion 1,021 7,964 1,654 4,932

.



QUARTERLY STATUS REPORTS PROGRAM AMALYSIS JTPA-DISLOCATED WURKERS FY03/84 GRAWTS 7-01-84 THRCUGH 6-30-85 TITLE III-COMBINED

	TOTAL SCHVEN	COST Per Served	TOTAL TERMS	COST PER TERMINATIONS	CURRENT ENROLLMENT	TOTAL ' Expenditures
K S	(,498	724	994	1,090	504	1,083,912
NØ	6,650	451	5,739	523	911	3,002,009
NE	961	911	863	1,014	98	875,117
NCGIÓ	INAL TOTAL 07 17,339	54J	10,017	\$6 \$	2,322	6,640,152
02	57¥	1,076	249	2,509	330	622,117
K T	1,952	470	1,039	199	113	917,280
NŪ	182	1,197	())	1,638	49	217,073
50	350	687	159	1,513	191	240,497
IT	1,501	856	906	1,494	675	1,353,444
WY	67	2,119	41	3,463	26	142,002
akgli	DWAL TOTAL OS 4,710	742	3,126	1,050	1,384	3,493,157
AI	3,707	783	2,700	1,066	1,007	2,964,3\\$
CA	1,435	1,723	5,980	2,546	2,853	15,22),142
H1 (+}	VIA ENDECATES ALSSEN	325 7 DATA, PHEV	721 10119 PEDTOP DATA	421 4114 44 T TUTO D	21)	303,023



68

•

OUARTERLY STATUS REPURT: PROGRAM AMALYSIS JTPA-DISLOCATED WORKERS FYAJ/84 GRAMTS 7-01-84 THROUGH 6-30-85 TITLE IIT-COMBINED

	TOTAL BEAVED	COBT PER SERVED	TOTAL TEPHS	COST PER TERMINATIONS	CURRENT EHROLLHEHT	total, Expenditurea
NY O	1,377	478	1,064	619	3(3	658,608
A\$	0	1	0	, 1	n	0
GU 🔹	· 0	ł	0	•	0	0
CM	· 0	ł	0	1	n	0
TT	0	1	Q	1	0	Û
REGION	AL TOTAL 09 14,933	1,282	10,545	1,816	4,388	19,149,921
ÅK	329	461	24	11,\$43	305	284,286
ID	635	1,197	453	1,678	142	760,261
òn	2,765	1,275	2,353	1,497	410	3,526,268
WA	6,946	622	5,048	\$56	1,498	4,327,446
REGIÓN	AL TOTAL 10 10,675	633	7,480	1,129	2,795	A, 493,261
		⁷ 895 Data, previ	113,636 OUB PERIOD DATA BI	1,349 Urbituted	64,055	154,965,430 2'



•

QUANTERLY STATUS REPORTS INPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-UISLUCATED WORKERS FYB3/84 GHANTS 7-01-84 THROUGH 6-30-85 TITLE III-CONDINED

.

	OHLIGATIONAL Authority	DRAWDOWNS	N OF All∩t	EXPENDITURES	N OF ALL-DT	TOTAL Served	CO ST PER SERVED	Current Enrolieu
Ct	1,651,906			1,400,327	85,3	819	1,679	190
ME	1,980,467			560,001	28,7	576	988	161
NÅ	6,391,613			2,220,230	34,9	3,98¢	228	971
ИН	1,050,000			331,352	31.5	412	604	97
RI	1,512,596			864,848	57,2	462	1,172	23
VT	201,550			212,954	75,6	170	1,253	1 49
REGIONAL	L TOTAL OJ 12,860,940			5,614,592	43,6	6,443	171	1,491
LN.	9,452,477			4,173,665	44,2	9,358	446	4,513
WY	22,649,519			6,998,016	30,9	1,901	3,533	1,180
PA	5,899,579			2,532,468	42,9	700	3,610	203
¥1 +	305,146			78,476	25,7	43	1,825	24
HEGIONI	L TOTAL 02 34, 106, 721			1 1,702,625	16.0	12,0#2	1,141	5,920

(*) INDICATES MISSING DATA, PHEYIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED I/-BASED ON COST/UNIX SERVED OF \$1,546 2/-MASED ON PRODUCTION SHIELDER PORT CONDUCTION OF TO THE

.



REPURT NOI OSR-IX

,

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORTS IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-DISLOCATED NORKERS FYNJ/84 GRANTS 7-01-84 THKONGH 6-30-85 TITLE III-CONDINED

	NBLIGATIONAL Authority	DHANDOWNS	N OF Allot	EXPENDITURES	5 OF ALLOY	TOTAL "SERVED	COST PER SERVED	CURRENT EmpollED
DE	443,,500			198,539	44,1	112	257	410
DC	1,197,439			588,044	47.1	685	158	0
ND	5,401,141			2,920,775	54.1	1),730	713	943
8 4	21,733,528			6,978,567	35'1	1,767	796	6,494
¥¥	4,110,030			2,650,96)	64,5	7,082	374	1,222
WW	3,902,435			1,882,548	48,2	1,269	1,413	613
REGIÓN	AL TOTAL OJ 36,788,913			15,214,300	41,4	22,305	682	7,494
AL.	8,538,242			4,679,862	54,7	3,001	1,556	917
ri.	9,737,690			1,468,071	15,1	2,041	720	167
GA	5,019,446			2,246,094	{ {,7	975	2,304	311
KY	5,925,304			1,371,404	23.1	2,839	483	1,447
HE	2,654,628			2,156,702	Ø1,2	2,908	742	780

.

(+) INDICATES HISSING DATA, PHEVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED LI-BASED ON COST/UNIT SERVED OF \$3,546 2/-BLAFA AN DER DETEN PAD-AV-VELD CONDERS CONSERVED IN . 96 ٠

ι



REPORT NOI OSR-11

QUARTERLT STATUS REPORTI INPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-DISLOCATEO MORKERS FEBJ/84 GRANTS 7-01-84 Through 8-10-85 Title It1-Combined

• •

93

	QBLIGATIONAL Authority	DRANDOWNS	L DF	EXPERDITURES	N OF ALLOT	TOTAL Served	COST PER SERVED	CURRENT Enrolled
					•			
NC	6,802,835			5,710,775	83,5	8,675	658	4 , 199
6C	5,550,818			3,024,611	\$4,5	5,875	519	2,710
TN	7,770,357	• •		7,153,093	27.7	2,275	947	85)
REGIONAL	. TOTAL 64 57,019,170			22,802,712	(3,8	78,539	799	13,044
IL	19,194,567			11,766,359	61,3	14,789	796	7,738
IN	17,889,731			6,304,751	48.9	7,753	813	2,341
MI	25,378,889			14,132,854	55.7	8,480	1,667	3,073
MN	5,975,563			2,762,569	46,7	4,768	579	1,308
04	23,870,307			10,194,850	42.7	11,523	185	3,703
¥1	4,584,513			5,003,033	76.0	5,457	916	1,922
REGIONA	L TOTAL 05 \$3,893,505			50,164,716	53,4	52,765	951	20,085
	3,180,414			1,755,157	39,5	3,459	175	1,887

10) INDICATES MIRSING DATA, PREVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED 17-Mased um costrumit semved of 83,546 27-Mased om phojected emb-of-yfan Comment enkolinent of 44,700



REPORT NOT USH-IX

OUARTERLY STATUS REPORTE IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-DISLOCATED WORKFRS FY83/84 GRANTS 7-01-84 Throngm 6-30-85 7 Tile III-Commined

	ORLIGATIONAL Authority	DHAHQUANZ	N OF ALLOT	EXPENDITURES	S OF ALLDT	TOTAL Serveo	COST Per Serveo	CURRENT Enfolled
LA	4.960,023			1,829,712)6.9	653	2,802	182
N H	2.423,321			757,614		582	1,302	255
Ω#	2,000,709			1,095,677	54.8	2.386	791	445
TX	16,045,584			8,238,654	51.3	6,420	1,283	2,163
REGIONA	L TOTAL 06 28,610,031			13,176,814	46,1	12,900	1,021	4,932
1.4	2,564,245			1,707,114	66.6	3,230	529	809
* 5	2,892,075			1,083,912	37.5	1,498	724	504
=0	3,696,939			3,002,009	81,2	6,650	451	911
×c	943,309			\$75,117	92.8	961	911-	98
REGIONA	L TOTAL 07 10,096,568			6,668,152	66.0	12,339	540	2,322
CD	3,070,622			622,117	20.3	578	1,076	330
P T	1.674,676			917,240	54.8	1,952	470	11)

(*) INDICATES MISSING DATA, PREVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED 17-Mased on cost/unit semare of \$3,546 27-Mased on numberso encourages conduct cost of a 200

98





DUARTERLY STATUS REPORTI IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-DISLOCATED WERKERS FY83/84 GRANTS 7-01-84 THROUGH 6-30-85 Title 111-Combined

						-			
	OSLIGATIONAL Authority	DRANDOWNS	S OF Allot	EXPENDITURES	N OF ALLOT	TOTAL Serveo	COST PER ' Served	Current Enrolled	
ND	304,862			217,873	71.5	102	1.197	49	
50	370,910			240,497	64.8	350	687	191	
υT	6.560.125			1,353,408	20.6,	1,501	056	675	
¥Ť	303,460			142,002	46,8	67	2.119	26	
FEGIONA	L TOTAL 08 12,284,663			3,493.237	20.4	4,710	742	1,384	95
*2	3,933,559			2,964,348	75.4	3,787	703	, 007	
C N	34,296,391			15,223,142	44.4	8,835	1,723	2,855	
H I	526.750			303,823	57.7	934	325	213	
NY +	1.208.237			659,608	54.5	1,377	478	313	
43	37,090			. 0	.0	0	t	o	
GU •	620.692			. 0	••	<u>o</u>	1	٥	
C#	15.769			٥	.0	٥	t	٥	
1/-8488	ICATES MISSING D on Cost/onit D on PhoifCted	SCHVED OF \$1	.546						

9ý



REPORT NOI OSR-TX

QUARTERLY STATUS REPORTI IPPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-DISLOCATED WORKEPS FYRJ284 GRANTS 7-01-84 THRONGH 6-10-85 Title Tit-Combined

	OBLIGATIONAL Authoritt	ORANDOWNS	N OF Allot	EXPENDITURES	N OF Allot	TOTAL Serven	COST PER Served	CHPRENT ENROLLED
TT	163,979			C	.0	o	۱	٥
					•			
REGIONA	L TOTAL 09 40,802,475			19,149,921	46.9	14,933	1,262	4,388
Å.K	1,061,075			284,286	26.8	329	864	305
10	1.514.049			760,261	50.2	635	1,197	182
1.e	6.845,291			3,526,268	51.5	2,765	1,275	410
- A	8,376,060			4,322,446	51.6	6,946	672	398
PEGTONA	L TOTAL 10 17.756,475			1,193,261	50.0	10,675	Β,	2,795
натіона	L TOTAL 343,467,491	99,741,297	29.0	158,965,430	46.3	177,691	895	64,055

96

(*) INDICATES MESSING DATA, PREVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED 1/-81850 DN COS7/UNIT SERVED OF 33,546 2/-81550 DN PROJECTED END-OF-TEAR CURRENT ENROLLMENT OF 48,700



AEFORT HOL OSS-VIT

-

DUARTERLT STATUS FÖRMATS IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND TOUTH FT 1984 GRANTS 7-01-44 HARDUCH 6-30-85 TITLE 314

	· DBLIGATIONAL AUTHORITI	DRANDOWNS	N OF ALLOT	EXPENDITURES	N OF Allot	TOTAL BERVED	COST Pra 82#470	ENBOLISO CUPPENT	
nc	8,042,011			5,678,941	79.0	2.465	2,200	נז	. *
#0	31,537,029			19,540,644	58.3	37,540	1,111	3,802	
P A	126.614.098			74,671,783	59.0	39,656	1,403	15,452	
¥ A	39,143,029			29,716,048	65,7	17,307	1,469	\$4,263	
- ¥¥	25,275,899		•	14,493,837	57.3	7,278	2,005	2,056	97
REGIÒN	AL TOTAL 03 238,353,866			143,268,270	60.1	87,996	3,643	36,994	
AL	56,756,123			37,106,037	65.4	24,198	1,533	5,106	
7L	19,560,676			52,826,818	59.0	23,852	2,215	4 - 8 99	
GA	49,929,803			26,526,270	53,1	17,721	1,49.	4,736	
FT	52,640,384			28,483,981	54.1	22,400	1,271	5,844	
P6	32,055,302			20,023,607	62.5	17,93	1,119	3,677	
*C	58,609,433			31,378,696	53.5	27,13	4 1,195	a .020	
8C (/) IN	36,741,949 DICATES NI38140	; DATA, PREVI	NUS PERIO	24,076,597 0 DATA SUBSTITU		20,190	1,180	7,743	

AC JA, 141, 447 (*) INDICATES HISSING DATA, PREVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED 1/-RASED ON COST/HHIT SERVED OF 41, 949 2/-945FD ON PROJECTED END-OF-TEAR CURRENT ENROLLMENT OF 363, 700

10í



AEPONT NOI DSR-VII

DUARTFRLY STATUS REPORTS INPLEMENTATI'S PROGRESS JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND TOUTH FT 1984 GRAMTS 7-01-84 Throuc" 4-39-85 Title 11A

	ARLIGATIONAL Authoritt	DRAVDOWNS	% OF Allot	EXPENDITURES	1 OF ALLOT	TOTAL BERVED	COST PER SERVED	CUPPENT Enpolled
Tal	64,591,76]			32,131,172	49.T	25,694	1,251	7,291
REGION	AL TOTAL 04 440,915,429			252,503,173	5T, J	179,340	1,400	47,418
16	131,706,714			70,397,197	53,4	49,707	1,416	19,603
1	, 61,583,372			37,182,420	40,4	27,022	1,376	٩,003
•1	133.972,099			T8,094,004	58.3	52,246	1,495	14,336
	32,834,281			21,246,772	44,8	21,735	978	1,050
ры	136,595,310			T5,297,948	55,1	56,964	1,370	18,587
*1	50,984,194			33,451,835	66 ,0	29,069	1,130	7,501
PEGIÓN	VAL TOTAL 05 547,675,970			315,890,174	57,7		1,314	72,240
4.0	23,108,418			13,446,302	58,7	19,148	703	4,009
LA	52,218,416			23,757,593	45,5	14,952	1,401	5,513
k H	13,943,920			9,278,301	44,5	4,015	1,547	1,400
1/-81	19,511,806 NDICATES HISSING SED DH COST/UNIT SED DH PROJECTED	SERVED OF ST	. 969			13,410	971	3,865

27-BASED DW PROJECTED FND-OF-TEAR CURRENT ENHOLLMENT OF 363,700

102



PEPORT HOL OSR-VIL

OVARTFRET STATUS REPORTS INPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND YOUTH FT 1984 GRANTS 7-01-84 Through 6-30-85 Title IIA

.

99

	DOLIGATIONAL DRA-ZOWNE Authority	N OF EI Allot	IPENDI TURKS	s af Allat	TOTAL Served	COST PER Berved	CURRENT FNBOLLED
T I	119,940,840		70,967,621	59,2	43,203	1,643	. 12,741
FECTO	4AL TOTAL 66 228,723,400	1	130,492,123	57,1	98,728	1,322 -	27,408
1.4	27.650,229		15,720,346	56,9	11,324	1,300	3,495
*5	15,149,154		7,920,253	52,3	7,592	1,043	2,589
HD.	44,106,409		26,231,869	s, s,	19,244	1,362	4,132
¥E	8,504.697		6,111,357	71.9	4,776	1,240	1,604
PECIO	NAL TOTAL 67 95.410,889		55,983,845	58,7	42,962	1,303	17,316
cò	23,249.53B		14,337,840	61,7,	12,937	1,108	3,450
NT	7,711,124		4,963,277	64.6	3,109	1,596	460
*0	6,076,745		3,757,433	61,8	2,454	1,529	#3Z
80	6,346,291		2,992,366	47.0	3,278	913	1,075
UT	10,757,778		7,222,504	67,1	6,307	1,145	1,773
NT 1411	7.029,362 HDJCATEG MISSING DATA, PREVIO SED ON COST/UNIT BERVED OF 81	US PERIOD DA	3,088,593 TA BUBSTITHI	43.9 ED	1,828	1,690	- 113

1/-RASEN ON COST/UNIT BERVEO OF 81,969 2/-BASED ON PROJECTED END-OF-YEAR CURRENT ENROLLMENT OF 363,700



REPORT NOT OSR-VII

OUARTERLT STATUS REPORTS IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND YOUTH FY 1984 GRAXTS 7-01-84 HARDICH 6-30-85 Title IIA

•

100

	OBLIGATIONAL AUTHORITI	DRAWDONNE	§ 07 Allot	EXPENDITURES	3 OF Allot	TOTAL BERVED	COST PER SERVED	CURRENT
	AL TOTAL 08				•			
	61.190.842			36,362,025	59,4	29,917	1,215	8,723
A Z	29.267,169			17,125,820	58.5	10,316	1,660	2,227
C A	256,312,845			142,685,472	55.7	65,612	2,175	13,442
HI	7.280,149			\$,577,023	24.4	2,497	2,233	594
NV	8,837,307			6,098,083	49.0	2,919	2,089	631
43	474,587			354,962	74,8	431	424	227
CU	2,381,806			894,353	37.5	863	1,936	252
C.	149,680			106,648	, 71.3	102	1,046	67
11	1,798,420			974,869	54.7		1,102	387
PEGION	AL TOTAL 09 306.507,082			173,817,230	56.7	83,625	2,079	17,829
AR	6.206.432			3,400,479	54.8	1,704	1,996	316
10	1, 124, 758			6,131,496	45.0	4,332	1,413	667
1/-815	BO, B29, 967 NOICATES NISSIN SFO UN CONT/UNIT SFO DN PROJECTED	JERVED OF 41	. 969			13,567	1,145	2,629

27-BASED DH PROJECTED END-DF-TEAR CHARENT ENHOLEMENT OF 161,700



QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT: INPICATION PROGRESS JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND TOUTH FT 1984 GRAHTS 7-01-04 Through 6-10-85 Title IIA

	ORLIGATIONAL Authoritt	OFANDOWRS	S OF ALLOT	EXPENDITURES	5 OF AL1.07	TOTAL Rerved	COBT PER Served	CURPENT FHROLLFO
VA	46,217,083			27,720,813	\$0, 0	1#,842	1,471	4,542
PEGIÓNAL	TOTAL 10 92,078,248			55, 496, 356	60.3	38,443	1,444	8,206
9477	LA RISSING	DATA, PAEVIDUS Served of \$1.9	FERIOD	1,410,418,004 DATA SUBSTITUT WROLLNENT OF 34	- 011	941,612	1,476	267,291
					•			
						•	·	

105



TREPHER NOT USER.

.

QUARTERLY STATHS REPORTS FROGRAM ANALISTS (PART 1) JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND TOUTS PT 1944 GRANTS 7-01-84 THROUGH 6-JU-85 TITUE ITA

i.

...

·

٠

	0#116#1198#L A4100#11¥	EIPENDITURES Governins 228		EXPENDITURES	4 0F Offic	TRAINENG RIPENDITURES	N DF TOTAL Espend	SUPPORT Expendences	N OF TOTAL EXPEND	AUNEN Expensioners	L OF TOTAL EIPEND
C1.	21,147,619	2,724,117	0,1	13,201,334	6,2.4	10,414,403	78,9	* 770,246	5,0	2,012,605	15,2
#E	¥,076,069	5,589,521	^ 17.5	6,375,203	70.2,	4,715,510	74.0	554,738	1,7	1,104,955	17.3
	42,491,111	4,718,314	11.4	29,709,126	69.5	22,204,121	74,5	7,636,958	1,7	4,946,047	18,6
WIE	7,623,439	655,855	1,6	3,012,185	34,5	2,178,887	72.3	186,695	6,7	616,603	21,5
#2	9,418,272	1,598,782	-17.4	6,364,441	67.6	4,619,097	72,6	660,6 1 8	10.4	1,004,616	17.0
¥Ť	6,159,673	659,676	10.1	3,319,731	51,9	2,307,136	71.9	354,557	10,7	577,238	17.4
RECIONAL 11-4	70741. 01 96,314,683	12,105,265	12,6	67,061,980	41,4	46,526,034	75,0	5,163,892	٩, ١	19,372,964	16,7
NJ.	64,293,748	4,246,222	6,6	41,552,592	61,6	31,292,398	75,3	3,983,129	1,4	\$,277,073	15,1
NT	140,296,239	19,662,731	12,3	101,017,111	63,0	• · 74.145,129	73.4	9,291,613	9,2	17,580,371	17.4
P R	87,380,849	4,942,815	5.7	40,461,569	46,3	22,761,448	54,}	10,124,607	25,0	7,573,464	18.7
¥£	2, 391, 421	147,654	7.0	1,511,556	63,2	1,093,566	n.)	177,835	11,4	245,159	16.2
UNEGIDHAL 11-1	101AL 02 111,356,257	29,059,422	9.2	121,542,828	58.7	129,242,543	78.1	23,574,182	12,4	31,676,063	17.2
ек (+) (м	5,741,408 DICATES MISSING	743,217 DATA,	11.4	1,217,017	56.0	2,756,211	45.7	13,114	,1	447,602	13.9

1:0



.

i

OHARTEPLT STATUS PEPDHT: PROGRAM AHALTSIK (PART E) JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND YOUTH PT 1984 GRANTS 7-01-84 THROUCH 6-30-85 TITLE BIA

ъ I

	lint[GAT{linat AllThUATT	EXPENDITURES Governors 225	N OF Oblig	EIFENDITURES	4 07 Dalija	TRAINING EXPENDITURES	N OF TOTAL FRPEND	BUPPORT Kapenditures	N OF TOTAL Expend	AQHEN CIPENDITURES	N OF TOTAL Expend
				•				•			
υC	8,042,011	1,278,961	15.9	5,624,941	78,0	3,957,786	70.)	848,097	15.1	#2J,05#	14.6
#D	13,537.424	4,228,516	12.6	. 19,540,444	51,J	14,478,245	74.1	1,520,380	7,8	3,512,014	10,1
P4	126,614,998	10,746,549	1,5	74,671,783	59.0	55,057,478	13.7	8,013,171	10.7	11,600,934	15,5
¥A	34,143,029	4,707,181	12.0	25,716,048	65.7	19,774,526	76.9	2,415,585	9.1	1,445,937	11,4
*1	25,275,844	2,835,276	11,2	14,493,837	57,3	10,017,690	74,6	1,553,205	10,7	2,126,154	14.7
84610001	TOTAL BJ				4						
]]-A	224,353,866	24,550,718	10.3	143,268,270	60,1	106,838,164	74.4	14,4€3,702	19.1	21,986,404	15,3
ÅL	56,756,123	7,642,179	13.5	37,106,037	45,4	25,041,415	67.5	7,266,181	19,6	4,798,381	12,4
t.	89,560,674	3,056,961	3,4	52,426,810	59,8	34,873,105	75.5	4,609,794	8,7	8,343,919	15,8
GA	49,939, 1 83	4,523,582	9.1	26,526,270	53.1	18,834,388	71.0	3,524,554	0.0	4,167,324	15.7
FT.	52,660,184	1,851,507),5	28,483,481	54,1	16,791,019	58,9	7,977,224	24,7	4,645,711	16.4
#\$	12,055,142	4,095,711	12.4	20,023,607	62,5	16,177,195	Þ0.8	1,405,733	1.0	2,440,634	17.2
HČ	54,609,431	7,309,925	17.5	31,328,696	53,5	23,704,061	75.7	2,171,617	4,3	1,417,111	i 17.4
5C	36,741,949	3,591,711	1,1	74,076,597	65,5	14,567,717	61,1	4,203,450	17,8), 25,23(13,4
TH (") 1	64,591,763 HDICATLS HISSING	3, 107,759 UATA,	5.1	12,131,172	49,7	25,456,586	79,2	1,997,782	6,2	4,676,80	1 14.6
8C Th	36,741,949 64,541,763	3,591,711 3,107,759	٩,٩	74,076,597	65,5	14,567,717	61,1	4,203,650	17 , #), (15,2)	n 1



QUARTERLY STATUS REPURTS PROGRAM AWALYSIS (PART T) JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND YOUTH PT 1984 GRANTS 7-01-84 THROUGH 6-30-85 Title STA

•

.

•

	UNLIGATIONAL AUTIORITY	ELPENDITURES Governors 22%		EXPENDITURES	n of Dollg	TRAINING Expendetines	L OF TOTAL EIPEND	SUPPORT EXPENDITURES	N OF TUTAL Expend	AUMIN Expenditures	N AF Total Lxpend
,						,		٩			
RECIUNAL 11-A	TUTAL 04 410,915,425	35,379,335	١.0	252,503,173	57.3	1#2,450,548	12,3	37,286,364	12,8	17,766,041	13,0
11	131,706,714	20,814,928	15,8	70,397,197	53,4	52,863,254	75,1	6,330,518	۹.0	11,203,825	15,7
11	41,503,372	6,659,964	10.4	37,182,420	60.4	28,614,411	77.0	3,580,858	٩,6	5,387,151	14,5
#1'	133,472,099	17,201,799	-12.4	78,094,006	58,3	58,459,917	75,1	7,438,071	1,5	11,796,018	15,1
3 H	32,834,241	4,418,023	0.5	21,266,772	64.R ₁	15,320,561	72.4),88A,341	14,5	2,857,870	13,4
04	1)4,595,310	10,742,597	1.9	75,297,948	55.1	54,490,473	72,4	9,009,452	12,9	11,798,023	15.7
W]	50,944,194	8,042,292	15,2	23,651,831	66,0	26,398,488	78.4	2,953,980	1,1	4,259,363	12,0
AKGIGNAL II-A	10146 05 \$47,675,970	67,878,603	12,4	315,490,174	57.7 ,	236,547,104	, 74.9	32,008,824	19.1	47, 342, 259	15.0
A.R	2),109,418	2,799,366	17.1	13,466,302	51,3	10,040,686	74,6	1,519,646	រេត	1,905,970	14,2
T.A.	52,210,116	3,764,512	11.0	23,757,593	45.5	15,967,717	ตัว	3,756,158	15,0	4,033,718	17.0
#4	11,943,920	2,455,457	17.6	9,278,381	ñh,5	6,140,772	64,5	1,838,060	15.7	1,766,549	11,7
n K	19,511,806	1,014,649	15.5	13,022,226	66.7.	10,038,831	77.1	1,427,583	10,9	1,560,817	12,0
73 198 th	119,910,440 01CATES PISSING	7,011,860 1474.	5.R	70,967,624	lið	19,115,361	67.2	\$0,664,509	13,0	11,187,251	15,4

1 } }

i

104

.

OUANTERLY STATUS . PORTS PRIGRAM ANALYSTS (E) JTPI-PRIGRAMS FOR ADULTS AND YOUTH PE 1944 GRANTS 7-01-84 TRIOUCH 6-30-85 PITCE LIA

٠

	DALIGAT LOBAL AUTHORITT	EXPENDITURES Governmes 220		Experdituala	N OF Unlig	TRAINING PENDITHACS	N OF TOTAL EXPEND	BUPPORT Expenditures	N OF TOTAL CEPEND	ANNIN Bopendetuace	N OF TOTAL ERPEND
APGINAR 11-A	riifat, y o * 723,403	21,050,844	1.2	130,492,123	2,	91,323.467	10,4	19,193,956	14.7	19,454,300	18,3
15	451, 114	1,166,937	11.5	15,720,346	b# , 9	1,063,791	70,1	2,428,743	13,4	7, 227, 942	14,2
NS .	13,144,	9,10,710	15.1	7,920,293	34.3 ₁ '	\$,5\$7,616	70,2	1,664,638	12,4	1,247,489	16.6
#0	44,106,684	,117,35?	13.4	26,231,489	59,5	20,471,173	78,8	2,115,416	ŧ.i	3,643,300	D,F
*1	501 ×2	1, 341, 359	14.3	4,111,357	71,9	4,739,740	77,9	642,301	18,3	707,340	ii
WEGEINNAL 22-4	riifal n7 95,410,810	12,714,423	13.4	55,92 <u>)</u> ,845	58,7	41,112,340	74.2	6,151,133	11,2	7,419,439	14,1
ru	21,717,534	2,654,213	11.4	14,337,44#	61, 7	10,575,259	73,6	1,527,327	10.7	,2,2)5,262	13.6
ÞŢ	7,711,124	1,882,452	14,0	1,963,777	61.4	3,396,847	68,8	946,830	19,1	6 ;0,940	12,5
μŲ	h,434,744	725,840	11.4	3,757,513	61,0 *	3,064,614	¥1.7	146,816	3,4	542,181	, 11.0
₽ n	6,366,393	41,452	1.0	2,992,346	47,6	2,110,81	74,5	395,789	13.2	485,726	16,2
нr	14,757,774	1,204,443	11.1	7,222,5re	67,1	3,441,314	78,1	630,219	4,7	450,905	11,2
+t	7,429,5.2	119,819	11,1	1,028,593	(),1	2,616,771	64,7	71,059	2,3	J99,963	12.9
REGIUNAL 11-4 (+) 160	THTAL AN DI, 190,042 HCATLE MISSING	4,516,333 Dàta,	10,6	34, 162, 025	59,4	27,409,536	75,4	3,710,518	18,2	\$,213,9/9	11.4

105



.

OUARTFALT BTATUS RÉPUBLIE PROGRAM ANALISIS (PART 1) JIPA-PROGRAMS FOR AUGUITS AND IODITH PY 1944 GRAMIS 7-01-84 Thrungh A-30-85 Titu: 114

•

	1131.1647E11446 Authortt	ELPENDITUNES GOVERNORS 223		KAPENDITURES	N OF Units	TRAENENG PEPENDETUNES	1 0F Total Expend	SUPP.INT RIPENDITUARS	1 OF 10786 Expfnd	ADXIN Ripladi luhes	а п р 1914) 6 еррия
AI	29,247,168	3,711,201	12.7	17,125,420	54,5	12,541,158	11.2	1,740,059	10.2	7. x42,49A	16.6
(1	254,112,045	24,244,244	11,4	142,645,472	• 54.1	107,679,741	71,1	13,433,015	R,ŋ	21,572,214	14,4
HT.	7.210.149	541,723	7,5	5,577,023	76.6	4,263,743	76,5	155,651	4.2	457,626	15.4
	4,837,307	842,225	9,5	6,098,0A)	49.0	4,144,439	61,1	924,964	15,2	978,610	16.0
83	474,587	0	٥,	354,442	н.	255,323	71.*	30,909	1,7	68,730	19.4
GU	2,381,406	34,663	1,5	194,353	، 17,5	519,734	54,1	115,741	12,9	258,ATA	24.4
CN.	149,600	0	,0	106,640	11.)	75,071	70.4	15,955	15,0	15,622	14,6
11	1,748,620	247,455	16,5	974,869	54.2	791,757	#1,2	44,729	4,5	138,883	14,2
					•						
	TOTAL OF										
11-1	346,582,082	34,703,564	(1,)	173,817,230	56.7	130,327,964	75.0	14,760,525	4,5	28,713,741	16.5
ÅK.	6.706.637	489,795	7,9	3,400,479	54,0	2,693,644	. 11,2	120,928	1,6	585,907	17,2
10	4,324,758	1,427,771	15,1	6,111,696	N5.H	5,084,786	82,4	60,567	1,0	446,331	14.1
OR	30,329,967	3,114,495	- 10,1	1 7,243,36 ¥	AQ.1	15,219,574	#3.4	754,969	4,1	2,268,823	12.4
91Å (*) LW	46,217,00) DICATES HISSING	6,046,736 NATA.	11.1	27,720,813	60.0	21,164,717	16,4	2,315,491	H.4	4,216,090	15.7



OWARTFALT STATUS REPORTE PROGRAM AMALYSTS (PART 1) JTPA-PROGRAMS FOR AUULTS AND TOUTH PY 1944 GRAUTS 7-01-04 Theodol 6-30-RS TITLE 114										
UNI. I GA EI DNAL AU ENINETY	EXPENDITURES & Governors 221 of		(EXPENDITURES	or UNILIG	TRAINING EXPENDITURES	N OF Total Eipend		N DE TOTAL Fupend	ANAIN CIPENUITURES	N OF Total Eipend
8FG10841 YOTAL 10 11-4 92,078,240	11,080,997 1	12.0	53,496,)56	60.3	41,166,751	74.6	1,272,455	1,1	N,057,148	14,5
NATIONAN, TOTAG 11-A 2,421,521,650 (P) INDICATES HISSING		10.5	1,410,414,004	54.2	1,0]6,749,841	71,5	134,663,734	11.4	219,002,429	15,5

ł

11i



Mr. NIELSON. Also, I share a concern of Iowa's that I think is justified. Apparently they have utilized their funds quite well, while other States have decided not to use them. Therefore, OMB is cutting back the whole program and thereby hurting the programs of States that are able to use it.

I don't think that is very logical or very fair. It may be that States like California have other resources and don't need all of their title III money. But the Midwestern States do have problems. They have used the funds correctly. Don't you think it should depend on how well each State has used its funds rather than have an across-the-board cutback based on the overall carry-over totals?

Mr. ROMERO. If Iowa continues and it does have a substantial problem, and if it continues to have a substantial problem, there is always the possibility of sub-itting proposals to the Secretary for the use of the discretionary funds.

Mr. NIELSON. I agree with that but the other point is, should the budget cutback be dependent on how it is used nationally or should it be based on what the different States are able to do?

Several people made the statement, Mr. Broich, Mr. Smith, Iowa should not be penalized for other States' inaction.

Mr. ROMERO. My own personal judgment is that the Secretary ought to have the flexibility to, and discretion to target the funds where the needs are.

Mr. NIELSON. I appreciate that point of view, because I think that is very important.

The last question: States are going to be penalized for carrying over money if they have a surplus. Don't you think this practice encourages the States to target and spend the title III money too quickly? Is there a possibility of a spend-or-lose-it problem? Is there not some way to evaluate how well they use it?

Mr. ROMERO. Exactly.

Mr. NIELSON. What you get for the dollar, rather than how much you spend. It would help Iowa, I think it should depend on what is accomplished, don't you?

Mr. ROMERO. Yes, indeed, sir. I might add that we encourage training and retraining for dislocated workers in general.

The record shows that the predominant service provided dislocated workers at this point in time is job search assistance as opposed to on-the-job training and classroom training, and part of the expenditure problem I think relates to that, relates to the low-cost services being provided dislocated workers in some States.

Mr. NIELSON. It has been estimated that only 4 to 5 percent of the people who might be eligible for JTPA actually receive help. For various reasons, they don't apply for it or they miss out because of a technicality.

If only 4 or 5 percent utilization is correct, how can you justify a 55 percent cut in the total program?

Mr. ROMERO. I can't answer that.

112

Mr. NIELSON. Is it because we have not sold the need to the administration or is it because the funds have not been spent wisely? Or is it because we don't think we need retraining or that the economy is strong enough now so that we don't need JTPA such as we did 2 years ago?



Mr. ROMERO. The answer we have provided in the past, and I will offer it again, is that it is our hope that improvement in the economy, growth in the economy will give rise to more jobs, which then will provide——

Mr. NIELSON. So you will take category D?

Mr. ROMERO. That is right.

Mr. NIELSON. We don't need it as much as we needed it in 1982. I think that is probably true, but I don't think that is true in the Midwest. I don't think that is true in the agriculture sector, which is the problem we are concerned about here.

I want to first of all congratulate Congressman Lightfoot again for suggesting we talk about it in an agriculture setting because I believe JTPA was not set up, in your own words, with that in mind.

Mr. ROMERO. Right.

Mr. NIELSON. JTPA has shown flexibility. I would like to see it communicated to all the agricultural communities, that it is available, that you are a slow part of the economy and that this can help you to get back on your feet, and I would like to see you modify your regulations and maybe suggest changes in legislation to better target it to the agriculture worker.

Thank you very much.

Mr. FRANK. Mr. Lightfoot has more questions, but briefly let me comment first.

Dr. Romero, I appreciate you have an official role here and I admire the care with which you respond to the questions. We understand your role here.

I will venture a suggestion as to why this has not been widely publicized and partly the gentleman from Utah brought us to that point, the administration is trying to cut back on these kinds of programs and the last thing they want is to make people who are not using the program aware of the program. They don't want to drum up the demand when they have every intention of cutting back the supply.

I think that is why we were not going to get from the administration the active kind of publicity.

I think one of the things we can do is to let our farmers know that this is available.

Mr. NIELSON. I am not suggesting we hire people to go out and recruit. I m simply saying, make it generally available, make sure the States know that it is available.

Mr. FRANK. I understand; yes.

Mr. NIELSON. Let the States disseminate the existing program.

Mr. FRANK. I understand. I don't think the administration is being forthcoming in letting the States know that this is available.

I am not saying you go out and do this. You pinpointed the problem. People are not aware that they are or would be eligible. We want to be careful not to stir up any false hopes.

The administration officials should be out to let the people know what is available.

Second, I think this has been a current theme in some of our discussions with the trade adjustment assistance as well, that it is said that a growing economy is very important and we ought to be working for that increase in GNP, but I think Dr. Romero accu-



rately outlined this, what he conveyed was the administration's position that with the overall growth of the economy, many of these programs will not be necessary.

But overall growth, although a necessary condition for people to be reemployed, it is not by itself a sufficient condition. That is, if we have economic growth. Present circumstances show that to be not true.

If we have people coming into the job market but there is no industry c ming in, you won't have job opportunities for the people. But simply creation of job opportunities, when we talk about people who are at the age of 50 and find they are out of business, they are feeling psychologically guilty about it—they shouldn't because it is not their fault—they have one set of skills and they don't know they are transferrable. They may not be automatically transferrable, but they may be with help.

This is a program that is useful, and it doesn't remove the need for this program to have just growth in the economy.

I have one question for Dr. Romero. We have been talking about the question of the ability to serve and appropriation levels. If the Gramm-Rudman proposal currently pending in Congress were to go through, what would the effect of that be on your service?

Mr. ROMERO. It would have some---

Mr. FRANK. Positive or negative? Use that. Up or down. We will use neutral terms.

Would you be able to help fewer or more people?

Mr. ROMERO. I would say fewer people.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you.

Mr. Lightfoot.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Just one question, Mr. Chairman, something that might possibly be of value to us out here. In other words, \$15 million was set aside for copper and I think \$5 million for the footware industry. Has the Secretary considered doing that for agriculture as an industry, and if not, why not?

Mr. ROMERO. As you know, we have a task force on plant closures, we have set aside discretionary account funds for steel, footware, et cetera.

And the subject Mr. Smith raised with respect to a task force is the first step in discussing that proposition and hopefully reaching agreement on whether or not such a step would be desirable in setting aside dollars.

But the answer is no, the Secretary has not identified funds specifically for dislocated farmers out of the discretionary account at this time.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, gentlemen, very much.

Mr. Chairman, I think we are into an area that is new to a great degree, for example, identifying who these people are. We do have a program that works, as our two witnesses testified this morning, and I know of an instance up in Mr. Woodward's district where there are 12 or 13 people working under the program and have become employed. Several have advanced and have moved to advisory positions within the company they are working for.

It is something I think we could use and use well in our part of the country. I would hope the fact that we are dealing with a new



set of circumstances that it doesn't scare people off and they instead begin to move forward.

As both Mr. Frank and Mr. Nielson suggested, we have something that can help. It works, and like many of the programs that have been enacted, we would hore it is only temporary in nature so that we move to the point where in the future we don't need it.

That is why we are all here today anyway.

I appreciate your coming to Iowa to hold this hearing. Mr. FRANK. I want to thank the participants. It has been very useful.

I would reiterate the point Mr. Lightfoot began with, the record will remain open and if you have statements you can submit them to Mr. Lightfoot or Senator Harkins office, or any of the delegations from Iowa and we will receive the statements and you can in that way supplement the record.

My sense is, as I listen to this, is that this subcommittee will write a report based on the subject making specific suggestions of how we can further improve this program.

Thank you all very much.

The hearing is adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 12 noon, the subcommittee adjourned, to reconvene subject to the call of the Chair.]

APPENDIX

MATERIAL SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD

LINE OF THE AND A COMPANY AND

NINETY-MINTH CONGRESS

A provide the second sec

221 4781

Congress of the Entited States House of Representatives EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS RAYBURN HOUSE OFFICE BUILDING, ROOM 8-348-A WASHINGTON, DC 20516

October 21, 1985

Mr. Robert T. Jones Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary of Labor for Employment and Training U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

Dear Mr. Jones:

On Friday morning, November 15, 1985, the Employment and Housing Subcommittee will hold a field hearing to examine "The Job Training Partnership Act and the Farmers." This hearing will take place at 9:3D a.m. at Iowa Western Community College in Council Bluffs, Iowa.

The Subcommittee requests that you or another responsible agency official appear before us at this hearing to explain the Labor Department's position concerning the Job Training Partnership Act and farmers. Please discuss how the Labor Department has responded to problems encountered by farm states in administering the JTPA to meet the needs of farmers. Please also comment on how the JTPA can be tailored, either administratively or legislatively, to better accommodate the needs of farmers.

While your written testimony may be of any length, please limit your oral presentation to a ten minute summary. 25 copies of your prepared statement should be received by the Subcommittee no later than noon, Tuesday, November 12.

In connection with this hearing, we ask that you supply the Subcommittee with the following information by Friday, November 8:

Copies of any rules, policy guidelines, or interpretative memoranda prepared by the Labor Department relating to the applicability of Title III of the JTPA to farmers;

(113)

116

....



Mr. Robert T. Jones Pige 2

- A list showing each grant request made in FY 1985 and FY 1986 to date for discretionary JTPA Title III funds to be used for employment and training assistance for farmers; who made the request; the amount requested; and the amount granted by the Secretary;
- For FY 1985, a breakdown by industry or type of product showing how JTPA Title III discretionary funds for dislocated workers were distributed by the Secretary.

Should you have any questions, please contact Stuart Weisberg, the Subcommittee Staff Director, at 225-6751.

Thank you for your cooperation.

BARNEY FRANK Chairman



U.S. Department of Labor

Anial test Scoreting tra-Employment and Training Wastington, D.C. 20210



NOV - 7 1935

The Honorable Barney Frank Chairman Subcommittee on Employment and Housing Committee on Government Operations House of Representatives Washington, D.C. 20515

Deas Mr. Chairman:

T: .. is in response to your letter of October 21, requesting information on Title III of the JTPA in connection with the Subcommittee's upcoming field hearing on "The Job Training Partnership Act and the Farmers." The information requested is enclosed.

A word of clarification is needed regarding the time frames in the listings of Title III national reserve projects. In accordance with the requirements of the Act, all JTPA programs are now forward-funded with the funds provided in the annual appropriation becoming available the following July 1 on a programyear basis. Data on farm industry projects are provided from the inception of the program. The initial JTPA Program Year (PY) began July 1, 1984. Therefore, you will note the transition from fiscal to PY in that listing. The State of Iowa did not submit any proposals for Title III national reserve funds in PY 1984.

I hope that this information will be useful to you. Please let me know if I can be of further assistance.

Sincerely ue ju bal JONES Acting Deputy Assistant retary of Labor Enclosures





	CLASSIFICATION JTPA								
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR	CORRESPON ENCE SYMBOL								
• Employment and Training Administration	TDC								
Washington, D.C. 20213	April 26, 1985								
TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION NOT	CICE NO. 43-84								
TO : ALL STATE JTPA LIAISONS	^								
	FROM : FRANK C. CASILLAS F. Couldon Assistant Secretary of Labor								
SUBJECT : Service to Workers Dislocat Farms under Title III of th Partnership Act (JTPA)									
Purpose. To clarify the policy of the Employment and Training Administration (ETA) regarding the provision of training and related services to workers dislocated from farms and other dislocated workers who have been dependent on the agricultural economy.									
2. <u>Background</u> . Numerous inquiries hav concerning the question of whether dislocated from farms are eligible in dislocated worker programs under of JTPA. Some States have made the that this is a proper interpretatio Act, while others have not done so are unclear as to whether or not th the authority to interpret the Act way. Neither the Act nor its legislative specifically address the inclusion dislocated from farms under Title I Recently, however, there has been a amount of Congressional interest in a desire to include this group unde definition of "dislocated workers"	or not workers to participate Title III determination / and some ey have in this history of workers II of JTPA. certain dicating r the broad found in								
	 1								
	25 C								
	•								
RESCISSIONS	EXPIRATION DATE June 30, 1986								
OISTRIBUTION · ·	·								

119



I

3. <u>Policy</u>. ETA's policy is that States may interpret the statute, pursuant to the Governor/Secretary Agreement and 20 CFR 627.1, which states that ". . guidelines, interpretations and definitions adopted by the Governor shall, to the extent that they are consistent with the Act and applicable rules and regulacions, be accepted by the Secretary."

Section 302(a) of JTPA authorizes States ... to establish procedures to identify substantial groups of eligible individuals ... Three categories of groups are enumerated; the third of these focuses on persons who ... are long-term unemployed and have limited opportunities for employment or reemployment in the same or a similar occupation in the area in which such individuals reside ... It is ETA's position that a State interpretation of these provisions to apply to workers dislocated from farms and others dependent on the agricultural economy would not be inconsistent with the Act and applicable rules and regulations.

 <u>Inquiries</u>. Questions on this issue may be addressed co Robert N. Colombo at (202) 376-6093.

. .



.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR	JTPA		
Employment and Training Administration	TDC		
Washington, D.C. 20213	July 8, 1985		

TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION NOTICE NO. 3-85

то	:	ALL STATE JTPA LIAISONS AND STATE WAGNER-PEYSER ADMINISTERING AGENCIZE
FROM	:	ROBERTS T. JONES A Labor
SUBJECT	:	Application Procedures for Program Year 1985 Dislocated Worker Funds Reserved by the Secretary

1. <u>Purpose</u>. To transmit to State JTPA liaisons application procedures for Program Year 1985 dislocated worker projects to be supported with funds reserved pursuant to Section 301(a) of the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA).

2. <u>Reference</u>. Training and Employment Information Notice (TEIN) No. 43-84.

3. <u>Background.</u> Funds available for Title III of JTPA for Program Year 1985 total \$222.5 million. Of this amount, \$167.25 million has been allotted by formula, as prescribed in Section 301(b) of the Act, and \$55.25 million has been reserved to be used pursuant to Section 301(c) of the Act.

Pursuant to Section 301(c), the funds reserved by the Secretary must be used to serve individuals who are affected by mass layoffs, natural disasters, Federal Government actions, or who reside in areas of high unemployment or federally designated enterprise Zones. Since these funds are appropriated under Title III of JTPA, the projects operated with these funds are subject to the provisions of Title III of the Act and Federal regulations promulgated under the Act.

Generally funds will be distributed as discussed in this TEIN. However, the Secretary reserves the right to distribute some of these funds taking into consideration special circumstances and unique needs that may arise throughout the course of the program year.

RESCISSIONS	EXPIRATION DATE
	June 30, 1986

DISTRIBUTION



4. Application Procedures. To apply for Section 301(a) funds, applications for individual projects should follow guidelines contained in Attachment I. There is no requirement for matching these funds. States are encouraged to apply additional factors consistent with these application guidelines; e.g., conformity with the Governor's coordination criteria, documentation of fiscal responsibility, etc. Proposals should be carefully reviewed by the State prior to submittel to the Department of Labor, to ensure that the application guidelines have been met. Applications should be sent by certified mai', return receipt requested, to the address contained in Attachment I.

5. <u>State Assurance.</u> In the letter transmitting the proposal, the following paragraph should be included:

"If the proposed project is funded, any Title III funds awarded from funds reserved by the Secretary will be administered in general accordance with the proposal submitted and consistent with the letter signed by the Department of Labor Grant Officer accompanying the grant award."

Project proposals not accompanied by this required assurance will not be funded.

6. Other Information. Proposals will be accepted for the 1985 Program Year beginning with the date of publication of this Information Notice. The funds that have been reserved by the Secretary will be managed so as to maintain availability throughout the Program Year, thereby assuring the Secretary's ability to respond as contemplated in Section 301(c) of the Act.

The length of the proposals should be limited; a succinct proposal covering the pertinent areas in sufficient detail can be accomplished in 10 pages. Even the most complex and extensive program strategies should be presented in 20 pages or less.

The proposals should describe in some degree of detail the severity of need of a particular geographic location for the additional funds; specific clientele to be served, industries impacted and occupations lost, and the types of services to be provided, including the specific occupations for which training will be provided. Whenever possible,



information on where jobs will be obtained should also be included. Projects should generally cover no more than 1 year, but may extend for a longer period of time if sufficient justification is provided. Proposals must also provide a budget prepared with some degree of detail, with line items grouped under the "Training," "Administration," and "Participant Support" cost categories.

All applications must be submitted by the State. Applications not developed directly by the State agency administering JTPA should be reviewed by the appropriate service delivery area administrative entity, Private Industry Council, and chief elected officials(s). When a multi-State project is proposed, one State must serve as the applicant, however, the Governors of each of the States to be involved in the project must provide endorsements to indicate review of the proposal.

7. Identification of Dislocated Workers. States are authorized to establish procedures to identify substantial groups of dislocated workers pursuant to Section 302 of the Act. TEIN Nc 43-84 clarified that workers dislocated from farms and other dislocated workers dependent on the agricultural economy may be eligible to participate in dislocated worker programs under Title III of JTPA.

In developing project applications, there should be coordination with the State employment security agency to insure that funds are not dire .d to the same applicant group(s) currently being served with insde Adjustment Assistance (TAA) program funds unless there are unmet needs not being addressed through that funding source. If training, job search or relocation opportunities are available to the applicant group(s) under the TAA program, the circumstances for requesting JTPA funds for the same applicant group must be explained.

8. <u>Proposal Review</u>. Proposals will be reviewed and approved or rejected based upon the application of the selection criteria contained in Attachment III. Proposals will be considered on a timely basis, and a response may be expected within 60 days of the Department's receipt of the proposal. The review panel will meet no less frequently than once a month, and more frequently in cases of pressing need.



Generally, the Department will not be inclined to refunc a proposal approved during a previous Conding cycle. Additionally, projects previously funded by the State with formula-allotted monies will generally not receive favorable consideration.

9. <u>Funding Mechanism</u>. For Program Year 1985, the Department will issue a Notice of Obligation (NOO) to the State and an allotment supplement will be made to the State's Title III formula-allotted grant, pursuant to the Governor/Secretary Agreement. The proposal will not be considered as a work statement for the allotment of funds; rather, a letter containing the general specifications expected as a condition of the grant award will accompany the NOO, including the effective date for use of the funds. This letter and the State assurance discussed in Item \$5 above will govern the operation of the project. This is the same procedure as was used for Program Year 1984 projects.

10. <u>Project Oversight.</u> The State will be responsible for monitoring each project to ensure its compliance with the Act and the regulations. As in the case of other compliance matters, the Department will review the State's administration of these monies.

11. Inquiries. Should you have any questions concerning these procedures, assistance may be obtained by calling Robert N. Colombo, Director, Office of Employment and Training Programs, at (202) 376-6093.

- 12. Attachments
 - I. Application Guidelines for JTPA Dislocated Worker Programs Supported by Funds Reserved by the Supretary
 - II. Selection Criteria for Dislocated Worker Programs Supported by Funds Reserved by the Secretary



Attachment I

APPLICATION GUIDELINES FOR JOB TRAINING PARTNERSEIP ACT (JTPA) DIELECATED WORKER PROGRAMS SUPPORTED BY FUNDS RESERVED BY THE SECRETARY

122

Background and Purpose

Pursuant to Section 301(a), the Secretary of Labor may reserve up to 25 percent of the funds appropriated by Congress for dislocated worker programs authorized under Title III of JTPA. These funds are to be awarded to States to provide training, retraining, job search assistance, placement, relocation assistance and other aid to individuals affected by mass layoffs, natural disasters, Federal Government actions or who reside in areas of high unemployment or designated enterprise zones, in accordance with Section 301(C). These circumstances must be sufficiently severe so that (1) the needs cannot be met by other JTPA programs or other State and local programs, and (2) substantial numbers of individuals concentrated in a labor market area or industry are affected. In accordance with the Act and the regulations promulgated under the Act, the Secretary has established the following application procedures and selection criteria for Program Year 1985 Title III Dislocated Worker Programs to be supported with funds reserved by the Secretary pursuant to Section 301(a) of the Act. Generally funds will distributed in accordance with the following criteria. Rowever, the Secretary reserves the right to distribute some of these funds taking into consideration special circumstances and unique needs that may arise throughout the course of the Program Year.



Application Procedures

To apply for JTPA Title III funds reserved by the Secretary, the State should submit applications, in triplicate, for individual projects to the U.S. Department of Labor at the following address:

> Employment and Training Administration Grant Officer Dislocated Worker Program Room 5002 601 D Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20213

A copy of each application should be submitted at the same time to the appropriate regional office.

Applications sent to the Grant Officer should be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. All applications, including those initiated by the proposed project operator and submitted through the State, should follow the guidelines contained in this announcement. All projects funded are subject to the provisions of the Act and the regulations.

In the letter transmitting the proposal, the following paragraph should be included:

"If the proposed project is funded, any Title III funds awarded from those reserved by the Secretary will be administered in ger al

123

)

1:



accordance with the proposal submitted and consistent with the letter signed by the Department of Labor Grant Officer accompanying the grant award."

No proposals will be considered for funding, if this paragraph is not provided.

Time Prames: Applications for funding may be submitted at any time beginning with the issuance of this document. The funds that have been reserved by the Secretary will be managed so as to maintain availability throughout the program year, thereby assuring the Secretary's ability to respond as contemplated in Section 301(c) of the Act.

<u>Period of Performance</u>: Applications should cover a period of time generally not to exceed 1 year. Applications for periods in excess of 1 year may be submitted with supporting information.

<u>Application Components</u>: Applications should, as applicable, address the points listed below.

 Describe the need for funding the project and explain how this need was determined. The description should include (a) the unemployment rate for the area to be



125

served, (b) the unemployment rate for the State, (c) the number of individuals affected, (d) the occupations or industries affected, and (e) the number of eligible individuals to participate in the program. While each of these elements is important, specific emphasis should be placed on defining the need precisely; i.e., in terms of specific plants, occupations or geographic areas.

- Explain why the need cannot be met by existing Federal, State and local resources, including the State's JTPA Title III formula-allotted funds and Trade Adjustment Assistance Program funds provided to the State employment security agency.
- 3. Discuss how the proposed project relates to overall activities planned in the State, and explain how the proposed project is related to formula-funded dislocated worker program activities.
- Identify the occupations in which participants will be trained or retrained and provide the types and length of training for each occupation. Explain how



the potential for placements in those occupational areas was determined, including information regarding specific employers or industries that have demands for workers in those occupational areas.

5. Describe activities to be conducted, including:

- a description of the training activities
 and supportive services to be provided;
- b. a description of job search assistance, counseling, job development and placement services and how these services will be coordinated with training activities;
- c. the number of eligible participants to be served in each activity; and
- d. the coses associated with each of these activities.

Activities authorized are discussed in Title III of the Act and the regulations promulgated pursuant to the Act.





- 6. Describe the projected results expected from each of the activities to be conducted, including the estimated number of participants to be placed in unsubsidized employment, the cost per participant, the cost per placement, and the planned placement rate.
- Provide a description of the fiscal and management capabilities of the entity that will administer the proposed project.
- 8. Provide a plan for coordination with appropriate private industry councils (PICs) and chief elected officials (CEOs), and describe linkages with other employment and training-related programs, with the employer community, and, where applicable, labor organizations. Applications not developed directly by the State agency administering JTPA should be reviewed by the appropriate service delivery area administrative entity, PIC, and CEOs.
- 9. Include a detailed budget, grouping line items under training, participant support and administration cost categories. In transmitting the proposal, the Governor

127



certifies that the proposed budget conforms to the cost classifications established by the State, and assumes liability for expenditures pursuant to the budget, if the grant is awarded, subject to the provisions of Section 164(e)(2) of the Act. Additionally, the Governor certifies that matching funds offered, if any, correspond to the definitions promulgated by the Governor pursuant to Section 629.40 of the JTPA regulations.

10. provide the name, address and telephone number of the responsible State official to contact regarding the proposal. As appropriate, also provide this information for responsible local officials.



131

•

Attachment II

SELECTION CRITERIA FOR DISLOCATED WORKER PROGRAMS SUPPORTED BY FUNDS RESERVED BY THE SECRETARY

Dislocated worker program funds reserved by the Secretary pursuant to Section 301(a) of JTPA shall be used to serve individuals who are affected by mass layoffs, natural disasters, Federal Government actions or who reside in high unemployment areas or designated enterprise zones, in accordance with Section 301(c) of the Act. In addition to meeting these basic conditions, the applications will be reviewed and evaluated using the following factors:

- 1. Severity of the circ accs of need as described in the grant applicat (such as the number of individuals affected, the local and State unemployment rates compared to the national rate and the projected short- and long-term effect on unemployment).
- Concentration of the eligible individuals in a particular occupation, plant, industry or geographic area.

132



- Coordination and linkages with existing Federal, State or local programs, including the State's Title III formula-funded programs.
- 4. Services to be provided and service mix, to include specificity of occupations in which retraining will occur and, to the extent possible, evidence that demand for these retrained workers exists in the training locale.
- Assurance of project operator's fiscal and program management capabilities to administer the programs.
- 6. Cost effectiveness of the plan, e.g., cost per participant, cost per placement, and cost per activity. Level of funding dedicated to client services as opposed to staff support and administration.





JTPA Title III National Reserve Projects Farm Industry

U-Nov-1983 Page 1

.

243	STATE	LOCATION	THENETON	AMOUNT	NUMBER
-		eden (Bi	INDUSTRY	AHARDED	PARTIC: PANTS
a *3	IL.	Canton & Fulton County	Fars Esuitant	165,000	544
3 C	۶ł	Southern Texas	Form, Rotall & Real Estate		600
9 H J	•x	Cameron County	Auto, Farm & Retail	• 1:200.000	1.075
0 *0	TX .	Hidaino & Willacr Counties	Farm, Rotasl & Roal Estate	1.100.000	570
9 ~ C	TX	Mid Rio Grande Area	Farm & Retail	1.500.000	3,360
0 HC	HI	Racing	Farm Equipment	\$ 900,000	430
° 53	CA	Merced County		627,639	300
21.62	KS		Farm, Food & Government	\$ 500.000	210
av 81	IL/IA	Southwestern Kansas	Farm, Farm Equipment, Das & Oil	¥ 455,996	300
P' 64	KS	Rock Island	Farm Machine (Internt] Harvester)	\$ 560,000	400
-	-	SH Kansas	Farm, Oil & Health	\$ 624,778	400
5267	<u> </u>	Louisville	Tobacco, Appliance & Farm Machine	\$ 305,429	1.500
oE7	PN .	Statewide	Farm	1 1.019.000	780
0	CA	Hagera, Herced & Stanislas	Foos & Form	1 0	80
1	;a	. SDAN 3. 5. 12 3 14	Fare	500.000	385
	11	Southwest (A	คือกอ	• 5001000	
N 0.0	14	Central IA	Farin Food (Neas Packins) & Tire	• •	2
	!A	Statewide	Fårn		0
	IA	Dubuque & Delaware Cos	Food (Meat Packing) & Ex-offenders	• •	650
. • • • •	IA	Haterloo & Black Hawk Co	Food (Meat Packing)	• •	30
1 25	11	Statewide	Farm	1 0	223
1.05	NE	Hasnington, Doublas & Sarey		• 0	990
3	NE	Statewide	Farm,-Government & Insurance	1 0	200
2187	KA		Farm, Service & HanuFacturing	\$ 1.000.000	:50
2-07	41	Central Counties	Farm	1 0	375
- ::	4;	Milwaunee County	Farm Emutement	5 0	700



JTPA Title [[] National Reserve Projects Program Years 1884 and 1983

YEAR	STATE	LOCATION	INCUSTRY	ANDUNT ANARDED	NUHBER PARTICIPANTS
276% -	AX	St Paul, Pribilof Islands	Fur Seal	\$ 300.457	
er 34	AL	Browsnahaw	Steel		52
PYEA	AR	Iorrilian & Diceela	Textile & Paper		0
PY84	AZ	lentral & SE Arizona	Corret	8 895,040	870
PYE4	CA	LA & Grange Counties	Auto, Electronic & Health	9 600,000 9 1,000,000	350
PYB4	C0	Putver	Copper		320
PY84	C0	Pueblo County	Steel	200,000 400,000	300
PY84	DC	Washington	Not Specified		200
PYBA	GU	Quan	Covernment, Transportation & OII	100,472	0
P*84	01	Pannanele & Sheshone County	Woed, Mining (Silver) & Electronic	186,720	440
PY84	IL I	Chicano	Bteel	\$ 377,448 \$ 1,000,000	150
PY84	11	Cook Caunty	Bisel		285
PYB6	IL.	Hauseran	Narine Ennine	<pre>\$ 700,000 \$ 525,000</pre>	700
PY84	Ц	Statewide	Entererise Zenes	\$ \$50,000	440
PY84	IL/IA	Auck [s]and	Farm Maching (Internil Harvastar)	\$ 360,000	473
PY84	IL/IN	Chicago & East Chicago	Steel (Inland Steel Co)		400
PYBN	IN	Lake & Porter Counties	Steel	<pre># 1,000,000 # 700,000</pre>	1+820
PY84	IN	wa forte Caunty	Auto	1,000,000	1,140
PY64	KS	SW Kansas	Farm, Oll & Health		600
PY84	NS	Nichita	Arrespage		400
PY64	KY	Louisville	Tobacco: Appliance & Farm Hachine	8 380,505	225
PY84	ĸY	Statewide	Eteel	8 603,429	1,500
PYE4	RA .	N BerKihire County	Printing, Paper, Machine, Electronic	400,000	500
PYE4	MD	Anne Arundel Co & Beltivero	Copper	1,000,000	1,170
PYS:	нD	Ballimore County	Stael	5 200,000	150
PY94	ME	Banger	Fasturat	540,000	1,500
PY94	HI	Upper & NE Lover Centneuls	Mining(Capper, Iron Ore, Limestone)	875+000	400
P784	81		Copper	1,000,000	850
PY24	۲Ľ		Steel	500.000	0
P"E4	ΥN	NE Minnesola	Steel	\$ 340.000	0
P*:34	t'n	Blalewide	Farm	540+000	608
o64	HN .	SW Minnesota	Glass & Food	1,018,600	780
PYC4	ET	Statewice	Sanner	953,312	732
PYC4	МŤ	Butte & Silver Bow	Mining (Copper)	500,000	210
P"[4	NC	Statewide	Textale: Chemical & Fiberglass	127,203	U V
PYE4	NH	Statewide	Fostusar, Textile, Hetal & Ortical	\$ 287,282	1,405
PYC4	NJ	M:ddlesex County	Corer	511,138	480
a+C4	4.3	Mercer & Purlington Counties	Steel	400,000	285
P"[4	1.M	Grant County	Conner	000,000	215
3484	NM .	Cibala & McKinley Counties	Nining (Uraniye)	B00.000	300
3461	78		Copper	500,000	00
84.24	NY	Western New York	Auto, Steel, Food & Government	• 400,000	· 0
F"24	۹Ľ•	Statewide	Steel	\$ 4,274,307 \$ 700,000	1,428
2704	NY.	Wister County	Eleastonic	\$ 256.330	375
P"24	ÚH	Harian County	Refrigeration & Air Conditioning		400
PYES	CH	Esstern Chie	Minion (Ceal)	1,400,000	800
3424	11 - C	Northeast Chip	Petall Food	1 175,000	600
1994	Q.4	'Statewide	Steel	800,000 700,000	400
21-24	CR	Statewide	Tisber: Haod, Aluminium & Tcog		612
24134	3R	Castern Drewon	Timber 5 Repression	\$ 1,443,945 \$ 500,000	613
9	e <u>A</u>	Norinwest PA	Natural Disesser (Tornige)	• 825,300	· 15ú
PH_24	PA	Etateuide	Steel	• 700.000	1,000
4Y2.	29	Alleeneny County	Staal		2,409
				\$ 1,000,000	21:25



JTPA Title 111 National Resive Projects Propraw mars 1004 and 1003

,

Prici Classical Charlesi Martin Bartin Prici SC Martin Bartin Instite Bartin Bartin<	YEAR	STATE	LOCATION	INDUGTRY	AMOUNT AHARDED	NUMBER PARTICIPANTS
Price SC Mare Shals Intile Strile Strile </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Chenital</td> <td>1 B47 844</td> <td></td>				Chenital	1 B47 844	
Burning Burning <t< td=""><td>-</td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	-	-				
PTRE Charlesten Electronal (Seam Generators) 428,470 330 PTRE TN El Pass & Alpine Correr 400,000 0 PTRE TN Houstan M & MC Tours Buell 360,000 275 PTRE UT Wasten Frent Correr 200,000 275 PTRE UT Wasten Frent Correr 500,000 250 PTRE UT Wasten Frent Correr 500,000 350 PTRE UT Wasten Frent Correr 581,331 3500 PTRE UT Wasten Frent Tabace 2566,331 350 PTRE WA Petersbors Tabace 256,331 3500 PTRE MA Tabace Correr 400,000 200 PTRE MA Tabace Correr 400,000 200 PTRE MA Tabace Correr 400,000 200 PTRE MA Tabace Son1,21 Son1,21<	-		Statewide			
The The Correr 400,000 00 PYG TX BUILTAN, H & H Trues Statl 200,000 130 PYG Orname'lle Maine Disster 300,000 230 PYG Orname'lle Maine Disster 400,000 230 PYG Orname'lle Maine Disster 400,000 400 PYG Orname'lle Statl 400,000 400 PYG Mastech Frant Correr 515,000 300 PYG Mastech Frant Correr 525,60,000 455 PYG MA Facust Correr 525,60,000 455 PYG MA Sattiss Statiss 500 500 PYG MA Taces Correr 511,333 500 PYG MA Taces Correr 511,333 500 PYG MA Taces Correr 510,000 500 PYG MA Taces Statis 500,000			Charlessen	Electrical (Steam Generators)		
Prist Li Pate a Pipha Correr 6 200.000 130 Prist UT Granaeville Mining Disaster 6 300.000 270 Prist UT Granaeville Mining Disaster 6 300.000 270 Prist UT Granaeville Mining Disaster 6 300.000 250 Prist UT Massister Frant Carrer & 6 Elsei 1 , 2725,000 500 Prist UT Massister Frant Carrer 6 2356,531 3500 Prist Marting Disaster Tabace 6 2351,551 500 Prist Ma Tacosa Carrer 6 334,551 500 Prist Ma Tacosa Carrer 6 300,000 500 Prist Ma Tacosa Carrer 6 400,000 500 Prist Ma Tacosa Bistist 500,000 600 Prist AL Kalasses Garar Bistist 6 00,000 600 Prist AL Carea	-				-	
PT64 UT Openaeville Sivel 500,000 200 PT64 UT Openaeville Nnime Disester 1 300,000 250 PT64 UT Preve & Orren Area Event & Steel 1 4 400,000 444 PT64 UT Masatch Front Correr & Steel 1 500,000 250 PT64 UT Masatch Front Correr & Steel 1 500,000 454 PT64 UT Masatch Front Correr & Steel 1 500,000 300 PT64 MA Sattlate County Correr & Steel 1 500,000 300 PT64 MA Tacces Correr & Steel 1 500,000 300 PT64 MA Tacces Correr & Steel 1 500,000 300 PT64 MA Tacces Correr & Steel 1 500,000 300 PT64 MA Sature & Steel Notice & Steel 1 500,000 300 PT65 MA Kalesestice Notice & Steel 1 500,000 300 PT65 A Kalesestice Notice & Steel 1 500,000 300,0			El Pasu & Alpine	Correr		•
D. D. Grand First Minine Disator 6 300,600 230 PT64 UT Frace & Dres Area Birel 6 000,000 454 PT64 UT Bait Late Grant Birel 6 000,000 454 PT64 UT Bait Late Grant Birel 6 000,000 451 PT64 UT Bait Late Grant Correr 6 000,000 250 PT64 UT Bait Late Grant Correr 6 000,000 250 PT64 UA Sextle Biel 6 000,000 250 PT64 UA Sextle Biel 6 000,000 200 PT64 MA Sextle Biel 6 000,000 200 PT64 MA Sextle Biel 6 000,000 200 PT75 CA Control Muitare Nit Sextle 0 000,000 0 PT75 CA Late Sext	-					
TTA UT Hassish Frent Corver & Strei 1.727,000 2.00 PTGA UT Prove & Strei 5.001 5.001 5.001 5.001 PTGA UT Bait Late County Corver 8.000,000 453 PTGA UT Bait Late County Corver 8.000,000 850 PTGA WA Sait Late County Corver 8.000,000 850 PTGA WA Sait Late County Corver 8.000,000 200 PTGA WA Sait Sait Sait Sait Sait Sait Sait Sait	-	UT				- · ·
Pres UT Pres UT Solution	-		Wasalch Front			
PTGE UT Maattch Front Corear \$ 2,586,331 3,500 PTGE UA Petersburg E00,000 BS0 PTGE UA Petersburg Tabacoe 558,351 500 PTGE MA Tatabae Corear 581,353 300 PTGE MA Tatabae Corear 581,353 300 PTGE MA Tatabae Corear 581,551 500 300 PTGE MA Tatabae Corear 581,551 500 300 300 PTGE MA Tatabae Corear Stell 400,000 300 PTGE MA Tatabae Corear Stell 400,000 300 PTGE MA Tatabae Stell Nt Secolfied 60 400 PTGE CA LA Contra Kara Elsetronts Arear 500,000 303 PTGE CA LA Contra Kara Fara 6 60 300 PTGE CA LA Contra Kara Fara Fara 6		UT	Provo & Orem Area			• · · ·
PYBB UT Balt Lits County Conser Conser Conser Conser Conser Conser Conser Conser Statut Discord Bit Discord Bit Discord Discord <thdiscord< th=""> Discord <thdiscord< th=""></thdiscord<></thdiscord<>		UT	Wasatch Front			
Pres VA Facesa Takance Back Sol		υT	Salt Lake County			
PTR MA Tacoms Corer Solid Sol		VA	Feleriburg			
PTR6HAGentlinSteelSt	PY84	HA	Tacoma			• • •
PresHATacasaCorrer600,000210PresHUKanuha CultyClass. Hinla, CastPuction. Rets.]18,15332PresHUStatuleStel400,000800PresALKE Alasasa (Boststere)Nuclear500,0000PresCACantra & Lanox AreaElectronis0460PresCALA Contra & Lanox AreaElectronis0130PresCALA Contra & Lanox AreaElectronis0130PresCALA Contra & LanoxAreasasa1.487,380400PresCALA Contra & La ContraFood (Restaurant)1.487,380400PresCANatora, AreasaFood (Restaurant)080PresLABada J. J. 12 & 14Ford A Fare030PresIANatoras & Sen BernadineFood (Neat Pactine)0223PresIANatoras & Sen BernadineFood (Meat Pactine)0223PresIASuture & Blact Hawk CeFood (Meat Pactine) & En-effendere00PresIASuture & Blact Hawk CeFore030PresIASuture & Food (Meat Pactine) & En-effendere00PresIASuture & Food (Meat Pactine) & En-effendere00PresIASuture & Food (Meat Pactine) & En-effendere00PresIASuture & Food (Meat Pactine) & En-effendere00Pres<	PY84	HA	Senttle			
PresHURanuma CuntrDiss: Hinta, Canstruction, ResultBa.13332PresHUSistuideSistSist400,000800PresALME Alasses (Boutusere)Mullaar400,000800PresCACaustaMul Sectified0400PresCALA CountyAlasses (Boutusere)Mul Sectified0400PresCALA CountyArressec41.427,850400PresCALA CountyArressec41.427,850400PresCALA CountyArressec41.427,850400PresCALA CountyArressec41.427,850400PresCALA CountyArressec41.427,850400PresTABantar, Arressed StanilasFod (Resturent)0223PresTASolator, Arressec500,000315312PresTABouthest TAFore00PresTADunuce & Delaware CosFod (Meat Pacting) & Ex-effenders00PresTADunuce & Delaware CosFore000PresTADunuce & Delaware CosFod (Meat Pacting) & Tiro00PresTADunuce & Delaware CosFore00PresTADunuce & Delaware CosFore00PresTADunuce & Delaware CosFore00PresTADunuce & Delaware Cos <t< td=""><td>PY84</td><td>HA</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	PY84	HA				
PresPresBittenideStateStateIB-133J2PresALKE Alassea (Bosttener)Nuolesr600.00060PresALKE Alassea (Bosttener)Nuolesr500.0000PresCALA Ceuntr & Lenner AreaElastronia0150PresCALA Ceuntr & Lenner AreaElastronia0150PresCALA Ceuntr & Areassea1.487.980400PresCALA Ceuntr & AreassaFood & Fare080PresCARaderan Mersed & StaniesFood & Fare080PresIABoka J. J. 12 & 14Fare500.000335PresIABoka J. 5. 12 & 14Fare00PresIABota State Hakt CeFood (Heat Packing)60PresIABotavers IAFare00PresIACasteners CasFare00PresIACasteners CasFare00PresIACasteners CasFare00PresIACastenersC00PresIACastenersFare00PresIACastenersFare00PresIACastenersFare00PresIACastenersFare00PresIACastenersFare00PresIACastenersFa	PY84	HV	Kanawha County			• • • •
PHRS PHRS CACAConstant Constant CANuclear NuclearS00,000 S00,000000 	PY84	HV				
Press Press CAConstant La County & Lennor, Arca La County & Arcasse Acrasse Food (Restaurent)SOUCOD County Acrasse Acrasse Food (Restaurent)SOUCOD County Food & FarePress Press Press CA Press LA Bactan, Marted & Stantilau Haterias & Black Hewk Co Press Food (Restaurent)Food & Fare Food & FareSOUCOD County SOUCODSOUCOD SOUCODPress Press Food Press TA Press TA Press TA Datawes Delawers Ca Delawers Ca Food (Mast Packing) & En-effenders Food (Mast Packing) & En-effenders SOUCODSOUCOD SOUCODPress Food Press TA Press TA Contral IAFare Ford (Mast Packing) & Tire SOUCOD Forma Food (Mast Packing) & Tire SOUCOD Ta 	PY85	AL				-
PresCALA Countr & Lanar ArgaElsstronis0130PresCALA Countr & Lanar ArgaRereizace1.487,580400PresCALA Drame & Sen BernedineFood (Perstaurent)078PresIASDAs J. 5. 12 & 14Ford (Perstaurent)0223PresIASDAs J. 5. 12 & 14Ford (Mest Packing)0223PresIASuthwest IAFarm00PresIADubues & Delawers CaeFood (Mest Packing) & Ex-effendire00PresIADubues & Delawers CaeFood (Mest Packing) & Tirc00PresIAContral IAFarm000PresILStatewideFarm000PresILStatewideFarm000PresILStatewideFarm000PresILJaistHeav Machine8515.550000PresILJaistHeav Machine8515.5500002.100PresILJaistHeav Machine8515.5500002.100PresINKE Indiana (Ft Merns)Electronic (GE)02.7001.888PresINKE Indiana (Ft Merns)Electronic (GE)02.7002.100PresMEStatewideFootwaarKaude Statewine1.500,0002.100PresMEStatewideFootwaar <td>PYRS</td> <td>CA</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	PYRS	CA				
Press Press Press Press Press Press Press CA 	PY83	CA	LA County & Lennoy Area		-	
Press Press Press CALA. Drames & San Berneding BernedingFod (Restaurant)List/2/300400Press Press Press TAData J. S. 12 & 14Ford & Fare080Press Press TABas J. S. 12 & 14Fare080Press Press TABast Hawk CsFord (Hast Pasking)0223Press Press TADubues & Blast Hawk CsFord (Hast Pasking)00Press Press TADubues & Belawers CseFord (Hast Pasking) & Ex-offenders00Press Press TADubues & Belawers CseFord (Hast Pasking) & Tire00Press TADubues & Belawers CseFord (Hast Pasking) & Tire00Press TADubues & Belawers Dubues & Belawers TAEare00Press TADubues & Belawers Dubues & Belawers TAFare00Press TADubues & Belawers Dubues & BelawersFare00Press TAJalietConstruction & Meshine515,550000Press TAJalietMato-Parts (Allied-Bandin)1,200-n001,888Press TAMaland, Seanaw & BerAuto-Parts (Allied-Bandin)1,200-n001,888Press TAMaland, Seanaw & BerAuto-Parts (Allied-Bandin)1,200-n001,888Press TAMaland, Seanaw & BerAuto-Reserv & Faed1500,0002,000Press TAMaland, Seanaw & BerAutoMato Bers/Tad1,500,0002,000	PY85	CA			•	
PRSCARefer & BianislasPod & Fare080PRSIABDAE 3, 5, 12 & 14Fare080PRSIABathas & Black Hewk CeFood (Maat Pasting)0223PRSIABathas & Black Hewk CeFare00PRSIADutuque & Delaware CaeFood (Maat Pasting) & Ex-effenders00PRSIAStatewideFare030PRSIAStatewideFare00PRSILStatewideFare00PRSILStatewideFare00PRSILStatewideFare00PRSILBouth BandConstruction & Machine000PRSILJalietHeaveHeave Machine000PRSILJalietHeaveBauw Machine0000PRSILJalietHeaveBauw Machine0000PRSILJalietHeaveBauw Machine0000PRSILJalietHeaveBauw Machine0000PRSILJalietHeaveBauw Machine0270PRSILJalietHeaveStatewide1.500,.002,100PRSMIHilladeSeareGutowar4.00300PRSMIHildaleAutoBreeuffied1.500,000130PRSMIHildale <t< td=""><td>PY:85</td><td>-</td><td></td><td>·····</td><td></td><td></td></t<>	PY:85	-		·····		
PresIAEDAs 3, 5, 12 & 14FarmStortPresIAMaxteles & Black Heak CeFard (Mast Pasting)0223PresIAButhnest IAFarm00PresIADuturue & Delawars CasFord (Mast Pasting) & Ex-affenders00PresIAStatewideFarm00PresIAStatewideFarm00PresILStatewideFarm00PresILStatewideFarm00PresILStatewideFarm00PresILStatewideFarm00PresILStatewideFarm00PresILStatewideGastruation & Mashine00PresILJestHarnel001.888PresIAGutaran (Fs Marne)Electronic (GE)01.888PresIAButh SandAuto-Farming (GE)1.200-0001.888PresMcMidland-Seensure & BerAuto-Insteading1.500002.100PresMfMidland-Seensure & BerAuto-Insteade1.500.0002.500PresMfDetroitAuto-Insteade1.500.0002.500PresMfMidland-Seensure & BerAuto-Insteade1.120.0002.500PresMfMidland-Seensure & BerAuto-Insteade030PresMfMidland-Seensure & Ber<	PY85	-	Nadara, Nersed & Stanislas			
PY85 IA Neteries & Black Hawk Ce Fod (Nast Pastins) 500000 223 PY84 IA Southwest IA Farm 0 0 PY85 IA Dubuque & Delawars Cos Fod (Nast Pastins) & Ex-effenders 0 0 PY85 IA Dubuque & Delawars Cos Form 0 0 PY85 IA Dubuque & Delawars Cos Form 0 0 PY85 IA Dubuque & Delawars Cos Form 0 0 PY85 IA Dubuque & Delawars Cos Form 0 0 PY85 IA Central IA Farm 0 0 PY85 IL Bernaffald Construction & Machina 0 0 PY85 IL Jalis Jalis 600 273 PY85 IN ME Indiana (Ft Marne) Elsotronio (GE) 0 273 PY85 IN ME Statewide Fotward Nuclears 6 0 273 PY85 ME Statewide Fotward Auto. Nuclear & Kanufasturine 1,500,000 2,100 PY85 ME Statewide Ber Auto. Nuclear & Kanufasturine 130,000 130	PY85		80As 3. 5. 12 & 14		•	
PYGHIASouthwest IAFareFord (Heat Pathiar)Southwest IAPYGHIADubuque & Delawars CosFord (Heat Pathiar) & Ex-offenders0PYG5IAStatewideFare0PYG5IACentral IAFare0PYG5ILStatewideFare0PYG5ILStatewideFare0PYG5ILStatewideFare0PYG5ILStatewideFare0PYG5ILJaistHeav Machine0PYG5INME Indiana (Ft Marne)Electronic (GE)0PYG5N/MISauth BendAuto-Parts (Allid-Bandix)1,200-000PYG5N/MISauth BendAuto-Parts (Allid-Bandix)1,200-000PYG5MCMidland. Sealnew & BerAuto-Nuelser & Manufasturine437.234PYG5MIMidland. Sealnew & BerAuto-Nuelser & Manufasturine437.234PYG5MIMilledaleAuto-Statewide100000PYG5MIHilledaleAutoGaneiro (Ge)PYG5MIHilledaleAutoGaneiro (Ge)PYG5MIHilledaleAutoGaneiro (Ge)PYG5MIHilledaleAutoGaneiro (Ge)PYG5MIHilledaleAutoPYG5MIHilledaleAutoPYG5MIHilledale (Ge)Ganeiro (Ge)PYG5MIHilledale (Ge)AutoPYG5MISeri	PY85				\$ 500,000	
PY85IADutwee & Delaware CeeFarm60P*85IAStatewideFarm030P*15IACentral IAFarm0850P*15IACentral IAFarm00P*85ILStatewideFarm00P*85ILStatewideFarm0850P*85ILStatewideFarm0850P*85ILStatewideFarm0850P*85ILJelistHeavy Machine515,550300P*85ILJelistHeavy Machine515,550300P*15IV/MSeute BondAuto-Parts (Aliad-Bendix)1,200-n001,888P*15N/MISeute BondAuto-Parts (Aliad-Bendix)1,200-n001,888P*15MAQuinorStatewideFootwear00P*15MEStatewideFuctwear000P*15MEStatewideAuto-Newary & Faed1300.002,100P*15MIHildadeAuto-Breary & Faed118.41580P*15MIHeinstannHet BreatField00P*15MIStatewareAuto-BreatField00P*15MIStatewareAuto-BreatField00P*15MIStatewareAuto-Auto-BreatField00P*15MIStatewareAuto-Auto-Auto-Auto-Auto-Auto-Auto-Auto-	PYBS				8 0	223
PH65IAStatewideFordFordFordFordStatewideStatewideP165IACentral IAFarmeConstruction & Machine0600P185ILStatewideFarme0600P185ILStatewideFarme0600P185ILStatewideFarme0600P185ILStatewideFarme0600P185ILStatewideFarme0600P185INNEIndetrono(GE)0270P185INNEIndetrono(GE)0270P185INNEIndetrono6100270P185INNEIndetrono6100270P185INNEIndetrono6100270P185INNEIndetrono6100270P185INNEIndetrono6100271P185INNEIndetrono61002710P185INMainerSatewideFactware6100P185INMidandSatewideFactware6100P185INMidandSatewideAutoBreufastware6100P185INMareaMareaSatewide61000P185MidandMareaMatueGatewide60000P185					1 0	0
PrisIAContral IAFare0630PresILBatewadeFare00PresILBatewadeFare00PresILBrinefaldConstruction & Meahine0600PresILJeistHeavy Machine515,350300PresINHE Indiana (Fi Marne)Electronic (GE)0273PresIN/HIBauta BandAuto-Parts (Allied-Bandix)1,200-001,888PresMAQuinorBhiebuildine1,500,002,100PresMAQuinorBhiebuildine4,37,284210PresMEStatewideFootwear4,27,284210PresMIHilladleAuto, Brewry & Faed1,500,0001,300PresMIHilladleAuto, Brewry & Faed1,500,0002,500PresMIBatewideBrewrySteel, Construction & Manufasturine1,500,0002,500PresMIBatemianNet Brewry & Faed0300PresMIBatemianNet Brewry and6300PresMISkinchianNet Brewrited0300PresMIBatemianNet Brewrited0300PresMIBatemianNet Brewrited0300PresMIBatemianNet Brewrited0300PresMIBatemianNet Brewrited0300PresMIBa			·•		1 0	30
PY85ILStatewideFATH, FOOD (INST FSORING) & Tire300PY85ILBerinefieldGenstruction & Mechine40600PY85ILJalistHeavy Machine40600PY85ILJalistHeavy Machine40600PY85ILJalistHeavy Machine5515,550300Av85INNEInitiana (Ft Meyne)Electronic (GE)60273PY15StatewideStatewideBisebuildine61,200,4001,888PY85MCStatewideBisebuildine61,500,702,100PY85MIMidland, Sesinaw & BeyAuto, Nuclear & Manufasturine6437,284210PY85MIOutroitAuto, Brewerr & Faed6150,000130PY85MIHilsdaleAutoBrewerr & Faed600PY85MIHeatingSteel, Construction & Manufasturine1,500,0002,500PY85MIBishiganHet Breatfied600PY85MIStemanHet Breatfied600PY85MIStemanHet Breatfied600PY85MIStemanHet Breatfied600PY85MIStemanHet Breatfied600PY85MIStemanHet Breatfied600PY85MI <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>s · 0</td> <td>630</td>					s · 0	630
PYESILGernnefialdConstruction & MechineI0600PYBSILJaintHeavy Machine515,550300PYESINME Indiana (Ft Marne)Electronic (GE)0273PYESINME Indiana (Ft Marne)Electronic (GE)0273PYESINME Indiana (Ft Marne)Electronic (GE)0273PYESINME Indiana (Ft Marne)Electronic (GE)0273PYESMAGuinorBhiPbuildine51,500,0001.885PYESMEStatewideFootwear6C0PYESMEStatewideFootwear6602.100PYESMEStatewideBevAuto, Nuelser & Manufasturine6437,234210PYESMEBetroitAuto, Bewerr & Fead6118,413500,000130PYESMEHilledaleAutoSteel, Canstructien & Manufasturine51.500,0002.500PYESMEHishisanNet Specified6000PYESMEStatemanNet Specified50300PYESMEStatemanNet Specified60100PYESMECaustrianNet Specified60100PYESMEStatemanNet Specified60100PYESMEJackson, Hilidale & LewareAute01000300PYES					30	٥
PY85ILJalistLastruation40600avesIIJalistHeavy Mashins515,550300avesINNE Indiana (Fs Mayne)Electronic (GE)60Pv15IN/MISouth BandAuto,Parts (Allisd-Bendix)512,000,0001.885AvesMAGuinorBhisbuildine515,550300AvesMAGuinorBhisbuildine512,000,0001.885AvesMEStatewideFootweer600AvesMEStatewideFootweer600AvesMEStatewideFootweer600AvesMEStatewideAuto, Nuclear & Manufasturine6130,000130AvesMIHilledaleAutoBrewerr & Fead11500,0002,500AvesMIMarnaNature Americans600AvesMIStelicanNet Seelfied00200AvesMIStelicanNet Seelfied000AvesMIStelicanAutoStelicans60100AvesMIGeneration ClasseRefriseration Classe60100AvesMIStelicanAutoStelican41000100AvesMIStelicanAutoStelican60100AvesMIStelicanAutoStelican601000					B 0	580
argsINHE Indiana (Ft Mayne)History Harning6515,550300PYESIN/HISouth BendAuto, Parts (Allisd-Bendix)1,200,7001,885PYESMAQuinorShipbuilding1,200,7001,885PYESMEStatenideFotwear600PYESMEStatenideFotwear600PYESMEStatenideFotwear600PYESMIDetroitAuto, Nublear & Kanufasturing6437,284210PYESMIDetroitAuto, Severy & Faad1350,000130FYSSMIDetroitAuto, Severy & Faad1350,0002,500PYESMIUayna CountyState, Censtruction & Manufasturing51,500,0002,500PYESMIElectroitNet Epecified000PYESMIElectroitNet Epecified000PYESMICentral HightsonNet Epecified0200PYESMICentral HightsonNet Epecified000PYESMICudillad & ManisteeRefrigeration & Henufacturing175,000100PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute01600PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute0100PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute0100PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>4 0</td><td>800</td></t<>					4 0	800
PYESIN/MIButh BandAuto/Parts (Allisd-Bandix)60273PYESMAGuinerBhisbuilding\$1,200.0001,885PYESMEStatewideFootweer\$C0PYESMEStatewideFootweer\$C0PYESMIMidland, Sesinew & BerAuto, Nuslear & Kanufasturing\$437,284210PYESMIDetroitAuto, Seewery & Food\$100,000150PYESMIHillsdaleAutoBrewery & Food\$100,0002,500PYESMIHillsdaleAutoSteel, Construction & Manufasturing\$1,500,0002,500PYESMISE MishigenNet Seel, Construction & Manufasturing\$1,500,0002,500PYESMISE MishigenNet Seelfied00PYESMISE MishigenNet Seelfied050PYESMIContral HishigenNet Seelfied050PYESMIContral HishigenAute0100PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute01000PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute01000PYESMIDetroitNet Seelfied01000PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute01000PYESMIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute01000PYESMIDetroitNet Seesified01000					\$ 515,550	300
PYCSHALDataButtoneHALS.Parts (Hillsd-Bandis)6 1,200.0001,885PYESHEStatenideFotwear6C0PYESHEMidland, Seeinew & BevAuto, Nueleer & Manufasturine6 437.234210PYESHEDetreitAuto, Nueleer & Manufasturine6 437.234210PYESHEDetreitAuto, Nueleer & Faed6 118.41560PYESHEHillsdaleAuto, Brewerr & Faed6 118.41560PYESHEHashisenNet Brecified6 00PYESHESkinenNet Brecified6 00PYESHEEntrainenNet Brecified6 0200PYESHECentral MichiganNet Brecified6 0200PYESHECuultadAutoMature6 0200PYESHECuultadAutoAuto6 0200PYESHECuultadAutoAuto6 0100PYESHECuultadAutoMature6 0100PYESHECuultad & NanisteeRefrigeration & Manufacturine6 175.000100PYESHECuultad & LewanneAuto6 0100PYESHECuultad & LewanneAuto6 0100PYESHECuultad & LewanneAuto6 0100PYESHEDetraitNot Breaffied6 0100PYESHEDetrait <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>PERAFIANT JAPL</td><td>1 0</td><td>273</td></t<>				PERAFIANT JAPL	1 0	273
PY85MCStatewideShiPsulidine\$ 1,500,70Z,100PY85MfMidland, Seeinaw & BeyAuto, Nuelear & Manufasturine\$ 437,284Z10PY85MfMidland, Seeinaw & BeyAuto, Nuelear & Manufasturine\$ 437,284Z10PY85MfMilledaleAuto, Brewery & Feed\$ 150,000130PY85MfHilledaleAutoBrewery & Feed\$ 1,500,0002,500PY85MfMarne CountySteel, Construction & Manufasturine\$ 1,500,0002,500PY85MfSE MichiaanNet Breatfied\$ 00PY85MfSE MichiaanNet Breatfied\$ 0200PY85MfContral MichiaanNet Breatfied\$ 0200Py85MfContral MichiaanNet Breatfied\$ 0200Py85MfLewanneAute\$ 0200Py85MfLewanneAute\$ 0100Py85MfLewanneAute\$ 0100Py85MfJackson, Milledale & LewanneAute\$ 0100 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1.008</td></t<>						1.008
PY85HIMidland, Sasinau & BayFucturerFucturerSCOPY85HIDetroitAuto, Nuslear & Hanufasturine\$ 437,284Z10PY85HIDetroitAuto, Brewerr & Feed\$ 130,000150PY85HIHilledaleAuto\$ 118,413\$ 60PY85HIWarne County\$ 5teel, Construction & Manufasturine\$ 1.500,0002,500PY85HIStritannNet Epecified\$ 00PY85HIContral HichisanNet Epecified\$ 00PY85HICutiliadManisteeRefrimeration & Henufasturine\$ 1.500,0002,500PY85HICutiliadManisteeNet Epecified\$ 000PY85HICutiliadManisteeRefrimeration & Henufasturine\$ 1.75,000100PY85HICutiliad & ManisteeRefrimeration & Henufasturine\$ 175,000100PY85HICutiliad & ManisteeRefrimeration & Henufasturine\$ 1.75,000100PY85HICutiliad & ManisteeRefrimeration & Henufasturine\$ 01.000PY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute\$ 01.000PY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute\$ 01.000PY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute\$ 01.000PY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute\$ 01.000PY85HIJackson, Hil					\$ 1,500, 20	Z.100
PYESHIDetroitAutoRefuer a Ranufasturing\$ 437,284Z10FY85HIHilledaleAutoBrewerr & Feed\$ 150,000150PY85HIHarne CounsvAutoBtel, Censtruction & Manufasturing\$ 1,500,0002,500PY85HIBE MichiganNet Breatfied\$ 00PY85HISK MichiganNet Breatfied\$ 00PY85HICentral MichiganNet Breatfied\$ 0200PY85HICentral MichiganNet Breatfied\$ 0200PY85HICutillad & ManisteeRefrigeration & Menufasturing\$ 175,000100PY85HICutillad & LewanneAutoTirr: Heavy Rachine & Reteil\$ 500,000100PY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAuto\$ 01,000100PY85HIDesroitHarrenAuto\$ 01,000PY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAuto\$ 01,000PY85HIDesroitHarrenAuto\$ 01,000Py85HIDesroitHarrenAuto\$ 01,000Py85HIDesroitHatural </td <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1 C</td> <td></td>		-			1 C	
FY85HIHillsdaleAutoFasd150,000130PY85HIHillsdaleAutoEllE.41360PY85HIWarne CountySteel, Censtruision & ManufasturingEllE.41360PY85HISE MishiganNet Epecified600PY85HISK MichiganNet Epecified600PY85HICentral HighiganNet Epecified6050PY85HICentral HighiganNet Epecified60200PY85HICutilladManisteeRefrigeration & MenufacturingEl75.000100PY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute0188FY85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute0100By85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute0100By95HIDatroitNot Epecified0100By95HIDatroitNot Epecified0100By95HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanneAute0100By95HIDatroitNot Epecified0100By95HIDatroitHults-State (23 States)Not Epecified0100By95Hults-State (23 States)Hat Epecified0C0004:417By95HIHattron, Hancett & JacksonNatural Disetter (Hurritone)\$ 1:000:000800		-			\$ 437,284	210
PY85HillsdaleAuto118.41360PY85HIWarne CountySteel, Construction & Manufasturing1.500,0002.300PY85HISE MichiganNot Specified00PY85HICentral HidhiganNot Specified00Py85HICentral HidhiganNot Specified0200Py85HICentral HidhiganNot Specified0200Py85HICuillad & ManisteeRefrigeration & Henufacturing1.75.000100Py85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute0100Py85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute0100Py85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute0100Py85HIDatroitNot Specified0100Py85HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewaneAute0100Py85HIDatroitNot Specified0100Py85HIDatroitNot Specified01.000Py85HIDatroitNot Specified0100Py85Hults-State (23 States)Not Specified010Py85Hults-State (23 States)Not Specified010Py85Hults-State (23 States)Not Specified0100Py85Hults-State (23 States)Not Specified01.000,000Py85HIHarteon, Hancest & JacksonNatural Disetter (Hurricone)1.000,000 <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		-				
Av65MiSE MichiganSteel, Censtruction & Manufasturing\$ 1,500,0002,300Av65MiSE MichiganNot Specified\$ 00Av65MiSK MichiganNot Specified\$ 050Av65MiCentral HidhiganNot Specified\$ 0200Av65MiCentral HidhiganNot Specified\$ 0200Av65MiCuillad & ManisteeRefrigeration & Menufacturing\$ 175,000100Av65MiJackson, Hillsdale & LewanceAute\$ 0100Av65MiJackson, Hillsdale & LewanceAute\$ 0100Av65MiDetroitMot Specified\$ 0C0Av65MiMatural State(2)S 10000\$ 000\$ 000Av65MiHartson, Hancest & JacksonMatural Disester (Hurricone)\$ 1,000,000\$ 000					4 118,415	
Avg5HiAll ModulationNet Exectified\$00PV55HIEx MichiaanNet Exectified\$050Pv55HICentral HidhimanNot Exectified\$0200Pv55HICudillad & ManisteeRefrime/ation & Henufacturing\$175.000100Ev55HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanceAute\$0188Ev55HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanceAute\$0100Ev55HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanceAute\$0100Ev55HIJackson, Hillsdale & LewanceAute\$0100Ev55HIDetrestNot Exectified\$0100Ev55HIDetrestNot Exectified\$0100Ev55Hults-State (20 States)Not Exectified\$0C0Ev55Hults-State (20 States)Not Exectified\$04:417Ev55HIInternetionel FelltNeod, Timber, Hinine (Tastenits)\$272,125\$83Pv55HIHarrison, Hancest & JacksonNatural Disester (Hurrisone)\$1:000:000\$00		-		Steel, Construction & Manufasturing		2,500
PY05 Ni BK Michigan Native Americans 0 50 PY05 Mi Central Highigan Not Bescified 0 200 Py05 Pi Pantian Not Bescified 0 200 Py05 Pi Cupillad & Manistee Refrigeration & Menufacturing 175.000 100 Py05 Mi Jackson, Hillsdale & Levance Aute 0 188 Py05 Mi Jackson, Hillsdale & Levance Aute 0 100 Py05 Mi Jackson, Hillsdale & Levance Aute 0 100 Py05 Mi Jackson, Hillsdale & Levance Aute 0 100 Py05 Mi Detrest Not Bescified 0 100 Py05 Mi Detrest Not Bescified 0 100 Py05 Mils-State (23 States) Not Bescified 0 0 4417 Py05 Milsingerse Harrison, Hancest & Jackson Natural Disector (Hurrisone) \$ 1,000,000 \$00 Py05 Mi Pentetion Natural Disector (Hurrisone) \$						
Profit Contrat minimizan Not Rescified \$ 0 200 Profit Pantiad Aute \$ 0 188 Fred Mr Cutiliad & Manistee Refrimeration & Menufacturina \$ 175,000 100 args Mr Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewance Aute \$ 0 100 args Mr Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewance Aute \$ 0 100 args Mr Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewance Aute \$ 0 100 args Mr Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewance Aute \$ 0 100 args Mr Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewance Aute \$ 0 100 args Mr Detrest Not Rescified \$ 0 100 args Mr Detrest Not Rescified \$ 0 C0 args Mr Internetions' Fellt Not Bescified \$ 0 C0 args Mr Internetions' Fellt Neod, Timber, Hinine (Tastenits) \$ 272,125 \$ 83 args Mr Hartson, Manceck & Jackson Natural Disester (Hurricane) \$ 1,000,000						
FY25 MI Cusillad & Manissee Refrigeration & Menufacturing 0 188 AV25 MI Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewanne Auto, Tirr, Hesur Machine & Retail 0 100 Av15 MI Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewanne Auto, Tirr, Hesur Machine & Retail 0 100 Av15 MI Jackson, Hillsdale & Lewanne Auto, Tirr, Hesur Machine & Retail 0 1000 Av15 MI Descent Auto 0 1000 000 Av15 Marren Auto 0 1,000 000 000 Av15 MI Descent 12 States 0 1,000 000 Av15 Multi-State (20 States) Net Breatfied 0 0 0 0 Av15 MI International Falls Meod, Timber, Minina (Tastenits) 8 372,125 933 Av15 Marteon, Manceot & Jackson Matural Disester (Hurricane) 8 1,000,000 800				Not Brecified	1 0	
Avgs Mi Jackson, Hillsdale & Levance Refrimeration & Henufacturina \$ 175,000 100 Avgs Mi Jackson, Hillsdale & Levance Auto, Tirz, Hesuy Machine & Reteil \$ 500,000 300 Avgs T: Marron Auto Auto \$ 0 1,000 Bvgs T: Detreit Detreit Not Reseified \$ 0 100 Bvgs T: Detreit Not Reseified \$ 0 C0 Bvgs Milti-State (23 States) Not Bessified \$ 0 \$ 0 Bvgs V Internetions/Fells Neod, Timber, Hinine (Tastenits) \$ 372,125 \$ 83 Avgs Me Heod, Timber, Hinine (Hurricone) \$ 1,000,000 \$ 00				-	1 Ú	188
Avis Hute Boo,000 300 Harren Aute Boo,000 1,000 Hits-State C2 States Not Speaified B 0 1,000 PVC5 Hits-State C2 States Not Speaified B 0 200 PVC5 Huits-State C2 States Not Speaified B 0 200 PVC5 Huits-State States Nat Speaified B 0 4,617 PVC5 H International Failt Head, Timber, Minina (Tastenits) B 372,125 \$83 PVC5 H Harrison, Hanceck & Jackson Hatural Disector (Hurricane) B 1,000,000 \$00		-			\$ 175,000	
Burgs Fill Destroit Aute 6 0 1,000 Durgs Fill Destroit Not Resulfied 6 0 C0 Durgs Fill Multi-State (2) States) Not Resulfied 6 0 4,617 Purgs Multi-State (2) States) Not Resulfied 6 0 4,617 Purgs Multi-State (2) States) Not Resulfied 6 0 4,617 Purgs MB Harrison, Hancest Substant Matural Disetter (Hurrisone) 6 1,000,000 800				Auto, Tirz, Henuy Machine & Rotall	\$ 500,000	300
Prof. Detroit Not Resultisd 6 0 CO Prof. Mits-State (2) States) Not Resultisd 6 0 4,617 Prof. M Internetions' Fells Need, Timber, Minine (Tastenits) 6 272,125 983 Prof. MR Hartson, Hancock S Jackson Natural Disector (Hurricane) 6 1,000,000 800						
AND		-			1 0	
Awiz MB Harrison, Manager S Jackson Matural Disester (Hurricane) 6 272,129 503 Prof WY Pictore, Manager S Jackson Matural Disester (Hurricane) 6 1,000,000 500					4 0	• •
Prof WY Harraven, Handock & Jeokean Matural Disester (Hutricane) \$ 1,000,000 800		•			\$ 272,129	
		-				
• • •	r i Ma	-1	212(1)/(d	Ditabled Workers	-	120



YEAR	STATE	LOCATION	LHDUS TAY	AHDUNT AHARDED	NUTEER PARTIELTANTE
PY03 PY03 PY03 PY03 PY03 PY03 PY03 PY03	NE NE NY OH OR AN NI NI NI NI NI NI NI NI NI NI NI NI NI	Guana Statewide Nathington: Douglog & Sarpy Fulton: Montaguery & Schoherie Cleveland Piketun (B County Area) Niami Area Lane County Allentown Statewide Statewide Statewide Central County Nilwaukes Nilwaukes Nilwaukes South Charleston SECRETARY'S SPECIAL INITIATIVE	Frod, Electronics & Communications Farw, Service & Manufacturite Farm, Government & Ins rance Commuter, Tay, Food, Textile & Lestmer Construction & Communication Nuclear (Uranium Enrichment) Tire (8.F. Goadrich) Wood, Textile & Duarry Steel, Truck, Tool & Textile Footwear, Auto & Textile Not Specified Farm Metal & Machine Timber, Food, RR, Ghimpine, USAF Farm Excipant Auto Machine Industrial Chemical NONRUBBER FOOTWEAR	0 000,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1.286,467 0 0 0 0 0	540 150 2 0 170 475 1,750 250 1,250 0 4,417 575 450 152 750 1,050 1,050 0 1,050 0 1,050 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

JTPA Title III Kational Reserve Provects Promram Years 1084 and 1595

3-NGH-1004 Pawe 2

Projects not specifying a location and with zero for the number of participants have not been approved to date.

.

137



 \bigcirc

U.S. DEPT. OF EDUCATION OFFICE OF EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH AND IMPROVEMENT (OERI)





DATE FILMED

00